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Corporate Profile &gmn

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited (Stock Code: 1929) is a world-class
leading jeweller listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
in December 2011, and has become the largest jeweller listed in Hong Kong by
market capitalisation.

The iconic brand “Chow Tai Fook” of the Group has been widely recognised for its
trustworthiness and authenticity, and renowned for product design, quality and
value. The acquisition of Hearts On Fire, an internationally acclaimed U.S. premium
diamond brand, in August 2014 has further underpinned the Group's stature as a
diamond expert in the industry.

The Group boasts an extensive retail network comprising over 2,300 Chow Tai
Fook and Hearts On Fire stores spanning more than 500 cities in Greater China,
Singapore, Malaysia, South Korea and the United States, as well as a strong and fast
growing e-tail network through operating its Chow Tai Fook e-Shops and various
e-tail accounts on other online shopping platforms.

The Group’s sophisticated vertically integrated business model provides it with
an effective and tight control over the entire operation chain from raw material
procurement, design, production, to marketing and sales through its extensive POS
and e-tail channels.
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Annual Results in 5 Minutes
PEEERE

Market Development
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Products and Production
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Revenue of gem-set jewellery
as a % of total revenue
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27.4%

RSV of gem-set jewellery of
wedding collection as a % of
gem-set jewellery RSV
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51.8%

In-house production mix of products sold
— Jewellery products (in RSV)
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46.0%

Operations and Management
EERER

Number of employees E TEH

32,170

Number of POS under new inventory
management mechanism

RAMFEEEKHNTER

1,468

Establishment of

Chow Tai Fook Academy

in June 2015
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Ty
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Operating cash flows before
movements in working capital Earnings per share
HEESEHACKERERE BREF
57874 294 i
HK 9, . T B
Financials illion B &3 T
Bt million B &8 FY2015 201581 L S
’ YoY change (o) HK cents
susi. v20.6% 54.6 i
Total dividends per share for the year Net assets per share
BREFERE BREEERE
* HK cents $3 6 HK dollar
80.0% HKS 3.0 i
FY2015 201581 BUF FY2015 201581 BUF
HK cents HK dollar
28.0 % HKS4.1 i
J
A Measured at constant exchange rates. RERERE -
# Included self-operated POS and franchised POS. BREEETENRNBTEY -
*  Included second special dividend of HK22.0 cents and final dividend of HK8.0 cents, subject to the approval of shareholders at BEEDRERIRE 208 RARBK L8081 BERRE
the forthcoming annual general meeting. AATEERRBFERE LHEAE -
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Chow Tai Fook at a Glance
AXE—E

As an iconic and trusted brand with 87 years of heritage, we commit to
attaining sustainable business growth and maximising shareholders’
returns through our continuous endeavour to excel in corporate
governance, while our contribution to the society and attention to
stakeholders will never be forsaken, as illustrated below:
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Production
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Strategic Roadmap
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&= Smart+ Initiatives Smart+ 5t &l

“Smart+" initiatives are our response to the ever-changing market environment, R [Smart+ ] sTEILLEY FE (LTS
with the objective to enable the long-term sustainable growth of our business. As RE  #EERREHEERE EEBIFZIER
retail operations continue to be the core of our business, we leverage the Internet, EWFHRET  RMOEAMNAEBERRETIA BB
technological tools and innovative products, new sales platforms and new way of BlFNER FHEETFREFEFEERR  BE
serving to satisfy customers’ personalised requirements and fulfill technological retail BEEREMIESR SRR EENEEERTS -

and smart service.
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(5mart + for

Market Development
Expand customer base and satisfy evolving
customer preferences by extracting online-to-

il
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Smart+ for

Operations and Management

Be responsive to the rapid market changes through
adopting new inventory management mechanism

EEREHE offline synergies and innovative channels
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Smart+ for

Customer Service and Marketing

S Provide personalised shopping experience and uplift brand
Smart+ for )\ image through technology, innovative tools and ideas
Products and Production , e
Provide reliable, innovative and distinctive product EF‘HE% & Tﬁ iﬁ?ﬁg o
offerings through capitalising on our vertically integrated %ﬂt’fﬁ ‘/ﬁ;“%ﬁl’a‘&ﬁﬁi  BRAMENE(C MR MR ER 12
business model and unique technology RIAmBRR
EmREE
MBRMAEERSEHBEANES  BEBERI - =214 J
A5 - R RBENERBRE

N\ J
V' A V' A A
Extensive Retail Brand Product Development  Human Abundant
Network Equity Capability Capital Financial Capital
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Chow Tai Fook at a Glance BAAE—&

Vertically Integrated Business Model

EHEARBHREN

This graphical summary illustrates our vertically integrated business model, which is
critical to keep us ahead of the game in delivering best quality products and services. It
is also key to the sustainability of our business.
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s
Procurement of Raw Materials
Upstream L i R R
VS A‘ Well-established relationship with suppliers
= of diamonds, gemstones and precious
metals around the world
Processed fil T HRREE AERESBEAERYRE
B&
190,000 +
carats of diamond
A
<> oo @]
oo |oo
0 lno 1
. Design Jewellery Manufacturing
Midstream % sp2 T P g
Award-winning team in Chow Tai Fook 4 production sites in Shunde, Shenzhen,
Jewellery Creative Centre with over 650 Wuhan, and Hong Kong, producing almost
@ @ employees half of our products sold
EREFVEARBHRELAZHOER - EE RIERE R REREBN4IELEER
Produced 4 & BB 650 E o AN ¥ RMEENER
0}
50% +
of gem-set jewellery sold
(in retail sales volume)
EEKRBEREN (REE) @)
@ o O O Q
ﬁ%@ @'C—' Ooooooooooog
[\ [
: POS Network
Downstream T~;
i FERBELE
Extensive retail network with over 2,300
POS covering more than 500 cities in
Mainland China, Hong Kong, Macau and
other markets, with the co-operation of
around 300 franchisees
e BEANZERE  BIEE2,3001EE M E
Sold it B ORMREATSNEEY B
ome e 500 2™ - WL 3008 MNBE & 1F
17 milionEE +
pieces of products
HER
.
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Rough Diamond Cutting and Polishing
VB BT &R EHE

Processed over 190,000 carats of diamond
in FY2016 through in-house diamond
cutting and polishing capabilities
BEBANBEAELENRITERED, R2016
B B S BE N TR 48 190,000 <& A

y 12k 12

Logistics and Distribution
Wi R B

CRNM In-house automated logistic facilities enable

timely and efficient product distribution

AEB BB RR R E m & & R

E-commerce
Eealiokr ]

More than 40 e-commerce platforms
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Chow Tai Fook at a Glance AXE—&

lllustration of Revenue
—F XL

The following diagram summarises the contribution of our revenue stream:
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Revenue
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Mainland China - Mainland China - Hong Kong, Macau and )
Jewellery business Watch business

other markets
PPt - BREEETS R i - SRS T BEMEREMTS

563%  32%  392%  13%

Self-Operated

Hearts On Fire

Franchised

Self-Operated

Self-Operated Franchised Self-Operated

— E® H E® — E® — E® H E®

Franchised

— E® H E®

Retail Wholesale Retail Retail Wholesale Retail Wholesale
€ #H2E ES B3 2 B3 2
77.4% 22.6% 100%

97.9%  2.1% 202%  79.8%
| | |

sss sss sss
IS S48 IS 848 IS 848
83.4% 80.5% 88.7%

Note: Information above was based on FY2016 revenue.
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Chairman’s Statement
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Over the past decades, we have
been striving for excellence in
sustainable business
development.
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Chairman’s Statement XEREE

Dear Shareholders,

Year 2016 marks Chow Tai Fook’s 87th year of legacy as a leading jewellery brand
in Greater China. Over the past decades, we have been striving for excellence in
sustainable business development. FY2016 was a year filled with challenges and
uncertainties amid the volatile macro-economic environment in Greater China. Yet,
the Group’s underlying competences remain strong against the backdrop of the
headwinds. We will continue to invest for the future to maintain our competitive
advantages, and to capture the market opportunities through our well-established
brand and extensive industry experience.

Performance Review

Following the continuous softness in luxury retail market in Greater China, the Group’s
revenue recorded a decrease of 12.0% year-on-year to HK$56,591.5 million in FY2016.
Profit attributable to shareholders of the Company declined 46.1% to HK$2,941.4
million, while earnings per share decreased to HK29.4 cents. In light of the strong cash
position, the Board has proposed a final and a special dividend of HK8.0 cents and
HK22.0 cents per share, respectively.

Market Dynamics

Mainland China has shown a sign of economic slowdown after achieving a remarkable
pace of growth in the past two decades, with its GDP growth moderated to 6.9% in
2015. Volatility in capital market also impacted the luxury retail sentiment. Besides,
the increasingly affluent and sophisticated Chinese consumers continue to look for
more personalised products and shopping experience. Lifestyle and leisure spending
becomes the trend, with strong outbound tourism boosting the consumption
abroad. However, taking into account the relatively stable fundamentals, continuous
urbanisation and the ever-growing middle-class in the region, we believe that
Mainland China will stay the course on sustainable growth.

In Hong Kong and Macau where we have been maintaining our leading position for
many years, the persistently weak retail sentiment and the decline in tourist visitations,
particularly the Mainland tourists, as a result of the strengthening US dollar and
evolving travel preference continue to affect our operation in FY2016. Mainland tourist
arrivals in Hong Kong and Macau fell 8.6% and 3.7%, respectively during the financial
year. We expect the market environment for the region to remain challenging in the
year ahead.
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Strategies for Sustainable Business

Despite the challenges ahead, we are dedicated to further enhancing our product
portfolio such as introducing Hearts On Fire brand and diamond fashion jewellery in
response to the changing customer preferences towards more lifestyle and design-
oriented. Our “Smart+" initiatives highlight our focus in extracting more online-to-
offline synergies and uplifting the customer experience through the use of Internet
and technology. For instance, we leverage on digital marketing to communicate with
our customers via mobile apps and offer them personalised shopping experience.
Our smart devices applied in operations help us understand better of the consumer
behaviour and refine our business strategies.

Chinese customers remain to be our major customer group. We will continue to
optimise our business operation in Greater China in order to further strengthen our
industry leadership in the region. At the same time, we endeavour to assess the
opportunities in expanding our business abroad and tap the growth potential from the
Mainland outbound tourism. Leveraging our successful brand history with the spirit
of “Fixed Price Policy”, solid expertise and business innovations would give impetus to
our sustainable growth and development.

Corporate Social Responsibility

Adhering to our core value “Sincerity - Eternity”, we also attach great importance to
corporate governance, risk management and community services as our corporate
social responsibility that is vital to our long-term sustainable development. While we
are striving for cost efficiency and business expansion in face of the current economic
adversities, our contribution to society are never interrupted. We strive to act as a
role model and inspire the industry to uphold the integrity and ethics in business
operations, to take part in the environmental protection and community work, and
eventually to build a better society.

In closing, | would like to express my heartfelt gratitude to my fellow Board members
for their strategic guidance and the management and staff for their dedication and
hard work. | also thank our shareholders, business partners and customers for their
continual support. In spite of the challenges ahead, | have every confidence that
the Group will grasp each and every opportunity to maximise the interests of our
stakeholders with our concerted efforts.

Dr. Cheng Kar-shun, Henry
Chairman

Hong Kong, 7 June 2016
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Managing Director’s Strategic Report

EEHEERKRE

sustainable growth over the long run.

BHEER -

Chow Tai Fook enters its 87th year of operation. In light of the ever-
changing market and the new opportunities arising from it, we have risen
to the challenges and sought to keep the right initiatives in place to deliver

EABRBERRENGE 87 F » AHBFXRENTEH L EEHAIKES - RMER
RE - TEREY - TRLHE L BEER - WREBA M ISEE » SRIFEN

Dear Shareholders,

The overall market environment was full of changes and challenges during the
year. Despite the slowdown in market growth under the new economic normal, we
proactively respond to our customers’ pursuit of customised and stylish experiences
through strengthening our personalised products and services, so as to induce their
purchasing desire. In our endeavours, we are pleased that FY2016 represented a year
of progress to our team:

Strengthening of retail network: We added a net of 62 POS to our retail network.
Through optimising and consolidating our existing retail network, we emphasise on
providing best-in-class products and services, enhancing customer experience in order
to support our sustainable development and reinforce our leadership position in the
jewellery industry;

Strong momentum of e-commerce: Our e-commerce business continued its strong
trajectory from the year before, with a solid RSV year-on-year growth of 51.7%
and comprising 2.3% of the total RSV of the jewellery business in Mainland China.
Following the latest development of omni-channel retailing, we integrated our online
and offline resources and collaborated with the renowned business partners to deliver
seamless shopping experiences to our customers;

Use of technology to enhance customers’ shopping experience and to improve
operational efficiency: We innovated and made use of the Internet and smart devices,
such as the Smart Tray, in our POS. We offered new shopping experiences to our
customers by bringing in new channels, products, and fast and convenient payment
options;
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Membership programme to stay connected with customers: By optimising our
membership programme, we insisted on the customer-centric approach and
continued to step up our efforts in connecting with our customers to increase their
brand loyalty. During the year, the number of our members in Mainland China and
Hong Kong and Macau were approximately 1.1 million and 0.4 million respectively,
with the repeat purchase ratio maintained at 29.0% and 26.0% respectively in
Mainland China and Hong Kong and Macau; and

Optimisation of our product offerings: We improved our product design and
craftsmanship to cater ever-changing customer tastes through an optimised product
portfolio. For instance, our premium diamond brand Hearts On Fire and our one-
of-a-kind high jewellery collection “Le Labyrinthe Artistique” showcase our mastery
of craftsmanship and artisan spirit, taking crucial roles in attracting customers’
desires and awareness towards our products. In addition, we managed to ride on the
opportunities created by important moments in life and continued to breed our bridal
collections.

“Smart+” initiatives

Since the launch of our “Smart+" initiatives, we are committed to dedicating ourselves
to elevate our brand and competitiveness through innovation and the use of
technology for the sake of achieving sustainable development. Going forward, we
strive to further develop our business and improve our efficiency, with specific targets
set out in the following five major areas:

Market Development

In Mainland China, our net POS openings in FY2017 shall be similar to that of last
year. We will be more selective and targeted in opening new POS and consolidate
our existing retail network. We aim at enhancing our shopping experience at store
level from multiple perspectives including visual angles and emotional interaction,
catering to trends of connecting with customers through omni-channel retailing and

differentiation.

In Hong Kong and Macau, we continue to consolidate our retail network to
enhance our operational efficiency in FY2017. In overseas market, we will grasp the
opportunities brought about by the tourism boom from Mainland China and gradually

build our presence overseas.

As our omni-channel retailing model develops, we are no longer connecting with
our customers only through our physical stores; our customers could now choose
to browse product information or to shop either online or offline. Hence, we aim at
integrating our online and offline resources to direct traffic to our distribution channels
through an omni-channel strategy empowered by digital marketing. Adhering to the
spirit in our core business, we will explore ways to transform our business model, such

as supporting our frontline staff with mobile applications.
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Managing Director’s Strategic Report EHA LR KRR E

Customer Service and Marketing

To successfully manage our brand and customer loyalty is critical to our development.
With the applications of the Internet and technology, we make use of our self-
developed Smart Tray in our POS to understand our customers’ preferences and
tastes. In the meantime, we intend to cater to our customers’ demands and enhance
shopping experiences by bringing groundbreaking changes to our product display
settings.

We will extend our online-to-offline interactive marketing activities all the way to the
integration of our multi-channel layout and strategic marketing, reaching our target
customer group via omni-channel marketing.

By optimising our membership programme and increasing our social media outreach,
we strive for strengthening our customer relationship management, improvement
in customer satisfaction, as well as a healthy and quality repeat purchase from our

members.

Products and Production

As customer preference evolves, we strive to manage the shift in our product offerings
arising from the changing market dynamics, i.e. from a product-oriented strategy all
along to creating more emotional connections between products and people. Under
the new normal, we will solidify our leadership position in the jewellery market by
further strengthening our product management and optimising our product portfolio
through an innovative and diversified product strategy.

The striving for excellence “artisan spirit” has been the talk of the town recently, which
coincides with our strategy to build competitive advantages with differentiated and
original designs all along. We are devoted to manifesting our products’ brand value
through creating our own one-of-a-kind products, such as the “Palace Museum”
Collection and other high-end jewellery collections.

On the production side, while we have a stable supply of raw materials, we adhere to
low-carbon living and invest in technology to give our customers jewellery pieces of
the most trusted quality through streamlined production and innovation, guiding our
industry to great new heights.

Operations and Management

We optimise our inventory management mechanism and retain inventory ownership
to better serve our customers’ needs and to attain higher stability in our retail network.
The developments of Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Park and Logistic and Distribution
Centre will fuel the sustainable growth of the Group’s business.

To better facilitate the development in our business and to improve operational
efficiency, we will give more autonomy to our regional management teams as
an attempt to decentralise authority to regional level in Mainland China. We also
established the Data Intelligence Space during the year to equip the management
team with data analysis tools to facilitate business decision-making.

14 Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited Annual Report 2016
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Talent development is indispensable to our future growth. During the year, we
established the Chow Tai Fook Academy and provided our staff a wide variety of
training programs through iLearning platform. We encourage lifelong learning in the
workplace to support sustainable growth of our business.

Financials

We are committed to optimising our capital structure in order to improve capital
efficiency and to save costs. We believe in creating long-term value and return to
our shareholders by striking a balance between maintaining adequate liquidity and
fulfilling working capital and investment needs.

Social Responsibility

Business development is inseparable from the support of the society. As a member of
the society, we fulfill our social responsibility as a corporate citizen by participating in
community welfare and voluntary work with our employees. In addition, we kick-start
projects to protect traditional craftsmanship under our co-operation with schools. We
also establish enterprise scholarships to support students in need, to give back to the

society, and to promote sustainable growth in our community.

We put different kinds of resources to technological innovation with an aim to
strengthen environmental protection in our production processes. We also introduced
a green office initiative as an advocate of energy saving and carbon reduction in the
workplace to minimise its impacts on the environment. In the meantime, we call on
the public to protect the environment with us by launching community projects such
as “How Hot could the Earth Get” and “One Hundred Million SuoSuo”.

Looking Forward

As always, | would like to extend my sincere gratitude to our management team for
their loyalty and contribution, to our staff for their hard work, and to our business
partners for their continued trust and support.

As Chow Tai Fook enters its 87th year of business, in light of the ever-changing market

and the new opportunities arising from it, we have risen to the challenges and sought
to keep the right initiatives in place to deliver sustainable growth over the long run.

Wong Siu-Kee, Kent
Managing Director

Hong Kong, 7 June 2016
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Financial and Operational Highlights
HUREERE

For the year ended 31 March HZ3 831 HILFE Asat31March A3 A31H
Revenue Operating cash flows before POS
L0 movements in working capital =€

Sk v e o A S g .
CEETRINCKERERE

(HKS million & &/ 7T) (HKS million & &/ 7T)
800001 - 100009 91896 94649 2500 2257 2319
642770 207/
600004  56571.1 574339 56,591.5 80001 20001 1836
: 1,627
6,000 1 1,500 1
40,000 1
4,000 A 1,000 1
20,000 4
2,000 1 500 1
0 0 0
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
HKS56,591.5 HKS5,787.4 2,319
million & T million BE#E T POSZEH
% 20.6% 2.7%
v 12.0% v 20.6% 2« 2.7%
For the year ended 31 March L Z3 A 31 HIEFE Asat31March A3 A31H
Earnings per share Full year and special dividends Net assets per share
BRER per share BREEFH
=
BRE2FRERRE
(HK cent 7&11L1) (HK cent 7 11L1) . (HK dollar 7 7T)
80 1 80 1 . 51
4.1
4 4 38
60 34 3.6
3.0
3 -4
40 4 404 36.0
280 5]
220
201
100 1
0 0
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
294 80.0 3.6
HK cents 7l HK cents &1l HK dollar & 7T
% 85.7% 8%
v46.1% » 185.7% v 11.8%
* Included second special dividend of HK22.0 cents and final dividend of HK$8.0 cents , subject to the approval of shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
BEETRERIRE 220 BIIRKHRE 0B - BERREFAABERFTBFAS LA -
Note: The percentages calculated are subject to minor rounding differences MizE : AR EERIMAENER
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2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
HKS$ million HKS$ million HK$ million HK$ million HKS$ million
For the year ended 31 March BE3AALEE HEHET HEET HEET HEHET HE#T
Revenue EE 2 56,571.1 57,433.9 77,407.1 64,277.0 56,591.5
Gross profit EF 16,447.9 16,283.1 21,1523 19,072.4 15,641.4
Core operating profit® FERERFO 8,135.8 7,106.4 9,499.5 6,690.8 5,050.0
Profit for the year FERA 6,570.9 5,678.4 7,449.2 5,535.8 2,978.9
Profit attributable to shareholders of AR B RREGRT 6,340.6 5,505.3 7,272.0 5,456.0 2,941.4
the Company
Earnings per share (HK cent) EREF (GBI 68.5 55.1 72.7 54.6 294
Full year dividend per share (HK cent) BREFRE (B 10.09) 220 36.0 28.0 16.0
Special dividend per share (HK cent) BRBFRE (GB4L) - - - - 64.0
Gross profit margin EFIZE 29.1% 28.4% 27.3% 29.7% 27.6%
Adjusted gross profit margin® BRAEBNENE 28.4% 28.1% 27.7% 29.2% 28.9%
Core operating profit margin® FELERRNZEO 14.4% 12.4% 12.3% 10.4% 8.9%
Net profit margin FmlE 11.6% 9.9% 9.6% 8.6% 5.3%
Dividend payout ratio RE =R 27.4%" 40.0% 49.5% 51.3% 54.4%
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
For the year ended 31 March HZE3A3ALEE BEET BEEEL BEET BEET HEET
Operating cash flows before movements &EE &S EAT < 9,189.6 7,662.6 9,464.9 7,287.9 5,787.4
in working capital KRERERE
Net cash from/(used in) operating SEEEME/(FTA) (6,653.7) 10,0303 (5,419.5) 7,568.2 13,897.2
activities Be&F8E
Net cash from/(used in) investing BETEBHE/(FA) 477.0 (1,112.6) (1,727.3) (3,092.7) (1,044.6)
activities BeFHE
Net cash from/(used in) financing RMEEBHE/ (FA) 10,497.0 (10,622.6) 8,220.6 (5,471.5) (8,007.7)
activities H&F8
Net increase/(decrease) in cash BeRBLZEEY 43203 (1,704.9) 1,073.8 (996.0) 4,844.9
and cash equivalents #m,/ Ohd) 4
Capital expenditure BEREAX (867.2) (1,174.1) (1,368.3) (2,767.9) (1,046.0)
Pro forma free cash flow® BEZERRLRY (6,058.3) 8,150.5 (412.0) 2,764.0 10,690.4

@

3)
(4)

Core operating profit and the corresponding margin, a non-IFRS measure, being the aggregate of gross profit and other
income, less selling and distribution costs and general and administrative expenses and unrealised hedging loss/(gain) on gold
loans and bullion forward contracts, which the Company believes is useful in gaining a more complete understanding of its

operational performance and the underlying trend of its core businesses

Adjusted gross profit margin, a non-IFRS measure, eliminates the effect of unrealised hedging loss/(gain) on gold loans and
bullion forward contracts, which the Company believes is useful in gaining a more complete understanding of its operational

performance and the underlying trends of its businesses

Dividend per share and dividend payout ratio derived from the profit in the second half of FY2012 after the Global Offering
Net cash from/(used in) operating activities less capital expenditures and net movements for gold loans

Note: The percentages calculated are subject to minor rounding differences

M

[0A]

(3)
(4)

TREEN R T BERLRR R RERE R EEATE
EEFREMBENG  HHERDHASUR —RRITH
MXEESEERESERSANRSREPER (@)
ggﬂﬁ%th%ﬂﬁﬁﬂbii@Tﬁ?ﬁ.@%%ﬁ&%iﬁﬂ'ﬂ?ﬂ%

ERAERNER RN REARMBREER AT NRTES
EERESERSANRERENGE (KE) WHE A2

ARG MRS EER T BEEERAREBENRRBS
BRIKSERSEREZHRBPER 2012 MBFET ¥ FER
SEEBME/ (TR RS FREREFMIRESEEFLH
M B EARIAMEENER
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Financial and Operational Highlights 813Kk & EHE

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
HKS$ million HKS million HK$ million HK$ million HKS$ million
As at 31 March W3 A318 HEET BRET HEET HEET HEERT
Non-current asset FRBEE 2,156.0 3,441.6 4,262.8 7,0383 6,670.4
Current assets REBEE 45,2583 39,777.0 57,554.3 54,082.7 49,005.0
Current liabilities REEE 14,218.0 84128 22,506.9 19,879.9 18,764.0
Net current assets REVEEFEE 31,040.3 31,364.2 35,047.4 34,202.8 30,241.0
Net assets BEEFE 29,573.0 33,860.7 38,452.4 40,540.8 35,749.9
Total assets BEERE 47,4143 43,218.6 61,817.1 61,121.0 55,675.4
Inventories FE 29,694.2 27,3148 42,543.7 39,797.6 31,376.5
Bank deposits and cash equivalents® $R{TIERKRIBEZEY© 10,004.8 8,330.5 9,971.9 8,477.5 13,001.4
Bank borrowings RITER 9,000.6 1,000.0 6,299.6 6,750.6 7,920.0
Gold loans EEEE 5,806.6 4,835.7 10,786.8 8,338.3 6,513.3
Net debt/(cash)® B8, (Re)FHEe 4,802.4 (2,494.8) 7,145 6,611.4 1,431.9
Net assets per share (HK$) BREEFECER) 3.0 34 3.8 4.1 3.6
Net gearing ratio"”) FELREGELERD 162% N/ATEMA® 18.5% 16.3% 4.0%
Inventory turnover period (days)?  FEEEH (X)© 271 242 276 320 279
Return on equity!"? & NEE: R 22.2% 16.8% 19.4% 13.7% 8.3%
(5)  Included bank balances and cash, pledged bank deposits and short-term bank deposits (5) BERTEBRRRS  BEFRTERRERRITER
(6)  Aggregate of bank borrowings and gold loans, net of bank deposits and cash equivalents (6) MITERRBLEEZLFINRRTEARBESEEY)
(7)  Aggregate of bank borrowings and gold loans, net of bank deposits and cash equivalents, divided by total equity (7) RITERREBSEEZRBEURRTERARRSEEY) R
SRR
(8)  The Group had a net cash position as at 31 March 2013, and therefore the net gearing ratio was not applicable (8) AEER2013F3IANBERFREMRR  WIELEBLE
I FE A
(9)  Being inventory balance, excluding packing materials, at the end of the year divided by cost of goods sold for the year, (9) BERFELHK(TEELLEMR) RUFREERS  BEU
multiplied by 365/366 365/366
(10)  Being profit for the year divided by total equity at the end of the year (10) BIERREFIBRAF RERAZE
Note: The percentages calculated are subject to minor rounding differences Mzt Bt B RREERENER
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For the year ended 31 March BE3A31ALEE 2012 2013 2014 2015
Mainland China - Jewellery Business  H1[El Py ith - BR B 3£ 7
SSSG EEHERE 31.9% (2.9)% 18.6% (16.1)% (10.3)%
SSS Volume Growth EEEEERE 13.5% (5.1)% 33.6% (16.0)% (8.9)%
Hong Kong and Macau EHEREMN
SSSG EEHERE 48.5% (3.8)% 20.2% (32.8)% (21.7)%
SSS Volume Growth EEHEEE 29.5% 2.5% 40.3% (27.7)% (23.9)%
Retail sales volume (unit) $HE (1)
Mainland China R EL R it 9,248,000 9,888,000 14,556,000 13,637,000 13,280,000
Hong Kong, Macau and &8 BRAREMTS 3,225,000 3,861,000 6,109,000 4,902,000 3,966,000
other markets
As at 31 March W3A31A 2012 2013 2014 2015
POS network SEZBLE
Mainland China A B At 1,532 1,731 1,965 2,124 2,179
Jewellery POS HEZEH 1,448 1,640 1,828 1,992 2,057
Watch POS EERTER 84 91 137 132 122
Hong Kong, Macau and &8 BFREMTIS 95 105 112 123 126
other markets
Hearts On Fire Hearts On Fire - - - 10 14
Total ok 1,627 1,836 2,077 2,257 2,319

BABHREEBERAT 2016FFR
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In the face of the changing consumer preferences and uncertainties in the current HYEXSHNESERER TS IRRENT AR
market environment, we remain committed to sustainable development through R BMEERNEERSEBEERTEE
adoption of proactive and integrated approach with specific strategies further outlined R BRSAUTHEE

in the following five main areas:
P22-34 m v % '
Market
Development Hm o
AR "] [

P 35-45
Customer Service and
Marketing

BER®R
T 15 4

P 46-52

Products and
Production
EmREE

P 53-59

Operations and
Management
EEREHE

P 60-75
Financials

BT
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Management Discussion and Analysis &2 &5 EE 5 4

M1l Market Development
@ THBRE

The luxury retail market is challenging this year amid volatile macroeconomic
environment in Greater China. In response to these headwinds, we are taking
a pragmatic and proactive approach to reinforce our leading position in the
jewellery market.
FRPEZRREBRERDEE  SEmTEMSSFOHHEERE - HHZENR
o RMRIBEREBNREE » BHOZEERMERENSNELM

While strengthening our foothold across the Greater China region, we are extracting
more online-to-offline synergies and innovative channels to expand our customer base
and satisfy our evolving customers’ preferences through our “Smart+" initiatives.

Strategies in Mainland China
More selective and targeted approach in POS opening

Focus on store differentiation to target different customer segments, uplift brand
image and enhance customer experience

- Explore e-commerce opportunities and other new sales channels

Strategies in Hong Kong, Macau and other markets
Enhance store productivity through POS consolidation

Expand footprint in overseas market to grasp opportunities from the booming
Chinese outbound tourism

22 Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited Annual Report 2016
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Revenue and SSSG

Revenue by reportable segment
R 2|DEB DB ETE

For the year ended 31 March & Z3H31B L FE
(HK$ million E &7 7T)

77,407.1
80,000
YoY change
64,277.0 [Eil:4-2(4
57,4339 56,591.5
60,000 365711 TTT—v12.0%
v11.3%
40,000 6.0%
v14.9%
20,000
4.88.5%
0
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
SSSG
BEHELER
6.6%
Q Q4
-13.1%
-26.9%
-29.2% -23.1%

-23.8%

-25.8%
-28.6%

-50.2%

FY2015
201581 BUF B

-27.3%

FY2016

2016 BUFE

« Mainland China market contributed over 50% of the Group’s revenue in FY2016

and such contribution has been increasing over the past 3 years.

- Backed by the increasing urbanisation and a rising middle-income class in

Mainland China, we are still confident about the long-term growth potentials in

the region in spite of the moderation of its economic growth.

EXEREEHEER

I Mainland China — Jewellery business F1 B At — BRET37%
I Mainland China — Watch business F1 Bl At — $E§% 375
[ Hong Kong, Macau and other markets &8 - P9 & HAtiis

. Hearts On Fire*

* Acquired on 31 August 2014 7220148 31 HEEA

—-O- Mainland China — Jewellery business R Bl — BRE 55
—-O- Hong Kong and Macau &5 K& RF9

SSSGin FY2016
R2016 B FEERMEEHEHR
Mainland China — Jewellery business

Bl — BRE TS

10.3%

Hong Kong and Macau & & & 8 F9

21.7%

. HEATER06REESHAED
50 A EE ¥ MESRHRBEIIFEE
EIZhn -

- BEPEAMLSEERMNE  BENHEL
ERBEURPERREN  RANRES
HRHEREWED -
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Management Discussion and Analysis &2 &5 EE 5 4

miHER

@1 Market Development

POS network TEMBLE
During FY2016
2014 2015 2016 A B &
Total Total Addition Reduction Net
As at 31 March R3A31A st st o WD PR
Mainland China FEIAHh 1,965 2,124 270 (215) 55 2,179
Jewellery POS" HRESEY 1,828 1,992 251 (186) 65 2,057
Watch POS BREEH 137 132 19 (29) (10 122
Hong Kong, Macau and 55 BMR 112 123 8 (5) 3 126
other markets Hithiss
Hearts On Fire * Hearts On Fire # - 10 4 - 4 14
Total* st 2,077 2,257 282 (220) 62 2,319
A Included Hearts On Fire POS in Mainland China A BIERPEIRHEH) Hearts On Fire B2,
# Included Hearts On Fire POS in the United States and Taiwan # BIEREE K A Hearts On Fire B2
#*  Excluded Hearts On Fire shop-in-shop and counter-in-shop % TBHEHearts On Fire J& 5 & JE R EHE

- A relatively higher number of our jewellery POS closures in the Mainland China - FARTEAMERNKESELAEER
Z TESERIHEREESEA (HlUE
of traditional distribution channels, such as department stores. ERA))EEMY -

market was recorded this year resulting from the consolidation and restructuring

- 5 POS were closed in Hong Kong and Macau and optimisation of our store - REBRBEMHBRASEZEHLSHER
{LIEHHERE

« 6 POSin Taiwan and South Korea were opened in other markets in total to capture . EHMHSPNAEREEMRETEE
LUREHE H SR IS REEI S -

productivity continued.

the opportunities arising from the boom of Chinese outbound tourism.

« A net of 10 watch POS in Mainland China were closed in FY2016 to enhance . 2016 B BN E A B A b SE BE BR 10 1B 2 8k

efficiency and productivity. ZEHURALEENERER -
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Mainland China — Jewellery Business PE Pt — REET

Revenue BR®
Revenue by operation model

REEEX B NWEERE

For the year ended 31 March BZ3A31H L FE

(HKS million B & T) Revenue RSV
YoY change  YoY change*

45,000 — 40,5163 PO ’9 v

El=4-2(4 [EEb &>

35911.2
31,855.6

35,000 30679.2 29,098.5 ~. 11.3% v5.2%

25,000 -
72.2% 79.4% 74.5% v 7.9% v57%

15,000 B Retail 28
4000 3% at Il Wholesale 3%
o * Measured at constant exchange rates X {8 EER5T &
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
- Our retail revenue represents sales from self-operated POS, e-commerce and other . BRAMNSELXHAEREELTEY -
direct channels while wholesale revenue represents sales and provision of services BEREMEZERENHEESE  MitEEE
to franchisees. AR MRS EE m R AR A
«  Adecline in revenue and RSV in FY2016 was mainly attributable to the softness in - 016 BFENEEBERTEBEMEALSE
spending by customers amid the slowdown of economic growth. ERHALERERE  SEENEESERT
B o
«  Our franchisee’s progressive adoption of the inventory ownership unification - RAMNEBEZESHREG—FEEERE
program, which brought about timing difference in revenue recognition, resulted T AREEERIBEESERTE U
in a wholesale revenue drop of 21.3% while RSV fell by only 4.1%. M BEEET BN 30mMEEEET &%
4.1% °

‘ ~ ' Superior shopping experience
G EHHBEWRE

We upgraded some of our POS to “high-end luxury” and “elegant” style
to cater for the escalating customer expectations. The uniqueness of our
POS, coupled with more personalised product offerings and services,
bring about a superior experience to customers who strive for exceptional
excellence.

EMRABIZEHZ[ZE IR SR KKRUADESTEH L ANEETH
2o EHNERENEEAERICNERRRYE  TRABREHNE
FIREERNEMES -
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Management Discussion and Analysis &2 E&f

af

Market Development
5% R

RSV and SSSG and POS network

o

FEERRAEHEERATERAL

y )
@ SSS by province*
BENEDHNEEHE"
@ @ 5 highest performance
sERSRE
Above average performance
BRFERE
% - @ Below average performance
o ERFHIRR
5 lowest performance
\i74 iz = sERERR
@ K - Number of POS
TEHYE
® y @@ N4 @
- @
@ <50 50-100 >100
- \ J
- Total number of jewellery POS
-
= RUETERHE
I
* To give a better understanding of the relationship between our sales performance and POS network, the above illustration included the performance of our franchised POS.
AE-STHEMNHEERRETERAEANEER A LORSERMONBETEHNHERR -
FY2016 RSV and POS by tier of cities FY2016 RSV and POS by operation model
BT AR D /Y BEEEABDH
2016 HFETEERTER 016 HFEZEERTER
POS RSV POS RSV
ZEY TEE 2EH TEE
jer | —? | | M Self-operated (Department store)
W Telms g g LEERAE)
i =4 Self-operated (Shopping mall)
B W Tern=% Ry
i Self- d (Standal
] ] TE'Z%I;AE‘M'S || [ | Ee%(?gg%)( tandalone store)
| Franchised fN%&
RSV YoY POS RSV YoY POS
change* movement change* m%ement
AR B AkEl: 28
Tier| —& - 5.5% 14 Ziegz;grétz?%t))epartmem store) v 10.2% v 5
. — . Self-operated (Shopping mall) - 22% ~45
Tier Il =4 v 6.9% 9 HE ()
Tier Il and others SeI‘f'-opelited (Standalone store) v 7.4% v 1
=R AM v 5.6% 42 EE(HHE)
Franchised v 4.1% - 26
* Measured at constant exchange rates 2 1HEEZE & ngg
« RSV performance in Tier | cities was more resilient as supported by a stable - —HBETHREERREERRRARERE

fundamental and consumer sentiment.

+ A net of 45 POS were opened in shopping malls during the year in light of the .

changing retail landscape in Mainland China.

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited Annual Report 2016
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Self-operated POS EETER

RSV per store by store age
BERIAINEETEE

140% - 131.2%
120% -
98.8%
100% 90.0% n
77.0% FY2016 RSV per annum:
80% HK$24.0 million®
2016 BEESFREME :
60% - 55.9% 240E BB
40%
20% -
0% \_
Less than 2 years!” 2-4 years 4-6 years 6-8 years 8 years or more Total
DR2EFO 2B4F AZ6F 6ZE8F 8FEH ML st
POS opening date BiJE B & 4/2014-3/2016 4/2012-3/2014 4/2010-3/2012 4/2008-3/2010 3/ ZOOEE &'%efme
POS TEE 311 276 258 143 298 1,286
%of POS TEEHALE 24.1% 21.5% 20.1% 11.1% 23.2% 100.0%

[ Ratio of annual sales per store to average SSS per store (1) For POS of age less than 1 year, sales is adjusted on an annualised basis JE# TR 1FHNTES 2 HERFILEERE

SIEEEHNERESEFHIREHEE 2t (2)  Included value-added tax (“VAT") L IEFIE{ER
SSSG
= (e g FY2016 2016 S B F
Rl R & SSSG 5SS Volume Growth
EEHEER E/EHERER
21.6%

10.3% -8.9%
N 21% /38%\ -1.8% -2.8%
hou :

Q1 Q2

Gem-set jewellery BRE $EHRE &

-23.5% SSSG RIS R ASP P EE

v10.4% HKS6,3003% T

(FY2015 2015 BA B4 £ : HK$6,600 # T )

-23.3%

-28.7%
Gold products EEE
-43.9% FY2015 F\g%%; gE . SSSG FEHER R ASP Fi5EME
201580 20165 3 S —
A v6.3% HKS3,200% ¢
-O- Gem-set jewellery ~ —(O— Gold products (FY2015 2015 BAEL £ [ : HK$3,300 3 7T )

HREEIRE EEEMR
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Management Discussion and Analysis &2 &5 EE 5 4

M1l Market Development
@ THBRE

Average quarterly sales and its contribution to annual sales

FHEEHEARASFEHERNERM

(HKS million B &35 7T)
31.8%

26.9%
22.9%

22.1%

6.6 6.7 6.8 7.1

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

« Our Q2 sales contribution in FY2016 outperformed as a result of the mini gold rush
triggered by the drop in international gold price in July and August 2015.

« Q4 of our financial year used to be our peak season where most of the festive
events, such as Chinese New Year and Valentine’s Day, fall in the quarter, yet in
FY2016, our Q4 performance was worse than our normal course of business due to
the sequential softness in the market.

Hearts On Fire in Mainland China
1£ B P th B9 Hearts On Fire

» Leveraging Chow Tai Fook’s extensive retail network and customer base, we
introduced Hearts On Fire, the premium diamond brand, to Mainland China.

« A net of 3 Hearts On Fire POS and 118 shop-in-shop and counter-in-shop were
opened during the year to cater for the sophisticated and design-oriented
customers.

FY2015 Average quarterly SSS
2015 BEFEFHEEREHE

FY2016 Average quarterly SSS
20168 BFEFHEEREHE

2015 MF EEEHERN FEHEENER

=0~ FY2015 Quarterly sales contribution to annual sales
-

FY2016 Quarterly sales contribution to annual sales

201681 BF EEE S ERRE F R EENER

KPR 206 BFEE —FEH2015F7
BZ8AEMESET BN/ N &M EE
HAGRFEEHESHREBRNER -

EMVBFEFNZTEBEREMNES
(RZBNHETBPNRBEHRFEREA
BTEFRUEEE) - BERARTETIRR
2016 MM FEENEENRRFMER -

BREAABRANSEREREETR X
P95 /= 4 88 5 iR h# Hearts On Fire S| A AR EY]
Aith o

I AP F 9 7E B 5% 3 {8l Hearts On Fire &2
F118 & IERIEASHE D EERE
STREmREE -

Hearts On Fire POS in Nanjing and shop-in-shop in Shenyang were opened during FY2016  1£ 2016 81 B FE A B 22 B 5% A9 Hearts On Fire TE& Zh AR 1A BRS BIsR & &
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* Sourced from Chow Tai Fook e-shop, Tmall and JD.com

Number of followers* B83E A 8 *

2,393,000

# Sourced from Official Sina Weibo, Tencent Weibo, WeChat
SR BRI - MARMERMEE SRS

Unique daily visitors" ‘P39S B 2IEE"

268,000

BER B A ARBAEBESE - RERRR

We integrated our online and offline resources to direct traffic to our distribution
channels through omni-channel strategy empowered by digital marketing.

Leveraging on our established e-commerce platforms and expanding e-tail
network, we recorded a remarkable sales performance on “Single’s Day”, the online
shopping festival in Mainland China, and were ranked No. 1 at Tmall in terms of
sales of jewellery.

We had an encouraging development in e-commerce this year through
strengthening the co-operation with existing online platforms and exploring other
new sales channels.

Adhering to the spirit in our core business, we are exploring other new platforms
to deliver seamless shopping experience to our customers.

With our solid e-commerce strategy, we were ranked No.1 in digital competence
out of all luxury brands in Mainland China according to L2’s Digital IQ Index in
2016.

RSV ZEE

51.7%"

A Measured at constant exchange rates

AR ERTE

As a % of respective RSV
EHEEZEET DT

2.3%

(FY2015 2015 B BUEF B : 1.5%)

EMEBSRLETER ZREHTSHE
& FIRERESRETINR

BEEFARFERTRARAKRHEER
BHER - RN E AR XEYERES
[FEARER | SRS LR SHE AR - AU 5 R T
BREEBHESE - -

FEBMNEEREERFASEHEBAEMA
FHERE  KAYUAEENSITHEERR
BEME -

ERFEEEBRNANRT - ROTEEEH
HEe AEFRHEZENVESERS-
REB2016F2YEEHESY  RMBEBE

ROBFEBERBETENBFAEESRE
RBERRE N BTE L

REIP M — EERET

S S

Mainland China — Watch Business

Revenue

For the year ended 31 March 8Z3 A31 HILFE

. = Revenue RSV
HKS mill 7
(HKS million & 78 70) YoY change  YoY change*
2,500 - 3 =
Bla:-414 B2 214
1,931.0
18148 —— +6.0% v3.4%
2,000 -
1,500
1,000
500
* Measured at constant exchange rates
o RAERERH

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
EXPRTEERRARFRALBERTE -

BEHEEE B16%mE E 2 % m
27.9% °

+  Revenue and RSV performance dropped slightly on a year-on-year basis.

«  SSSGwas 1.6% with SSS volume up by 27.9%.

BREHREEEBRAT 2016FFH
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Hong Kong, Macau and other markets & B RHEMTHS
Revenue =E L

Revenue by operation model

REBEXEDNE X

For the year ended 31 March 8 Z3 A31 AL FE

(HKS$ million B &5 7T) YoY change
40,000 35,258.9 D441

~14.9%
26,034.0 /
22,165.7

v 16.1%

27,1255
30,000 - 24,554.7

20,000 99.5%

96.0%

99.4%
RLe . I Retail &

10,000

~191.0% W Wholesale #t3%

0.5% 0.6%

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

«  The decline in revenue in FY2016 was largely affected by the stagnant consumer - 016 BFELEEETHRTIET BRMEH

sentiment and a decline in Mainland tourist visitations in Hong Kong and Macau, BRI AMBEZROEE  MEPL
where the impact was more prominent in the touristic area. REEMSHNFERK -

«  Apart from boosting store productivity in Hong Kong and Macau markets, we - BRRABETESHNEHERS  BMRRE

expanded abroad to capture the Chinese outbound tourism opportunities and STGURBEFEERRETSEREDN
achieved a 26.4% RSV growth in other markets this year. B SERAEMTSENTEERE264%
R -
+  To enhance our product portfolio and widen our product offerings, we introduced - BAELERAGNELEERESE  KAAXREF
18 Hearts On Fire shop-in-shop and counter-in-shop to our existing retail network WRIRAE K ZE B4 4B FH 5% 18 & Hearts On
during the year. Fire J& /5 R JE A EAE ©

B X W8

CHOW TAl Fq o

New POS were opened in Shin Kong Mitsukoshi in Taiwan and Hearts On Fire shop-in-shop in K11, Tsim Sha Tsui during the year

FRE/BH N = MR TER RIERIDIE K B Hearts On Fire 5+ &
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FY2016 RSV and POS by geography 4 N\
SESSNEEERTE :
2016 MBFEEBBESHTEERTER Hong Kong and Macau market performance in FY2016
POS RSV [T N
BEY BHE BERTHR 2016 MBI EEHRR
| ] | ] Hong Kong &%
| | Macau P9
™ B Othermarkets B4 2 Retail sales of jewellery industry in Hong Kong* vi17.1%
e . 0
RSV YoY POS s 3 = W LS
changoe* movement E /% Eﬂi;%ﬁé E‘E{E#
ZEE =
FEte#x 25 . .
Hong Kong 7% 165% w4 Number of Mainland tourists” to:
Macau 9 v 21.8% a1 ZFTHEN R EE A"
Other markets .
HibHiE 426.4% -6 Hong Kong & & v8.6%
* Measurgd at constant exchange rates
RIBREENE Macau J&F9 v3.7%
FY2016 RSV and POS by touristic area in Hong Kong and Macau
016 B EEEERRERSSNNEEERTED Our Hong Kong and Macau performance in FY2016
POS RSV G 3| T2 A B =y
os 2 IR A 2016 M SRR E R
u B Touristic area il & YoY change in customer traffic at POS: 0
| B Otherarea Hftrith & EBEEAEE LS v26.0%
RSV YoY POS
change movement
ZEE TED
Rt RSV settled by China UnionPay / RMB 52.6%
. N R (FY2015
Touristic area* Jifi & v - LR EIRE ARMEEENTEE 2015 BB
Other area Eftbith & ~2.8% v3 56.9%)
A Touristic area includes Causeway Bay,
Tsim Sha Tsui, Mong Kok, Yau Ma Tei, Shatin,
Sheung Shui, Hong Kong International
Airport and Macau
R REEEY  RPE A \_ )
SRR D~ Bk - BBEIRESS R
#  Being the value of retail sales of jewellery, watches and clocks, and valuable gifts in Hong Kong. Data are sourced from Census ¥ BERGRHEH BRREELANEBNTEEHEEE-
and Statistics Department of Hong Kong YR B EBBFGTE
A Data are sourced from Commerce and Economic Development Bureau of Hong Kong, and the Macau Statistics and Census Service A BEREEBUBREABRBERMKTEEER
SSSG in Hong Kong and Macau BREEHEER

4.0%

FY2016 2016 BF B (&

-23.8%

O
-23.8% -24.9%
-32.3%

3 FY2015 FY2016
654% 2015 TR 20168 N E

—O- Gem-setjewellery  —(— Gold products
REEREH HEEM

SSSG SSS Volume Growth
EEHERR E/EHEER

21.7% -23.9%

Gem-set jewellery RS &1 & &
SSSG [El/E S E IR R ASP P EE

v19.3% HkS$12,1003% %

(FY2015 2015 B B4 [ : HK$12,100 % 7T )

Gold products EE = f
SSSG [El/E S E IR R ASP P EE

v17.6% HKS5,700:% T

(FY2015 2015 FF BL 4F [ : HK$5,300 % 7T )

BREHREEEBRAT 2016FFH
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Hearts On Fire

Hearts On Fire

Revenue EER
Revenue by operation model ~ ~N
REEEXESHEER .
=8
For the year ended 31 March £ 3 A31 HILFE POS network % £ Rt
(HKS milion E A8 %) Yo change* As at 31 March 2016 Total
& 55 * 2
755.4 Blag R201653 A 31H Tt
800  88.5%
202 Taiwan & 12
600 7 The United States 32 2
Total #25t 14
400
W Retail 2% Retail partner locations ZEB /LB 544
200 4 B Wholesale #£3% \_ )
* Acquired on 31 August 2014
201458 A31HEBA

2015 2016

+  The revenue of Hearts On Fire, if consolidated on an annualised basis, would
increase 2.6%.

« A net of 4 POS were opened in Taiwan and 20 net additions of retail partner
locations were mainly in Europe and Ireland in FY2016.

«  Around 70% of the retail partner locations are in North America and the rest are
mainly situated in the United Kingdom, Ireland, Caribbean and Asia-Pacific region.

«  We are honoured to partner strategically with the renowned United States luxury
department stores, Saks Fifth Avenue, this year, with 12 additions of retail partner
locations. We endeavour to seek more opportunities for introducing this premium
brand and its perfectly cut diamonds to our customers.

Synergies from Integration with Hearts On Fire
Ed Hearts On Fire 2 & 89 1% B 3 &

ZLUEE LS B Hearts On Fire A& ¥ 48
& EF2.6% °

2016 RFEREEFRRIBEEES
20%%%%5%)3%&%2%&@%&?
e o

#70% NEEBEERMMEMMNLE 8T
AlFEZMRKEE - 6 - $tiERDE
K& o

FARMEEZEZREETE A A Saks
Fifth Avenue X B B RE M S EB £ - 1R
NEZEBHEHNVE  RMOTZE
FZMEnBEEENNSARERAESET
SEEREAR °

+  Rollout in Mainland China, Hong Kong and Macau: Hearts On Fire was brought to Mainland China, Hong Kong and Macau

via “shop-in-shop” and “counter-in-shop” strategies. As at 31 March 2016, we have a total of 5 POS and 136 shop-in-shop/

counter-in-shop in those regions.

Complementary to our product offerings: We introduced the exclusive and unique Hearts On Fire jewellery into our existing

distribution network. The strategy complements Chow Tai Fook brand by widening the spectrum of our product offerings and

uplifting our brand equity.

+  Procurement cost efficiencies: We enhanced our cost efficiencies by leveraging on our strong production and procurement

capabilities.

- RABABEERER  HeartsOnFire A[EFEIRIERNEME ] o KBIEEEHE A - FEREP - R2016F

3318 RfREEHELESESELE R 136BIEFETERNEME -

- BERMMERAES RMESRRBISH Hearts On Fire RESIARMBREENZERR - EXRIUTLEAABNERES

AR A H M R IEEE
RERAYE  EBRMBRNEEMRBED - BREEMAORANE
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[=] [s] Major Risk Factors and Control Measures
[=] B TERREZRREGEE

Competition Ordinance in Hong Kong
Hong Kong Competition Ordinance has come into effect on 14 December 2015. If we
violate the Ordinance, our business and brand image will be adversely affected.

The Group always has its own gold-pricing mechanism. For the compliance with the
Ordinance, we have reviewed our gold-price mechanism and business agreements,
especially on franchising and distribution. We have also updated our related policies
and procedures with reference to legal opinions.

A Challenging Macroeconomic Environment
A challenging macroeconomic environment and uncertainty over a prolonged
period of time could adversely affect our sales and growth.

In response to these challenges, we are optimising and consolidating our retail
network to reinforce our leading position in the jewellery market. We have also
adopted a more selective and targeted approach in planning new POS openings
thorough market research and pre-opening forecast analysis, and discontinued the
operations of low performing retail stores.

Franchisees Management

Apart from the self-operated POS, we also leverage on the local resources of our
franchisees to expand our retail footprint. If we cannot manage the franchisees
effectively, it will adversely affect our business and reputation.

We have optimised financial settlement with franchisees by unifying inventory
ownership. Meanwhile, we have strengthened the monitoring on franchisees,
including implementation of whistleblowing system and special audit programme in
franchised POS.

EECHRIHN)
EBCRBHEAYN2015F 128148 EM -
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#ER -

BB R R ERE
REASEUENEERERTHAMPREE - 7
BEH R MM ERIERBR AR -

REHZERE  BEMNEBELRESEE
WE BHOZEERMERKREDTSHARL
i o BB ST RFAEAFR D4 - B
REVERUENSE MM ERRTER M
BRRREBEES o

mEmEE

BREEZEMN  BRNTERNEFNBS
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B BHAREERBERREETE -
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Major Social and Environmental Initiatives
FTEHERRKRER

The Group has a set of business codes and pricing policies in place in compliance
with the Anti-monopoly Law of the People’s Republic of China and the
Competition Ordinance of Hong Kong in respect of retail pricing, procurement
and outsourcing. Our pricing committee is responsible for formulating our
pricing strategies and policies in respect of our products as well as supervising
and coordinating the implementation of our pricing policies and procedures by
the relevant departments within the Group. Our pricing committee determines
the price of our gold products by taking into account the international gold price
and our operating costs, including costs of materials, design and craftsmanship.
As for procurement, quotations from not less than three suppliers are compared
in accordance with the Group’s procurement guidelines. Outsourcing of
infrastructure projects is arranged through tender process in accordance with the
Group's tender policy to ensure fair competition. Suppliers are required to sign an
agreement acknowledging and undertaking to comply with the business ethics
policies of the Group. Internally, the Group also has enhanced the education of
business ethics for various business departments.

The Group applies new technologies in production, logistics and retail. It
successfully incorporated Radio-frequency identification (RFID) and Internet
of Things (loT) technologies into the Inventory Control System (ICS). Through
the use of RFID-enabled and loT-based smart devices such as Smart Tray, it
further expands the application of big data in jewellery business. The Group has
also participated in seminars to promote the sustainable development of the
industry in the era of “Internet +" by sharing with industry peers the innovative
technology and application of RFID.

The Group is committed to training professionals of the jewellery industry.
The Group organised various programmes in co-operation with educational
institutions, including the career orientation programme of the Education Bureau
of Hong Kong, training programmes of vocational training schools in Wuhan and
Shunde, and the “Michelangelo Plan” jointly organised by CTS Expo Education, Le
Arti Orafe Jewellery School and the Group. The Michelangelo Plan was organised
to provide a platform for teaching, practice and technology exchange for the
jewellery schools in Mainland China and job opportunities for the students.

Awards and Recognition

Being listed on the Hang Seng Corporate Sustainability Benchmark Index in 2014
and 2015.

Received “Corporate Citizenship Logo (Enterprise)” from Hong Kong Productivity
Council for three consecutive years.

Received “5 Years + Caring Company Logo” and “2013-16 Caring Company” Logo
from The Hong Kong Council of Social Services under the names of Chow Tai
Fook Jewellery Company Limited and Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
respectively.
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Customer Service and Marketing
BERBERTIGHEE

With our 87 years of brand
heritage as backbone, we
leverage the emerging
marketing opportunities
while continue our effort
in enhancing customer
experience along different
stages of shopping cycle.

BEE 87 FHMMEEE - R
RREHEHSEREENE
B IS HE R IR T T R BB I R
RIEERER -

Our brand “Chow Tai Fook”, serves as one of our most important assets, and with [AABE]nEERRMREENEEZ— KB
this prestige brand image vividly recallable by customers through our 87 years of S7TERNWERNERE RENEERRRTE
heritage and our branding campaigns, we have taken a step further to lever on the FHES BMELFE—S TIEEFETS
emerging marketing opportunities while continuing our effort in enhancing customer EERENEE  THEERANTEEYRE
experience along different stages of shopping cycle. BREEEE R -

P43 P 36-37

Stay connected with our members
and offer them different kinds of
exclusive and privileged lifestyle
experience

HEERIFED  RftMiRESE
EESmRNEERR

— Focus on effective advertising and promotional
campaigns, while continuing to strengthen our brand
awareness and prestige image
—FHBIRFAENEEREREES  Z—HHEHE
BEIMEREMWREEAIEREERR

P 38-40

— Extract online-to-offline synergies by collaborating
with various business partners and in tapping
customers

HZEEBBHEE  BREESEEEH  BRAL
AT 15 B PR
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Customer Service and Marketing
BEERSRHiGHEE

PHEN WEBSTER

HEARTS ON FIRE

PHEN W

CHOW TAI FOOK

The Cullinan H nv Tai Fook

E * s
5

GENERATION
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. Preview of annual high jewellery collection

Hosted a private preview of our annual high jewellery collection in Hong Kong in
April 2016 and unveiled the one-of-a-kind “Le Labyrinthe Artistique” Collection.
More than 400 guests were invited to attend the event. The collection was inspired
by the great abstract artists, celebrating iconic geometric oeuvres of the modern
period.

A total of 13 breath-taking jewellery sets of the collection will be put up for auction
in November 2016.

. “A Heritage in Bloom”

Our Cullinan Masterpiece “A Heritage in Bloom” was unveiled in September 2015.

The masterpiece is centered upon 24 diamonds, with the largest piece in 104
carats D-colour internally flawless, cut from the Cullinan Heritage, an exceptionally
rare 507 carat rough diamond we acquired in 2010.

Expo Milano 2015

We were invited as the official global partner of the China Pavilion at Expo Milano
2015.

“Expo Milano 2015" Collection was showcased in the Expo in response to the
Pavilion’s core concept of “Heaven, Earth, Humans and Harmony”.

. Collaboration with Stephen Webster for jewellery design

As an ongoing effort in brand building and market development, Hearts On Fire
and Stephen Webster, an acclaimed British jewellery designer, join hands to
offer opportunity to five elite Rock Vault designers (the British Fashion Council’s
fine jewellery initiative) to create breath-taking jewellery with Hearts On Fire’s
diamonds.

Their masterpieces were showcased in the “IGNITE INSPIRATION EXHIBITION" at
K11 Art Mall in Hong Kong in November 2015.

Hearts On Fire “Ignite Something” marketing campaign

First ever global marketing campaign, started in the U.S. and Taiwan in September
2015, followed by Mainland China and Hong Kong in November.

A total of 7 stories were released in rotation throughout the year to strengthen the
brand image and raise the brand awareness.

. Generation Y marketing campaign

Promote mix and match of fashion jewellery to gauge the needs of younger
generation.

Collaborate with key opinion leader (KOL) to launch featured promotional video of
the series, and received over 2 million views in the first 20 days following the launch.

. “Freely on Silk Road” campaign

Successful candidates started their journey in July 2015 and arrived in Italy, the
final destination, in September 2015.

More than 400 million views were recorded and forward actions in social media
platforms.

The second “Freely on Silk Road” campaign - “Revisit of Maritime Silk Road” was
launched in March 2016.

6.
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Customer Service and Marketing
BERERTIGHEE

Store Traffic

CoIIaboration with Ctrip to boost target customer traffic from
online to offline

Target the market of Mainland tourists of Individual Visit Scheme.

Collaborated with Ctrip, a leading online travel agent in Mainland China, to launch
“Shopping Chic with Ctrip” in various regions in Mainland China and overseas
to tap the large potential of the consumer group. Ctrip customers, upon online
booking of travel service, will receive information of our stores and will be directed
to the nearest one.

We were ranked top among all jewellery retail brands with the highest rebate
amount according to Ctrip.

95 &=

I)IL

HEEARRESE BERKRLIAKT
MERBEESIR

ER M EA B BRE TS o
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Collaboration with “Ctrip”
boost target customer traffic
from online to offline

HEEARRASE BRAKRLE
IR THRERESIR

\
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—Collaboratlon with Miaolie to provide new shopping experience
at shopping mall

Collaborated with Miaolie, an application of Alibaba, to provide customers with a
new shopping experience through the combination of the Internet and retailing
to enhance the interaction with users, in response to the new commercial mode of
shopping mall under the emerging “Internet +" trend.

Customers receive updates of the promotional activities in the shopping malls
through Miaolie before shopping, and receive the latest news of the events of our
stores while shopping in the mall. With the indoor navigation function, they will
be directed to the nearby store. In addition, customers may enjoy convenient and
one-stop shopping experience through mobile payment.

We are currently one of the best retailers in MiaoJie.
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Collaboration with MiaolJie to
provide new shopping experience
at shopping mall

HEESERESRATEYRER

N

Collaboration with Baidu Nuomi to expand in local life services MEERKEE FEAREERS

market M5

.+ Collaborated with Baidu Nuomi, a mobile group purchasing platform under - HEFE(RREANDPEESSIZ)ET
Baidu (the world’s largest search engine in Chinese language), to make use of the HEBEBTAEERREE  EHEE
search and navigating functions of Baidu in expanding our coverage to potential FER EMEERMNERES  E—%
customers in the young generation. MREFE—RNWEBEEEH -

Customers who enjoy local services through Baidu Nuomi may search our - EEEERRERREZARMRBENBER

promotion activities at store level and purchase coupons online. They will be Fo AR S RMAMIEEEEEEE
directed to the nearby POS for offline purchases. ERLIBEEERS  UHSIEEMES
EHETRTEE -

4 N
8 K Tig X é _-|'=|-_!|!FF- *12 ¥ 19 - &£ & Collaboration with Baidu
SZ [l nuomi.cc Nuomi to expand in local life
services market
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Customer Service and Marketing
BERERTIGHEE

Store events organised to attract customer traffic BRMEFRBRSITR

«  Customer traffic is essential to our retail business, and it has been our continuous - BERUZTEEXBALHEE  KMTEEBRM
endeavor to attract customer traffic via store promotional events, especially at EEEEE  FAREARGHEBFERERA
heavy traffic areas and during holiday occasions, to engage with our customers in HREBURSIZR  HETEE -

an interactive and dynamic way.

Shopping Experience B
Innovations in store image RIFRIE W&

« Introduced brand new store layout with a refreshing store image. One of our latest . ERBEHEESERISEHERGEA—
store designs segmented our store area and product display by customer needs o BRIEP—BHPIERFTIREEERM
instead of the traditional way which segmented products by the type of materials FESNEEMMEESPISERRRIE
used. i o
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Experiential POS BEERIE

With “Smart+” concept in mind, our experiential POS aim at infusing energetic, - ERTsmart+] 2 RMANBREEBE

stylish and innovative elements in our stores through technological devices BRRFEEBERRER  BEMNPIEEATE
and infrastructure, so that customers can interact and enjoy unique shopping BB RIERER EEFEREAET
experience. As at 31 March 2016, we had 18 experiential POS in Mainland China. ERBE—E_MIBYER - N2016F3A

318 RMRPEAREEE 18EERHE -
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Customer Service and Marketing
BERERTIGHEE

Smart Tray

Our self-developed Smart Tray enables us to understand customer preferences and
tastes by automatically capturing of valuable data such as age, gender, nationality
and average customer serving time during a customer visit. From there, we can

generate conversion rate and other analysis.

«  All these findings can enhance our ability in formulating strategies and making
decisions in areas such as product offerings, product display, inventory stocking
and staff development and training etc.

+ We had Smart Tray in place in 74 POS in Hong Kong and Macau as at 31 March
2016. Below are the highlights from the data collected from the Smart Tray during
the year:

HEER

- BEMBETHENSREERRTEERR L
ERYE  IRFEFNFR MR BE
RPHBEERBERS  HBHERMTHER
BRI - Bl HPAETHEELR
R EM AT

ELBBAREMPET KB RECRMAY
EmfE ERRETAFX BEEERETH
REBEINEFEZIRE °

HZE2016F3 8310 RHEREBRIEM
NAEASELEESHEERR - BEEFR
BRERNMCENBERENT :

-~

Conversion rate ranking E{L & &

1 Mainland China g 53%

R P 3t

2 H K
2 46%

3 Overseas

~

The conversion rate for female
customers is higher than that of
male customers
THEENELEREEETNS

o @ : —
4 Tawan “ Conversion rate E 1t %

Customers from Mainland China yield
the highest conversion rate, followed by
that of customers from Hong Kong

Customers with age
41-50yield the highest

54% conversion rate

M50 RN EREEBZHNE
tExEES

46%

%

TEAMETHNELERRS 42%
HRXAREEBEE
K <20 21-30 31-40 41-50 51-60 >60
Convenient payment service B B 3214 BR 75
«  We continue to enhance customers’ shopping experience. Through co-operating - BEMTEHRAEZBYER HXNBE(2

with Alipay (the world’s largest mobile payment merchant) and WeChat payment
platform, convenient payment services are provided in our POS to simplify the
transaction processes. As such, we are able to lay a foundation for our online-to-
offline operation through connecting online to offline activities.

« As at 31 March 2016, approximately one tenth of our POS support WeChat
payment or Alipay payment services.
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Customer Relationship Management BEEREEE
B ﬁ_ _” g o} il .« To stay connected with our - AHESERFHERBROGMAEZREGS

members and provide them with WAETEERNEBRY - RMR2MHMRE
exclusive experience that match ERUBFMMLES TR -

with their privileged status, we
cater their needs in every detail
and invited them to various
activities and events.

Mainland China A Bl (A it

Number of members
2EHE

1,104,000

s Members’ Repeat Purchase as a % of RSV
! . EEBHEETEEZAEAL
W | . 0
= In New Zealand o W 5 2 9 oO /0
« AR : ’
. Lol E i Number of Fans members

WHESHAE

7,873,000

Hong Kong and Macau & 7 & BP9

(FY2015 2015 fA B4 [ : 29.2%)

Number of members

2E8%A
362,000

Members’ Repeat Purchase as a % of RSV

SEBHBLTEAEZENL

26.0%

(FY2015 2015 BA BL4E £ : 19.3%)
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Management Discussion and Analysis &2 &5 EE 5 4

Customer Service and Marketing
BERERTIGHEE

[=] [s] Major Risk Factors and Control Measures
EIE) t=ARERREHEE

Intellectual Property Protection

Our business heavily relies on our intellectual property, particularly our trademarks.
We strive for avoiding of infringement and unauthorised use in counterfeit products.
The unauthorised use of our trademarks in counterfeit products could harm our
brand image and reputation, which could have a material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects.

To safeguard the Group’s brand and reputation, particularly against damage by
counterfeit products, we have taken legal actions against brand infringement.
We have also registered certain of our intellectual property according to our
internal policies, collected relevant information regarding infringement or possible
infringement of our intellectual property from customers, suppliers, business partners
and employees, and continuously improved our anti-counterfeiting techniques.

Customer Loyalty

Customer loyalty is critical to our success. We would lose our customers if we are
ineffectively manage membership programme, which could have a material adverse
effect on our sales and growth.

We have offered more personalised experiences to customers e.g. organising family
activities and inviting customers to join movie premieres. We continuously improved
our membership programme, and have a specialised team providing concierge
services to members.

During the year, We engaged professional consulting companies to conduct
approximately 4,400 mystery shoppers inspections in Hong Kong and Mainland
China to ensure high standard services have been continuously provided by our sales
staff.

M ERIRE
HMWEBEEEMPARERE - LEHRERK
MHOBERE - RMNBHBRZEIEE - UARF
WREEREAER - 5 RMNBRAEEK
BANAEER  WTHRSEBERMNNEEE
RERE  EMERMANER - BHRR
RERENAZERERTRZE -

ATRERMOREREE  LEHRBRE
BERNEE  HMRIARNEREFRE
HERTH HMERELQTAMERER
FETHENMBERSM - BT - #E
B EBEEBHEETRERERTER
FERRE. - 3 B BT R E B BRI o

BELWE
BEELBEHEMNEBANERHEEZ - &
EMAREERNEESEHE > TERAE
FIHBRMVHERERELTINHE -

HMMEERMAEMNESHNEMLEEE - f
m:ERRERETERBERFP2NER
BRI - RN TR ERMNEESTE I
BEREEXEARASERTTERE -

EMETEXEERBAQATANFRES BN
B R 3 L R AT 494,400 B R B K E
BERMNHEEAESRTEERBKF -
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/‘\{ Major Social and Environmental Initiatives

FTEHERBRRER

The Group has reviewed the confidential policies and procedures that protect our
customers’ personal data collected through the Company’s website, membership
programme and social media platforms to ensure that all relevant departments
have properly complied with the policies of the Group regarding collection,
accessibility, storage and removal of personal information and prevention of
information leakage.

In accordance with the Trade Descriptions Ordinance of Hong Kong, the Group
has provided true product descriptions and information through channels
of the Group (including points-of-sale, websites, social media platforms and
advertisements) and during the sale process. In accordance with the new
standards issued by the Standardization Administration of the People’s Republic
of China, during the year, the Group standardised the labels as “pure gold” on all
gold jewellery sold in the points-of-sale located in Mainland China.

Awards and Recognition

Our frontline staff received several awards in 2015 Service and Courtesy Award
held by Hong Kong Retail Management Association, including Winner in the
Watch and Jewellery Category, Outstanding Performance Award (Watch and
Jewellery Category), Excellent Service Star and The Best Team Performance Silver
Award.

Our frontline staff from the airport branch were awarded for their outstanding
service in 2015 Customer Service Excellence Programme Award organised
by Hong Kong International Airport, including individual and corporate team
awards.

Our Tseung Kwan O branch and Tsing Yi branch were awarded Customer Service
Excellence Award in Mystery Shopper Programme 2015 held by the property
management department of the MTR for their excellent performance in staff

appearance, staff attitude, sales skills and shopping site housekeeping etc.

FERBT LM  SEFE - HX
HERTaREREEAEHNRER
FIARE » UREREHBHEEENT
SERREBERVNERNE  HER
R BERREFMFERORRE  BHLLE
BN o

BIrEB(EmHABEA)  EEEHE
HERZEHN AAHAE XK
BraREEmS) RESAERTY
EHEENEMHARER - RIEE
FRELCERZSGNHRE  £F
FREFERNGBZEHHENESE
Hha—RAIEE ] BE -

RIE KA

AGETEEBZEEEH SR
015 FHERBREBSIBKRE - B
FEEKNKEEARNSE & BHR
RR(EHRRKEEAR) - BERK
2 ERRERBEBRRE -

REBEIREIS RN 2015 FEERE
ERBAED  BEDITHARET
BEBNRBEREARREEBERK

A% o

RBE YL 2015 F @ HER
FED BERRBERDITNREEL
S FEEE EmHEERG - EH
BEZLNERENRBES  BEE
HEREERBAE] -
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Management Discussion and Analysis BBz R D47

Products and Production
EmREE

Building on our strength in the mass luxury jewellery market, we constantly broaden

our product offerings to satisfy customer needs.
Further develop gem-set jewellery products and maintain our market leadership
in gold products, through more advanced craftsmanship and better fulfillment of

customers’ emotional appeal.

Introduce high-end and one-of-a-kind auction jewellery collections to further uplift

our brand equity.

Introduce diamond fashion jewellery collections and licensed collections through
collaboration with well-known movies, animations or characters to offer creative

and diversified product selection to customers.

Continue develop wedding jewellery products to seize market opportunities.

- Capitalise on our vertically integrated business model and unique technology to
provide reliable, innovative and distinctive product offerings to our customers.
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With 87 years’ heritage in
promoting jewellery culture
and enhancing industry
standards, our product design
and craftsmanship have been
evolving all the time. These
enable us to create unique
products for customers.
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Product offerings

As a world-class jewellery specialist, we provide a wide range of products to our
customers. Our products are categorised into four types namely gem-set jewellery,

gold products, platinum/karat gold products and watches.

Our jewellery product selection covers high-end jewellery, mass luxury jewellery and

youth line products.

Revenue by product

RERIDWEXTE
For the year ended 31 March 23 A31B L FE

EmEa

EMNAERAENREER - BETREHERX
ERNER - KMBERD BHRERREH -

BEdER - HE KEERMEBROAER -

B ERNhERFEER-

EMRESTCNAREENHER

BEEEK

e St = Revenue RSV
(HKS million FT&#3T) YoY change YoY change*
80,000 - 77,4071 eS| ZEE

Bt Rt

1 56,571.1 57,4339 paclis 12.0% 9.4%
50,000 1 ' ' Gold products and gem-set

- v 10.8% +8.0%
40,000 U jewellery contribute more
o000 ] 7% <226% than 80% of our revenue.

- = O =2 A8 L 2 N

s o ESEREKEERENHAR
= k& S > e Al
MERBBNAKEZEEE -
B Gem-set jewellery BRE SR #i & B
M Gold products EEE
M Platinum/Karat gold products 1€ K& E R
Watches ##8&

* Measured at constant exchange rates 218G B &5t &
Note:  The revenue excludes the amount service income from franchisees MizE : EEBEREFERBMEFORBHBA
Product price range EmERS M

Mainland China

RSV by price range — Gem-set jewellery
] P9 3t

RERGEERSNTERE —HRERRENH

0.6%
FY2015
| ]
| |
| |
|
] |

FY2016
20158 BUFE 20168 BUFE  Hksiis T

<10,000
10,001-30,000
30,001-100,000
100,001-500,000

>500,001

Hong Kong, Macau and other markets

RSV by price range — Gem-set jewellery
B R REMTS
RERGEESINTEE —HKERREH

FY2015
| ]
u |
u ]
u
|| |

26.4%

FY2016
201581 BUFE 20168 BEE  HKsE T

<10,000
10,001-30,000
30,001-100,000
100,001-500,000

>500,001
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Management Discussion and Analysis &2 &5 EE 5 4

Products and Production
EmREE

Contribution of high-end jewellery* to respective RSV
BHRE 2 TEEMNL
For the year ended 31 March & 23 H31H L FE

21.4%
15.0% 15.29%
—O— Hong Kong, Macau and other markets &% ~ 23 & HAb 15
49% 43% —O— Mainland China 1 B A th,
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

* Selling price > HK$100,000 & f& > 100,000/ 7T

High-end and one-of-a-kind jewellery products EEGERE-B_MHKEEMART
Introduction of high-end and one-of-a-kind jewellery to further uplift our brand equity. BBSIAGE®BEEREELE B _NWHKE
25 BE RS o

“Le Labyrinthe Artistique” Collection

[BEAmE ]| R

“The Palace Museum” Collection

(=155

48 Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited Annual Report 2016



Licensed products BREEMRY

Collaboration with well-known movies, animations or characters to offer creative and HAREAEKFENSY  BEIAUWEE B
diversified products to customers. BETRAFESENERERE -

Disney “Star Wars” Collection

BreERAH RS
RSV of gem-set jewellery of (o)
FOREVERMARK, Rio Tinto Group and 1 2 '9 /0

. . o (FY2015
Disney Ilc'ensed products, as a % of 2015 BHELE I+ 11.8%)
gem-set jewellery RSV

FOREVERMARK * T#Hh&EE KB TG
BRERNKEERENSEEN
KEEHREHTEENEDIL

Wedding products IR E M
Continual effort in bridal products to seize market opportunities. BERNEREBEREER  LEEBEKSE -

“Bridal” Collection

ECES A EX

RSV of gem-set jewellery of wedding
product as a % of gem-set jewellery
RSV
BEANKRERREMTEEN
KEEREHTEENE L

(FY2015
2015 FABUEE B : 52.2%)

Hearts On Fire products Hearts On Fire & f
Introduction of Hearts On Fire products to broaden our product offerings. BiB5| AHeartsOnFire EmMARRMERAS °

> IGNITE

o COMETHING
Qg e

“AERIAL"
Collection

[AERIAL 25 ;=-¢

LLA"
Collection

TILLA] 51
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Products and Production
EmREE

Procurement and Production RBREE
Steady supply of raw materials and first-class production capabilities are crucial for us BENRMBMHEUR SHENEERIERE
to maintain competitive advantages. PEEHRFELEBARAEE -

Our diamond processing capabilities and our well-established relationships with De EMHEAMIED - LK De Beers ~
Beers, Rio Tinto Group, ALROSA and other suppliers provide us with a stable supply of e E - ALROSAR Hfth it ER W IBERER - B
raw materials. RMERBENRBMLLE

We continue to make investment and expand our research and development, design BMSERFERERBERRMOFE - R
and production capabilities according to our business needs so as to meet market REERD WRETHSHERMERNESR
demand for our products and reduce production costs. B IBEEERTK

For the year ended 31 March HE3IANHLEE

In-house/outsourced production mix of products sold - Jewellery products

WNEEE/SMIEEERIGEEERILD -HKEER

2015 2016
Retail sales Retail sales
volume RSV volume RSV
HE TEE HE TEE

] B  In-house ] B In-house
production production
R E R E

| B outsourced | B outsourced
production production
SHEE SIHEE

In-house/outsourced production mix of products sold - Gem-set jewellery
AMEE/SMHIEEERIGCEERILD - RERREH
2015 2016
Retail sales Retail sales
volume RSV volume RSV
HE TEE wE TEE

] B In-house ] B In-house
production production
R E REBEE

| B outsourced | B oOutsourced
production production
IHEE MHAEE
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Manufacturing Process of Hard Gold Jewellery

ﬁiﬁfé—ﬁﬁiﬁﬁ% iull.%i

Molding of wax pattern 2 Coating of silver paint Electroforming of gold
S SRomEE BEEET
\ e - ' r ; -
4 Touching-up 5 Polishing 6 Finished product

ES ] T8 E

[=] [s] Major Risk Factors and Control Measures
[=] B T ERREER R
Synthetic Diamonds AR
Irruption of synthetic diamonds could impact our brand image and sale of high BUOERELDRA  SREXERMANRME
quality products. FERREEBEMNHEE -
To minimise the risk of irruption of synthetic diamonds, the Group has introduced BRESKEGRARR  EESIAZHR
new devices and procedures to safeguard our high standard of product quality. We HBEAEUEREMANERESTSRE - B
also dealt with trust-worthy suppliers with sufficient accreditations and performed B RMEESEANHERSE  LHE
regular inspections to their diamonds. ERERAMNRFEETHRSE -
Inventory Turnover HFERE®
Owing to the impact of volatile macroeconomic environment in Greater China, our ZRRPERRBELIHGTHZE  RPINEFE
inventory turnover has the risk of slowing down. BEEMENEE -
We closely monitored our inventory turnover. We have used RFID technique to EMEZETREIEENFERE - RMEH
timely and accurately record warehouse inventories and stock taking data. We RFIDE AT A R B ERE S 82 2 T?ﬁiﬂiif%(
have set up an inquiry mechanism to increase efficiency of transportation of B RMBRUSHES  EEEEREBER
products across stores and different channels, thereby lowering the inventory HNAEEERER  URESIEBEENEE 7J<
level per store. We have also set up a dedicated team to closely monitor inventory FoRMPtERIBEMEEERRNEERE
turnover and carry out ageing analysis; the ageing inventories are cleared through RETERD UBBHRIEEEFEE
outlet stores. RERNER -

N _J
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Products and Production
EmREE

Major Social and Environmental Initiatives

‘ TEHRRBREE

The Group conducts various environmental risk assessments at our plants for
emission reduction. An environmental protection unit has been established by
the Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Park in Wuhan to organise, operate and monitor
environmental protection projects. A real-time monitor system has also been
established to monitor gas emission and sewage discharge.

The Group introduces various environmental protection measures at our
offices for conservation of resources. The Chow Tai Fook Group Tower in
Shenzhen participated in “A Joyful Life of Low Carbon — Earth Hour”, a lights-
off event. Central and Kwai Chung offices in Hong Kong and some floors of
the office in Shenzhen also participated in the “United Nations Millennium
Development Goals — Green Office Awards Labelling Scheme” organised by
the World Green Organisation (“WGQ”) and received the “Green Office” label
from the WGO in July 2015. The Group was named the United Nations “Better
World Company” for its successful achievement in energy conservation, water-
saving, waste reduction, paper and printing reduction, green procurement,
use of technology, waste disposal, transportation arrangement, environmental
education and environmental protection initiatives. In April 2016, the Group
signed the “Charter on External Lighting” launched by the Environmental
Bureau of Hong Kong, committing to switching off lighting installations of
decorative, promotional or advertising purposes before 11 p.m. to avoid light
pollution to the surrounding environment. The Group will also learn from
industry peers and review light intensity and scattering angle to formulate
relevant guidelines.

During FY2016, the Group launched a “Zero-Accident Programme” at its
production facilities to promote occupational safety and health by increasing
the frequency and the comprehensiveness of inspection each month. The
Group also stepped up the occupational safety and health trainings to
our staff, including the safe use of chemicals, spillage handling drills, safe
use of gas, fire alarm and evacuation drills. Occupational safety and health
handbooks were prepared to provide clear safety instructions. Staff knowledge
of occupational safety and health was enhanced through quiz contests and
poster design contests. In 2015, over 17,000 employees participated in 50
training programmes at our Shunde production facilities. Employees were
encouraged to take part in safety officer certification examinations. There are
required number of safety officers in our production facilities.

ERBEAHE  RBEETSZHIHNERE
ERaRrfL - MEERARBREESR

RIUIBRREBEENE EERE Bt
RERRRIRBIEE  REWEEER
RBEKBER AL

AEFERER WAERTETZER
RIEVE » AURYIH B KT EE K E SR
[FEHR - BLAESE — IR — /B | 8%
78 MEBPRMNZFBRLOZER R
MAEHIEBTSHTREEHES]
WIBHEETERRERE — SBHAE
BT Al BIBTEETRE - Bk R EE
W OB AT - RIRHKE ER
MERBEYNEE  RBZH BRRHEE
RIRRAIFTAVETRZ - R 2015F 7 A#El
REeEBd | Bl EeRiE 2% i
BRAEBAEBRELLE ] SEER
016 F4ABEBEFTRRBER/ELENIF
SMEXRNE] KRk L1 EEREE
RIEEZENEN SERESESE
B UFRFPMNERERNEE I
SERELR  BIENBXZEMEGA
ENET L BRIES -

ERERSERRELE  £EM 20168
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A AKEREREZEBE » TIE
MBZEEY BFtERERANZE
EIRBRESELY REZ2ERER
HBERRERRBAEESE  URGEH
BERFMAEETREEWN IR
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HEEBZE -
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Operations and Management
EEREE

We continue to develop, improve and expand our operation capabilities and human

capital according to business needs to underpin our steady development and seize
new market opportunities in the future.

Unify ownership of inventories in our retail network to facilitate inventory pooling
and better management of price risk of gold inventories.

Embark on different development projects to expand our operation capacities and
to enhance our operation efficiencies.

Optimise our operations and management model to sustain our responsiveness
and flexibility towards market development.

Set up Chow Tai Fook Academy and organise series of designated training courses
to provide progressive development opportunities to every level of our staff.

We are committed to offering
value-for-money products
and quality services in

our continuous pursuit of
maintaining industry-leading
operation capabilities and
preserving our heritage and
edges in human capital.

BB EEZETRALNE
BRENERSRFABRNES

BEANERNES  FHRM
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Operations and Management
EERERE

Inventory Ownership Unification

In order to promptly address our customers’ needs and strengthen the stability of our

retail network, we have been optimising our inventory management mechanism.

Inventories are dispatched to franchised POS upon the receipt of deposits at value
equivalent to the prescribed inventory level.

We retain inventory ownership until sales transactions are completed with retail
customers, upon which wholesale revenue is recognised at the prevailing price.

Inventories at self-operated and franchised POS would be unified in an inventory
pool and the related price risk on gold inventories is mitigated by our gold
hedging mechanism.

Up to 31 March 2016, 274 franchised POS (accounting for approximately 40.0% of
our franchised POS) were under the new mechanism, holding inventories valued
at approximately HK$970.0 million, representing 3.1% of total inventories of the
Group as at 31 March 2016.

Development Projects

To meet the need of our future business growth, we have embarked on the

development of Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Park in Wuhan, Hubei and a logistic and

distribution centre in Shunde.

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Park

Taking into account of the second land parcel acquired in FY2015, the
development has a gross floor area of approximately 750,000 square metres on a
land parcel of approximately 386,000 square metres.

Eight buildings of a total gross floor area of approximately 180,000 square metres
were completed in FY2015. In addition, the construction of another five buildings
with a total gross floor area of approximately 80,000 square metres started in
FY2016 and is expected to be completed in FY2018.

Production operation had commenced progressively since FY2015. It is expected
the annual jewellery production capacity would reach 2.4 million pieces by the
end of FY2017.

Capital investments in the Jewellery Park for which specific plans have been made

amount to approximately HK$2.6 billion, of which approximately HK$840.0 million has
been spent up to the end of FY2016.
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Scene of the Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Park — April 2016
BARABHRECEXEESR — 2016544

Scene of the Logistic and distribution centre
MRREERLES

Logistic and distribution centre

We strive to enhance operating capabilities of our supply chain. The logistic and
distribution centre, situated in our Shunde production site, will process our products
manufactured in the South China region on a consolidated basis.

With our automation facilities and inventory movement analysis mechanism, the
accuracy and efficiency of our product distribution would be enhanced further. This
enables in-time inventory replenishment to our retail network.

«  System installation has substantially completed.
«  System tuning and test run are in progress.

«  Operation is expected to startin FY2017.

Capital investment classification
(with specific plans)

BERRESE(SIEARRR)

20.0%

M Land and buildings
T b ERREF

[l Others (Plant and machinery, motor vehicles,

furniture, fixture and equipment)

Hith (BE RS - R -~ B - RERRE)

Wi RRE 0

BB ERARERNEERED - LRTEIE
EHNRREEFL  BIERAKERSE
BErRtERKRZE -

FERADCRBERMZEERD D THES
E-SRARMEE 2 EREEYE  BRE
mEEEREXDTE -

REARET KBEK °
REAAEEET -
« FEFTR2017HMBEERERNRALR
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EERERE

Human Resources and Management

Number of employees by reportable segment
As at 31 March 2016 722016 ££3 A31 H

B Mainland China — Jewellery business Bl it — BRE S
B Mainland China — Watch business R EI At — SEERETR
B Hong Kong, Macau and other markets &% + JBPI R Hith 5

Hearts On Fire

The decrease in the number of employees was mainly due to our effort in enhancing
efficiency.

We optimise our operation and management model by giving more autonomy to
the regional management. We believe this will help us to cope with market changes
promptly and improve our efficiency by leveraging on their local knowledge. We also
established the Data Intelligence Space during the year to equip the management
team with data analysis tools to facilitate business decision making.

Data Intelligence Space — A workspace, combining data analytics and business intelligence

BEEE - —EAABB I MEREERNTHEH
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Total number of employees

YoY change EILE &1k : +12.6%
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Training and Development

Human resources is our greatest asset and we believe that human resources
investment is vital to the sustainable development of our business.

Chow Tai Fook Academy
« InJune 2015, we established Chow Tai Fook Academy to provide more professional
and systematic training courses.

+ Management from various departments were invited to share in-house expertise
and knowledge with other staff so as to enhance continuous learning atmosphere.

+  Professional jewellery related technical training, such as Gemological Institute of
America class and Certificate in Advanced Level of Gemstone knowledge, were
launched in FY2016.

iLearning

« In order to have more flexibility in training arrangements, we implemented the
online learning platform.

«  Online courses include Putonghua, jewellery knowledge etc.

Training Program for Management

Project Management Training Program

In FY2016, we developed the Project Management Training Program for selected
frontline and back office staff members from operational to managerial grades. This
training programme aims to foster all-round development of staff. Courses regarding
professional knowledge of jewellery products, customer service, selling technique and
management skills were provided to enhance their professional knowledge.

Strategic Acumen and Ambidextrous Leadership Program

In April 2016, we engaged lvey Business School of the University of Western Ontario
to provide a 3-day training at Hong Kong Convention and Exhibition Centre for our
senior executives including directors. The program aims to stimulate actionable plans
on internationalisation, customer level innovation and to inculcate anchoring attitude
and skills to exploit existing advantages and explore future opportunities in this highly
competitive environment.

EAlRER

ANEBRDEMREENEE  RMNRABAD
ERREVEBN IR ERRERER -

BX@EI2k
- 2015%F6 A - RFIFAMBREEINER 2
HEEXEBRAGCHIFIIRE -

BEMFINEEEZHEAMETIZEES
HERMAMBMLIL RS HEBESTE -

. RPR20HBEERHLEREBRRER
TR R I B S B SRR AR T
2 -

Training Data 1% Fl 8%
Number of classes

>3 600

Number of hours

53 2

>739,000

e (=
“a

mreE
BMETRLELBRTE  BERPEI -

REENOEEER HEMEES -

EEEENRE

HE EEAN S5 BRIE

016 BEE  RMARENAREERES
ZENMETIHEEAEBEASEERE - It
EEREEERESIZEERE - RI2IRHEA
RUEER BERYE HEREREERE
MUEEEANE - URA B TERAE -

Bims e e R ZE 15 HE 1155

201648 BB FEA T KB KZIvey
Business School RE B EZEREF L ABERMNS
BITBRAE (BIEES) RUAHIKAIEZI - T
IEEHEEBEB L EERBEHBETENAT
TE EH B S REREURNEZINBRE
REBFICBEEEZREIEARRESE -

BABHREEBERAT 2016FFR

57



Management Discussion and Analysis & &5 EE 25 4
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EERERE

-

[=] [s] Major Risk Factors and Control Measures
EIE) t=ARERREHEE

Information System
Interruption and security breaches to our information systems may have a material
adverse effect on our business, results of operations or financial condition.

We have taken necessary measures to deal with significant breakdown which may
cause interruptions to our daily operations. We have a comprehensive disaster
recovery plan, including back up offsite data, regularly conduct rehearsal and Internet
penetration test. We have also been continuingly upgrading our management
information systems to ensure the continuity of our operations.

Talent Acquisition and Retention

Our talents are one of our most important assets. We pay attention to recruitment,
training and retaining talents; so as to build a people-oriented culture. If our
employees lose confidence causing outflow of talents, our business may be adversely
affected.

We have established salaries level analysis and benchmarking to make sure
remuneration package is at a competitive level. We have enhanced staff benefits
and caring programme, improved feedback channel of complaints, opinions are
directly sent to senior management for independent assessments. We also have exit
interview to understand reasons of resignation. We found Chow Tai Fook Academy in
the year for improving talents’ professional skills and knowledge. We have organised
more targeted internal activities to create sense of belonging with the Company.

B A%
BRMOERNREARZ2ZIHRE - SHRM
MR - KEXESUBRRBREATF

2/
HEo

AT RIS RERUBREARGHERE
AEEERE - ZAFE T Berro KEME
FHE BIRETEBEEBED  EHETE
BRAKSENS  BETFTEHAREERE
ERGUABREBR AN -

AFBEELE
ATREMREENEEZ— - RMIFEFE
BIRE B RREET  UEIUARRE
HEET MBETHLATELFRER
ATRE - ATREHEMNEBBRERTR
HE -

HMBILEHKF ONEEE - DR F
EREMFANFHIE HKMRESETE
M REETERRMRE  HERAUE
EREBEASEEERE  UWBITEBEER
B bt BBERT U UEDERMTHE
THBBERRE o RPEF AL EKREE
B BHBEREAS - AMUABES
SN REDES) - BUEME THRER
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/‘\{ Major Social and Environmental Initiatives

FTEHERBRRER

The Group provides medical insurance for its employees and their family
members, as well as subsidies and scholarships for their children. Paid wedding
leave, gratuity leave, birthday leave and voluntary work leave are granted in
addition to those stipulated under the Employment Ordinance of Hong Kong.

The Group has set up online platforms Leti and iShare to share the Group’s latest
information, plans and development as well as lifestyle information and sales
offers to the employees. As at 31 March 2016, approximately 20,000 employees
have signed up on Leti and iShare, respectively. Leisure rooms have been set up
at offices in Hong Kong and Mainland China. The Chow Tai Fook headquarters
in Shenzhen has nursing room, fitness room and recreation rooms in place to
provide comfortable working environment for employees.

The Group has assisted the staff to apply for recognition of qualification from
the Qualifications Framework of the Hong Kong Government and succeeded
in obtaining recognition of the qualification of more than 800 employees in
the jewellery and watch and clock industries. In FY2016, nearly 13,000 hours of
gemstone and gold jewellery courses recognised by the Qualification Framework
of the Hong Kong Government were organised. iLearning, an online learning
platform, has been launched to encourage staff to further their studies through
online channels at office or at home.

AEIRHERERBBHERR
B FRHBEERRES - RREB
(REBEGRODTHANBEFFMRIN - B2
IREFHHERY  BMEH 8T
ERBMRETRY -

BUGEFARLIRRAKiSharer @B
TEHESEBENRHALE B
B UWRMUHETFEMHEE BF
2016%F3HA31H EXREEML
FARiShare NE T A D RIED
20,000 A © lt5h > REBHRAZERE
HREE  MRRIBERBEARE
REHIE #EE BHEZERXE
BHE > AETIRMEEGFENIERE -

HHEIREERNERRERGES
AERRT » RINAB0ZNETH
BRBEREHRENRITER ; 2016 81
BEE - BIHEIR13,000/ N EHNESR
BHFEELEBRTNEARSEHA
HERIE . AWM Tilearningf LB B F
B HEESIAERAERIHREEE
B RESE -
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We strive for an optimal capital structure and capital efficiency to create long-

term value and return to our shareholders.

BB DBLLERRBRYE  BRRAERAEBER DR -

We are committed to creating long-term value and return to our shareholders by
setting our payout policy, investment strategies and financing plans carefully, which
help to maintain an optimal capital structure to finance our profitable operations and

prosperous development:

«  Pursue cost optimisation by increasing efficiency and initiating cost savings in

alignment with the Group’s business strategy

- Optimise capital structure and minimise our cost of financing

» Balance between maintaining an adequate cushion of liquidity and fulfilling

working capital and investment needs

+  Create long-term value and return to shareholders via dividend payments

Gross Profit Margin

BEMBIARRAERMEERDR  BiBE
EHIFREBE REKMARETE - M
HEBSENERREE  BEHERTEAEFNE
WEEMENSMNERTE

BBREAEERRUR TR ER RN
ARTHARAE  REEANE

BLCBERARBRBELBERS

EHEFAERADESRRELEEETRRE
ERzBERTE

ARRAZERBEEREBIKEEHRR

EF%

Unrealised hedging gain/loss REREH B
For the year ended 31 March BZE3A31HLEE 2014 2015
Gross profit margin ER=E 27.3% 29.7% 27.6%
Unrealised hedging loss/(gain) HEEERGREPER(KFE)
on gold loans 0.4% (0.5)% 1.3%
Adjusted gross profit margin KRB NER R 27.7% 29.2% 28.9%

+ Unrealised hedging gain/loss for the year represents the net effect of (i) the

reversal of the gain/loss recorded due to the timing difference in recognising the
effect of long and short position in gold when we take a snap-shot position at the
end of the previous financial year; and (ii) the gain/loss arising from such timing
difference at the end of the current financial year.

We use gold loans (short position in gold) to hedge against the gold price
fluctuations in our gold inventories (long position). While the long-term effect of
long and short positions in gold is expected to net out each other through the
sales of gold products, a gain/loss may arise due to a short-term timing difference
between the time when a gain/loss on gold loans recorded in the cost of goods
sold and the time when sales of hedged gold inventories are recognised, when we
take a snap-shot position at the end of the reporting period.
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Changes in adjusted gross profit margin W IZ R EF R & E)

For the year ended 31 March HEIANALFE
30.0% -
29.5% -
29.2% 0.7% ® Change in product mix
29.0% - 0.2% 0.0% 28.9% ERAREE
0.2% m Change in gross profit margin by product
285% - 4+ I RERESHENELE

Change in retail and wholesale revenue
mix of Mainland China jewellery business

28.0% PEA R EEBTER
HBEEBESED
27.5% - m Other changes
Hitt# 3
27.0%
2015 2016

«  Changes in adjusted gross profit margin of the Group was due to the combination - FAEEKHEENENZSHRANOER

of: (i) the reduction of gross profit margin as a result of the change in the HEFEFEREBRENESERHRIZM
product mix with increased sale of relatively lower-margin gold products, (ii) the BHEFNETE - () IREREDNWEFEIE
improvement of gross profit margin by product; and (iii) improvement of gross HARGEPEAN G SREEETEE LN
profit margin following the increase in retail revenue mix of Mainland China’s Eesgmmim EAERE -

jewellery business.

«  Other changes in adjusted gross profit margin included the effect of impairment - RARBNENZNHEHGESHEERMER

of watch inventories amounting to HK$74.2 million, which was made after BHRFENRARERENTSEER
considering the conditions and latest market values of such inventories. ERFEIREREEE7428 BB TEE -

+-+ London gold price
AR oy o

USS$ per ounce
EnEHR

1,400 —
1,350 —

1,300 —

1,250 —

1,200 —
1,150 —
1,100 —

1,050 —

1,000 \ 1

1.4.2014 30.9.2014 1.4.2015 30.9.2015 31.3.2016

— London gold price RS & 1B
— Average of T-120/T-150 days T-120/T-150 K" {E

(1) Average of T-120/T-150 days refers to the average gold price of previous 120 or 150 days on rolling basis, being a proxy of the average price of our hedged gold inventories. As gold inventories turnover
was faster in FY2016, average of T-150 days and T-120 days was used for FY2015 and FY2016 respectively

T-120/T-150 R P ERBAEEM120 RN 150 KW EE1IE - AERREMEHHNESFENFIEE - HR2016HMBFENESFEAFMR » 20158 BFE K 2016 HHFE S BIEAT-150
KR T-120 K F9{E
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Selling and Distribution Costs and General and SHERD#HEMAUR—BRITH
Administrative Expenses (“SG&A”) FX([SHE RITHRFRZ])

For the year ended 31 March BE3ANALEE
SG&A by reportable segment SG&A to revenue ratio
RAZ2MAHB OBHE RITHHAX HERITHRAXILERALLE
(HK$ million B&# TT) (HK$ million BE# 7T)
20.5%
19.2%
15.8%
YoY change YoY change
) 12,2072 123444 - B ; 12,207.2 123444 Gl2% 214
e 11,623.4
12,000 ~5.8% 12,000 6234~ 5.8%
v 4.3%
+ 10.9%
57.0%
60.5% ~13.6%
8,000 8,000
v 2.0%
- 13.0%
v 35% ~40.2%
4,000 4,000
- 7.6%
EED 37.2% 38.1% ~84.4% :
v 3.7%
0 0
2014 2015 2016 2014 2015 2016
m Mainland China — Jewellery business F1 Bl A ith — BRE #5755 m Staff costs § TRZA
e A
m Mainland China — Watch business FEl ity — £ : gontcelsswnalre f;asﬁgﬁﬁﬁiﬂ 24
Ly i ental expenses 4
mHong Kong,AMacau and other markets &% + B R H 45 = Advertising and promotion expenses [ & 5 & @B %
= Hearts On Fire™ m Depreciation and amortisation #7 55 & # §4
= Other SGRA? ELAhSEERATEBIX?
—O— As a% of respective revenue Fi{h & £ H S Lt
(1) Hearts On Fire was acquired on 31 August 2014 (1) $ 20144 8 B 31 B #E A Hearts On Fire
(2)  Other SG&A mainly represented bank charges incurred for sales transaction settlement, royalty fees for the sales of licensed 2) EHHEERTHHXTIEOEEEXSEEEENRITFES -
products, certificate expenses, packing materials, utilities and staff welfare HERBERNEFNER HEE BEYE - kSERET
E=i]
Note: The percentages calculated are subject to minor rounding differences Mz Ao EARRBEENER
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Pursue cost optimisation by increasing efficiency and initiating cost savings in
alignment with the Group’s business strategy.

The focus of our continuous effort of cost optimisation including staff productivity
enhancement, concessionaire fee rates and rental expenses reduction and cost
containment of ineffective promotional campaigns during the year. Our SG&A
dropped 5.8% as benefitted from certain of these cost saving initiatives, coupled
with the decreased variable SG&A as revenue declined.

Nevertheless our SG&A ratio increased as a significant portion of our expenses,
including basic salary, rental expenses and depreciation and amortisation, was
fixed in nature and did not slide with revenue at the same pace.

Depreciation and amortisation expenses recorded a considerable growth
following the completion of Mainland China headquarters building in Shenzhen
and the acquisition of the new operation centre in Hong Kong as well as the new
POS openings in FY2015.

Decline in SG&A of jewellery business in Mainland China was due to the decrease

in concessionaire fees and advertising and promotion expenses.

SG&A of Hong Kong, Macau and other markets decreased modestly by 3.5% as it
has a relatively higher fixed proportion of SG&A such as rental expenses.

We acquired Hearts On Fire on 31 August 2014 and consolidated its results since
then. On an annualised basis, the SG&A year-on-year change of Hearts On Fire
and the Group would be 19.0% and -6.9%, respectively. The SG&A structure of
Hearts On Fire is different from the rest of our reportable segments. While its gross
profit margin is much higher than other segments, it requires more resources on
advertising and promotion. During the year, it launched the global marketing
campaign “Ignite Something” to raise its brand awareness as we are extending
our footprint progressively.

BBRAEERRURXIFEEEBE R
AR TEIARA - IR BA K ©

FARMRSEILEEN BEZEI KL
ERESHEZWZEFERRNERTEHE
T TEENIRERANGE - SRNETH
RENERARBEERTHE XS ENI D RE
EEBETRMEY  RANESERITEEX
B 5.8% °

HREMWHEERTHRAEXEE R REE
MHE(BEERHE HEMAX  ERE
$H) HELTREEDREXFENEBLT
PRIEE - BHERMXLRET -

B T2 8 6K B =% [ 2015 B BUEF R R R
Y89 B A 3 A D RAR R W BB A & B B 3
EERL  URHHTEHMESHERE
-E ]

FERMNREEBEERITHRAXTRR
HREES KEESE R EERX TR -

B8 BPIREMTHSHHEERTREXH
MTFE35%  RHREHERTHAXEE
o (AL MERS -

3 1974 2014 5 8 A 31 B UK B8 Hearts On Fire
BHEHEESH AR - IBRFEEFTE » Hearts On
Fire BN SR B SHE R T BB 2 B Lb 1L #8 5 Bl
£19.0% K% -6.9% ° Hearts On Fire fY $5 & & 1T
B EBERREMAI 2R DI - FRAE
ENRRESNEMI B BERAEZES
REEER - TR BERMBELSHRE R
LM GHEREE [BRE—Z | LR
SREMNEE -
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Mainland China — Jewellery business RE Pt — BRE R
For the year ended 31 March BEIANHLEE
Staff costs Concessionaire fees
BIRA BHES K
(HKS million BE B T) (HKS million & &7 7T)

30,340

28,590
O/ONSSO 9.3%

9.4%

6.3% 9.0%
6.1% 1% O—/'o\o

YoY change
B2 314
2,500 - 24588 2,500 23917
2,2657 —v0.1%
2,076.6
2,000 2,000 A
1,787.8
1,500 — 1,500
v 15.4%
1,000 4 1,000
74.3%
62.0% 69.7% .
500 500
~6.7%
0 0
2014 2015 2016 2014 2015 2016
B Variable proportion &5
B Fixed proportion EE % B Concessionaire fees SAED A
—O— Average number of employees F¥J8 T & B —O— Asa% of respective revenue TG & £5EE DL

—O— As a % of respective revenue Fi{5 & 2B Atk

« Anincrease in the fixed proportion of staff costs was mainly attributable to the
revision of staff remuneration package during the year in order to attract and
retain talents. We strive for staff costs optimisation by enhancing productivity
of our employees. The average number of frontline staff per self-operated POS
decreased by approximately 10.0% as compared with that of last year.

- Significant portion of self-operated POS situated at department stores and
shopping malls incur concessionaire fees. Concessionaire fees ratio, which
measures the concessionaire fees to the respective revenue, declined due to the
reduction of concessionaire fees by product, and the sales mix shifted towards
gold products which generally are subject to lower rates.
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Hong Kong, Macau and other markets
For the year ended 31 March

HE B REMTHS
HE3IANHLEEE

Staff costs Rental expenses
BIWA HERX
(HKS million B &7 7T) (HK$ million & &8 7T)
4,790 8.2%
4,440 4,350 6.1%
6.0% 5.8% 3.8%
SW
YoY change
El=4-2(4
2,500 2,500
2,000 1,809.7 2,000 1,788.5
1,559.6 1,583.7
. 1,500 -
1,500 12838~ 13246
~17.7%
1,000 1,000
v 35.7%
500 ~ 56.1% ~35% 3001
0 0
2014 2015 2016 2014 2015 2016
B Variable proportion SZEh %
H Fixed proportion EE 5 B Rental expenses &5
—O— Average number of employees 398 T# H —O— Asa% of respective revenue Fifi & ¥ E D tb
—O— As a % of respective revenue Fi{5 % 25 B Dt
. . . = vi 3 s = 77 R 325 A
Decrease in staff costs was due to the decline in average number of employees, - BIRFELEERHNEBEARKSF

mainly through attrition, as well as the decline in variable component of staff
costs along with the drop of sales. The average number of frontline staff per self-
operated POS decreased by approximately 13.0% to boost the productivity.

Our cost saving measures in this area included POS consolidation and negotiation
with landlords for rental reduction. We achieved approximately 13.0% rental
reduction on average for rental renewed during the year. As a result, the rising
pressure on rental expenses was eased in the second half of the year, compared
with 18.9% growth recorded in first half of FY2016. We expect the impact of our
efforts in reducing rental expenses shall become more obvious in the near future.

Rental expenses increased 12.9% mainly due to the new POS openings in FY2015. .

HETHARMY  UREETHSEIRAE
HEBMA B - EETEHNIEIA
FETHBRDH13.0% URERAEME ©

HERZIEN12.9% @ TEE AR 20158
FEHFBATEHMEK - RMEBVEEK AR
WEE BEEETEHREETHER
WS FRERFHIARML13.0% Lk
2016 T IFE L FIEM18.9% e
BRBAETXFEMER  BHERMAR
HENB IR ABIESEBRENRR -
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Profitability, Basic Earnings per Share and BFgEN BREABIRER

o e JL
Dividend per Share B2
For the year ended 31 March BZE3A3NALEE
Overall Core operating profit® of major reportable segments
®ie FTEAZHRNHBHEIEREHEN
YoY change
(HKS$ million B&#T) El=4--<(4
6,000
5,225.5
27.7% 29.2% 28.9% 5,000 -
or—————O0————0
19.2% 20.5% 4,000
15§%/o—/°
3,000
122%\00\0
10.4% 8.9% 2,000 -
1,000 —
-
2014 2015 2016 0

2014

—O— Adjusted gross profit margin® £ FH& & Y EF RO

2015 2016

e o ® Hong Kong, Macau and other markets &8 + PR E AT 5
~O~ %of SG&A to revenue SHE R THBI X s EREA DL B Mainland China - Jewellery business # Bl A ith - 555 375

—O— Core operating profit margin® F BAZ & 5§ R

Mainland China - Jewellery business Hong Kong, Macau and other markets
o P i - BREE RS &8 B REMTS
29.4% 29.8%
28;%”’0—_0 27.4% 28.9% 27.9%
19.79 09
18.2% 19.6% 9.7% 17.6% 20.0%
o——O0———— 0 14.8%

O O C 12.6%
10.3% 10.4% 10.7%

- -

8.1%

2014 2015 2016 2014

(1) Adjusted gross profit margin, a non-IFRS measure, eliminates the effect of unrealised hedging loss/(gain) on gold loans, which V)
the Company believes is useful in gaining a more complete understanding of its operational performance and the underlying
trend of its businesses

(2) Core operating profit and the corresponding margin, a non-IFRS measure, being the aggregate of gross profit and other (2)
income, less SG&A and unrealised hedging loss/(gain) on gold loans, which the Company believes is useful in gaining a more
complete understanding of its operational performance and the underlying trend of its core businesses
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Core operating profit margin shrank by 150 basis points to 8.9% as a result of

the drop in adjusted gross profit margin mainly due to the shift of product mix
towards relatively lower-margin gold products and the worsened SG&A ratio due
to operating deleverage.

The jewellery business in Mainland China has earned importance recently with
profit contribution to the Group continuing to increase, thanks to its relatively
stable adjusted gross profit margin and SG&A ratio. A slight improvement in
adjusted gross profit margin for FY2016 was mainly benefitted from the increase
in retail revenue mix which outweighed the drop in margin due to the increase in
sales mix of gold products.

Profitability of Hong Kong, Macau and other markets was under pressure due
to the decline in adjusted gross profit margin following a significant growth
in wholesale revenue mix and increased SG&A ratio as a result of operating
deleverage.

Watch business in Mainland China suffered core operating losses of HK$60.1
million (FY2015: core operating profit of HK$28.2 million) mainly due to the decline
in revenue and gross profit margin.

Core operating losses of Hearts On Fire expanded by 70.4% to HK$118.8 million
(FY2015: HK$69.7 million, represented the post-acquisition results since 31 August
2014) which was attributable to the additional advertising expenses for the global
marketing campaign. Notwithstanding the core operating losses, we believe the
positive effect from the synergy brought about by Hearts On Fire to the Group,

including widening the spectrum of our product offerings and the optimisation of

resources allocation, funding and raw materials procurement, will be materialised
gradually in the medium-term.

FELEENETHRISOBELE89% £
ERHARERASENENERENESE
mELAZRENENRRD UREEEL
R EHEERITHB X L RIGMATE -

LA R BRI SRR R BRI 2R EEEY
ERTHAXLRBHRA/RBE - HAEE
BANNERGLEFELAMSSABEE -
2016 IRFELBERNERNZRIA B
SENTEERBUGLEM  MAKEEB
ELEMEEESEMAERERNT RN
o

B8 BMREMTSHBNEDITE R
H R HE B S RS L EE R NS SR ERE
MENEXTRREAEEKEEEMEHER
THR LR EAME -

FERMNERERE T ERNEEBERERNE
THMiEE60. 1 BEBTEELEEE (2015
BMHREETELLERN 2828588 ©

HRERHSHEETHEEEINESML
Hearts On Fire B £ B 48 & E518 312 M1 70.4% &
1188 EEEBIT 05 BEE 697 HE B
7t B12014F 8 B3 BN EBEMWER) -
BERBFTELEEE KIS Hearts On
Fre AR EESREANIRERESL L (E
FLEERBENELERSE B2 RE
MBHRER) SRR EBELSER -

2014 2015 2016 2016 vs 2015
HKS$ million HKS$ million HKS million YoY change
For the year ended 31 March HEIATALEE BERET BERET BEAT [ b #4L
Core operating profit? FTERERM 9,499.5 6,690.8 5,050.0 (24.5)%
Net profit el 7,449.2 5,535.8 2,978.9 (46.2)%
Profit attributable to shareholders of 787 B IR R FE/G 5 A 7,272.0 5,456.0 2,941.4 (46.1)%
the Company
Basic earnings per share (HK cent) BREREF (GBL) 72.7 54.6 29.4 (46.1)%
Dividend per share (HK cent) BRRE GBL)
Interim i HA 17.0 13.0 8.0 (38.5)%
Final FRER 19.0 15.0 8.0 (46.7)%
Full year 5 36.0 28.0 16.0 (42.9)%
First special PRl - - 42.0 N/A TE A

Second special

22.0 N/A FiE
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«  Net profit tumbled as compared to that of last year. The decrease was mainly
attributable to the decline in revenue and the reduced gross profit margin owing
to the unrealised hedging loss on gold loans (while it was an unrealised hedging
gain last year) and the increased revenue mix of gold products.

«  Net profit margin decreased by 330 basis points as a result of the drop of gross
profit margin and deteriorated SG&A ratio due to operating deleverage.

- Apart from the net exchange loss recognised in other gains and losses, the
fluctuations of Renminbi (“RMB”) during the year also adversely affected the
operating results of the Group as we translate the results and financial position of
our Mainland China’s operation from RMB to Hong Kong dollar (“HKD"), being the
Group’s presentation currency, when preparing consolidated financial statements.
For more details, please refer to page 136.

- Special dividend was declared to return the excess cash to shareholders after

considering the working capital requirement and business growth outlook in the

near term.

Other Income, Other Gains and Losses and Other Expenses

FRFREFHELBEERRY  TERRRNEXR
BTRRESEERERETER(EZFHE
BAREREDNE) EESEREEFASE
INEHERRBMDHE o

FRMERTEB0OEER  RERENET
ERAAHSEREEEHERTHRMAXLLR
EFFAEC

FRARBES KRREGKFEEGECHE
RYELRGEFEN THAEENEEE
BEETAEE  RRARRFPRHEETE
HERBEBZUARBIENTERBELN
EERMBRRBRER BT (AEENZT
B - F1EE2HM%E 1368 ©

HIRENZREEESTER G KT
RASKRER - USEINREEMBRR -

Higg N~ Hipir s R G E I &
H b B 32

2014 2015 2016 2016 vs 2015
HK$ million HK$ million HKS$ million YoY change
For the year ended 31 March BZ3A3ALEE BEET BEET HEBEBT &) bL 4L
Other income HlA 218.0 301.5 306.2 1.6%
Other gains and losses Htnlh iz R 518 130.2 (35.9) (244.9) 582.2%
Other expenses Hithf % (38.0) (94.7) (51.2) (45.9)%

«  Other income mainly represented income from franchisees who have yet adopted

the new optimised inventory management mechanism.

«  Other gains and losses mainly represented a net foreign exchange loss of HK$229.0
million (FY2015: HK$12.7 million) due to the fluctuation of RMB during the year.

«  Other expenses for the year mainly represented the amortisation of other
intangible assets and recurring charitable donation whereas the amount in last
year mainly represented non-recurring charitable donation and transaction costs
related to the acquisition of Hearts On Fire.
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Interest Income, Finance Costs and Taxation

For the year ended 31 March

HEIAALEE

HKS$ million

FIBWIN - BB M A RFRIE

2015
HKS$ million

2016
HKS million

2016 vs 2015
YoY change

Interest income from banks

Other interest income

Finance costs on bank borrowings

Finance costs on gold loans

Taxation

RITERBE A
EREERENS
BIE

HEET HEET [l tb &1L
125.1 111.8 (10.6)%
264 42.8 (62.1)%
148.9 68.6 (53.9)%
2316 174.4 (24.7)%
1,123.3 957.2 (14.8)%

Return on Equity, Inventory Turnover and Capital Structure

The decrease in finance costs on gold loans was due to the decrease in average

gold loan balances corresponded to the drop of gold product inventories.

Decrease in finance costs on bank borrowings was due to the increase in
contribution of average bank borrowings from Hong Kong which in general are

subject to relatively lower interest rates.

The effective tax rate increased from 16.9% in FY2015 to 24.3% in FY2016
which was mainly attributable to an one-off effect of the reversal of excessive
withholding tax provision for dividend payments previously recognised by certain
subsidiaries of the Group in FY2015 and the increased profit contribution from the
jewellery business in Mainland China, where higher tax rates are generally applied.

Return On Equity

We use return on equity (“ROE") to measure the efficiency of generating profits from

each unit of shareholder equity by net profit divided by total equity.

Net profit margin @Al &

(FY2015: 8.6%) (2015 BAER £ © 8.6%)

Net profit &z

ROE
NG S

5.3%

T

Net profit & F|

Total equity #E #4258

The drop of ROE by 540 basis points was primarily attributable to the deteriorated

net profit margin.

Revenue & 358

Assets turnover & & A &

1.0 times &

(FY2015: 1.1times) (2015 FA B4 BE © 1.14%)

T

Revenue & 358

Total assets & &

- EEAERERATREERAESEMRES
BOEHTHESEEEHRD -

RITERBMERA T REEZT BN FIIR
TERMGEEM - MENREEEAHERE -

BB E 2015 M BFEN 16.9% F £ 2016
BHEEMN243%  TEEHN 20158 HE
EXAEEETHBARBRESTHEZRERE
B — RS E  URTPERNIKREE
BEBENERIEINMERRLEBRSH

BRAORE FERAERERRE

BRAEHRE
EMEARARRE (TR R AR BT
H)HE2EBRBRREDZBIVENNRE

8.3% (F2015:13.7%) (2015 BB © 13.7%)
¥ 5.4% pts & & 2 25

Equity multiplier #E35 {Z #
1.6 times %

(FY2015: 1.5 times) (2015 BABREE[E @ 1.54%)

T

Total assets & &
Total equity fE =58

BRARHERTES40EEREZRHMNFE
FRT R
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. e
Inventory balances and turnover period FE& SRR EHEE
As at 31 March M3A318
Inventory balances by product Inventory turnover period™ by category
REMBSHEFELEER RENESHFEREHY
B YoY change (Days A )
(HKS million B #7&7T) Bt 21t
50,000 A 350
42,543.7
: v 21.29 300 ~ 276
40000 39,7976 21.2%
250 —
31,376.5 - 145%
44.8%
30,000 - : 522% 200 4
v 30.4% ] 211
20,000 - 56.6% 150
100
v 28.9%
10,000
50
65
v 22.0%
0 0\
2014 2015 2016 2014 2015 2016
m Gem-set jewellery BRE S B #f B Finished goods #A &
m Gold products EEE MR B Raw materials R %}
m Platinum/karat gold products $1& K& E M
u Watches $8&
m Packing materials E 5 #1%}
0 Being inventory balances, excluding packing materials, at the end of the reporting period divided by cost of goods sold for the year, O ESREBRFELR (TERECSEYR) BRUFRHEERE BRI
multiplied by 365/366 365/366
Note: The percentages calculated are subject to minor rounding differences Mzt AL HERABAENER

« Inventory turnover period improved by 41 days, as compared to that as at 31 - BFERAESMEL 20153831 B4 8

March 2015, mainly attributable to the improvement in inventory days of gem-set FTERHRFEAMRTRSHREERTNMR
jewellery and gold products as a result of the decreased inventory balances. BEeEMTFEAEHRLL TR -
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Capital structure

BALRE

9% to total % to total Increase/ Denominated Interest rate
equity equity (decrease) currency™ structure” Maturity”
Asat 31 March ®3A31H hEREREE fhRERER #m/
(HKS million) (BE#T) 2015 Epalid BAL (B) FEERE RERBO =R
Non-current assets FRBEE 7,0383 17.4% 6,670.4 18.7% (3679  NATEA NATER NATEHA
Inventories BE 39,797.6 98.2% 31,376.5 87.8% (8/421.1) N/ATEF N/ATRER N/ATRIE
HKD, RMB
and USD Variable
Bank depositsand cash ~ $B1TFEHK BT AR interest rate
equivalents? RBEZEYe 84775 20.9% 13,001.4 36.4% 45239 kER FERE N/ATE R
Total borrowings BER 15,088.9 37.2% 14,4333 40.4% (655.6)
Variable Within
Bank borrowings RITER HKD interest rate 12 months
(short-term) (259) 6,750.6 16.7% 7,320.0 20.5% 569.4 BT FHRE REAR
More than
2 years but
not exceeding
Variable 5years
Bank borrowings RITEX HKD interest rate 25U LER
(long-term) (RH) - - 600.0 1.7% 600.0 BT FHRE SELT
Fixed Within
RMB and USD interest rate 12 months
Gold loans HERE 83383 20.6% 6,513.3 18.2% (182500 AREERER Eihayilks 2{EAR
Net debt® BIEEEY 66114 16.3% 14319 4.0% (5,179.5) NATER NARER NATER
Working capital® EEESY 34,2028 84.4% 30,241.0 84.6% (39618)  NATEA NATER NATER
Total equity BB 40,540.8 100.0% 35,749.9 100.0% (4,790.9) N/A T8 B N/A 38 A N/A T8 F

Information about denominated currency, interest rate structure and maturity related to the condition as at 31 March 2016
Include bank balances and cash and pledged bank deposits
Aggregate of bank borrowings, gold loans, net of bank deposits and cash equivalents

Being net current assets

Note: The percentages calculated are subject to minor rounding differences

We principally meet our working capital and other liquidity requirements through
a combination of capital contributions, including cash flows from operations, bank
borrowings and gold loans. Gold loans are also used to hedge against the financial
impact of the price fluctuations in the Group’s gold inventories. The decrease in
gold loans corresponded to the drop of gold product inventories.

The Group’s daily operation was mainly financed by operating cash flows, and
relied on short-term borrowings to satisfy inventory financing needs during peak
seasons, working capital for future expansion plans and unexpected needs. Our
source of financing extended to long-term borrowings during the year which help
mitigate the interest rate risk in view of the rising trend of interest rate and spread.
The Group has not experienced any difficulties in repaying its borrowings.

The Group’s income and expenditure were mostly denominated in HKD and RMB,
while its assets and liabilities were mostly denominated in HKD, RMB and United
States dollar “USD".

M

@

@

@

BEFEEY  FIXEBRIBER2016F3A31 BHER
BERTERRREREERRITER
RITERRESEE2LE CNBRRTERRRESSEY)
EFREEE

M BOLHEERAMAENER

EMNETEZBRELLEHDRE - RITER
RESEENEARRENEEES R AM
RBELFER - BEEBETRAFELEHAREER
ESFEERKBNIBELE EEEER
LEETERFERER -
FEBRREBFTTESTIEZRAKERS
wE FEUEHEEREEENNTEE
EFR - KRRBERFVFFEEES R
ZHNFER - EMFERNEHESRERRE
REMEE  UEBBANREARFEEERS
REFIZRERE - AEBREZERT HILE
R E -
REBZWARBXEENB TR ARG
B MEEREBENEIEET  AR¥R
EUEHE °
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Effect of RMB fluctuations

We recorded a net foreign exchange loss of HK$229.0 million as certain of our
group companies entered into transactions denominated in currencies other than
their own functional currencies and when the exchange rate at the reporting date
or settlement date differs from the exchange rate on the date they entered into
the transactions.

The fluctuations of RMB also impacted the Group when we prepare the
consolidated financial statements as the results and financial position of our
operations in Mainland China were translated into the Group'’s presentation
currency of HKD from their functional currency of RMB, resulted in a loss of
HK$960.0 million recognised in translation reserve (a component of equity). For
the movement of translation reserve, please refer to the consolidated statement of

ARBRIHHZE

HRAEEE THRE AT LUFEIIGEE R
FHEMR S  BREBRHRLEEARPESR
TERITLIXRZE BWER » RFIREIINE
FEE220E BB ©

RMEERGS MBERRET - R UEEEY
AREIER T E A XA R I ERR
BERAEENZFIEEE T MESPH
BRERMBETRIDEIECOOEEET ¥
ARBRBTEHELEE - RERBED
HEESRGERERBR (B 1408H) -

changes in equity on page 140.

- If a constant exchange rate of RMB were used, the year-on-year change of the
revenue and net profit would be -10.5% (-12.0% as reported) and -41.0% (-46.2%
as reported), respectively.

MEAERARBESR  SXHERFEF
KR &1k 5 Bl B-105%(Fr 23R & 1k
5-12.0%) K -41.0% (FT 2R E L 5 -46.2%) °

Cash Flows R&Eneg

2014 2015 2016
For the year ended 31 March HKS$ million HKS$ million HKS$ million
HE3ATALEE BBERT BEET BEET
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital
EELESEPA2KERSRE 9,464.9 7,287.9 5,787.4
Decrease/(increase) in inventories T & & 4>, (3 h0) (15,072.6) 3,116.9 7,499.2
Net change in gold loans & & {5 & /F & &) 6,375.8 (2,036.3) (2,160.8)
Net cash from/(used in) other operating activities
Hitn& & EB e (TR B& 348 188.2 (2,836.6) 610.6
Capital expenditure EZ<BH 32 (1,368.3) (2,767.9) (1,046.0)
Pro forma free cash flow X B AR &R E (412.0) 2,764.0 10,690.4
Net change in bank borrowings R 1T E 7 F & B 5,296.9 450.0 1,192.2
Dividends paid E4J & & (3,349.5) (3,534.0) (6,581.6)
Net cash outflow used in acquisition of subsidiaries
BRI A B AT AR &R R - (1,187.7) -
Other movements E fth & &} (373.6) 518.2 (776.7)
Net increase/(decrease) in bank balances and cash
RITHBRREEM (D) 38R 1,161.8 (989.5) 4,524.3
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Major cash flows items for FY2016
2016 BEETERETERE
(HK$ million BE&#T)

Pro forma free cash flow #§Z BHR &R &
4 10,6904
|

25,000 |

7/499.2  2,160.8

610.6 1,046.0

20,000

15,000 5,787.4

10,000 8,477.1

5,000

.\

1,192.2

== yum 400

6,581.6

776.7

Operating cash flows before movements in working capital
EEESRYMCKERERE
Decrease in inventories

FERD

Net decrease in gold loans
HEEGRDFE

Net cash from other operating activities
HiE & B SRS

Capital expenditure

BEARRR

Net increase in bank borrowings
SRITEFUFE M

Dividends paid

2fRE

Other movements
)

13,001.4

As at A
31.3.2015

Capital Expenditure

The Group's capital expenditure incurred during the year amounted to HK$1,046.0
million (FY2015: HK$2,767.9 million) which was back to our normal level. Capital
expenditure of last financial year was mainly driven up by non-recurring projects such
as the acquisition of an industrial building in Hong Kong as operation centre and the

construction of Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Park in Wuhan.

For the year ended 31 March
Capital expenditure by nature

REGESWEARFEX
(HKS$ million B &7 7T)

3,000 A 2,767.9
2,500
2,000
1,500
1,000 ~
500
0
2015
m Furniture, fixtures and equipment and leasehold improvements
B - RERRENEENELE
M Land and buildings and construction in progress
THREFMNERIR
H Investment properties
RE
Land use rights and patents
T EARRERER
m Plant and machinery and motor vehicles
BEREIBEMNAE
Note: The percentage calculated are subject to minor rounding differences

As at A
31.3.2016

EAXRX
REBFRNERHZ 51,0460 BBEB T (201581
BFEE 27679888 BEZRMUEERE
KEo F—BBFEEAMIETEEFERE
EEBR(PINBBUREEN —RIEREEE
BEHRORBRRNEARBHRELEER) ©

HE3A3NALFE

Capital expenditure by function
RINGEE SV E AR X

(HKS million B &)

3,000

2,500 A

2,000 A

1,500 ~

1,000 ~

500

2,767.9

1,368.3

2014 2015 2016
® Projects JHE

mPOS BEE

m Productions 4 &

Offices HAE

HiE - BALH HARAMEEMER
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Contingent Liabilities
The Group did not have any material contingent liabilities as at 31 March 2016 and 31
March 2015.

Capital Commitments
Details of the Group’s capital commitments as at 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2015
are set out in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

HAREE
AEBMN2016FE3H31HKR2015F3831 B
EAEMERHRELE -

B ARRE
AEBEMN2016FE3A31BEKR2015F3 8318 H
BRRIEFEERNRE MR ERM T 36 o

( )
[=] [=] Major Risk Factors and Control Measures
EIW) ==EBERREHEE
Credit Control EEEH
Most of our transactions in Mainland China with department stores and shopping RMAKRBONTEANEETE AT REY S
malls are on credit, which expose the Group to credit risk. If the department stores LR ZABRELER  FEEEHEEER
or shopping malls have difficulties in financing, it could adversely affect our financial ko HEEEARBBYHOHRGEEE
condition. AR PN BARRIBERER TR E -
We have monitored the receivables turnover and overdue balances carefully, FhAFI 52 1E b BE 420 FE U BR 2% /B 8 K2 SR HA P UL B
strictly followed guidelines of recovering receivables, closely communicated with B BRISHTEWERFEB W T /EIES| R
management of department stores and shopping malls to understand the credibility EQARHEBYHRLEEARBTRYEEUE
and cash flow status of these retail operators, and we have also taken legal actions FETHEACERBESRNRN  RIPEEREK
concerning serious cases. EEREREUEETE -
RMB fluctuation AREEEREH
Our operations in Mainland China exposed the Group to RMB fluctuation risk. REETEAMNERFESERRH AR

ERREER o
We closely monitor the RMB exposure. We have paid close attention to our RMB  H{MZ YR T I /MNERMK - BBRTRPIR
bank balances and intercompany balances denominated in RMB to control the RMB TARBERFHERARBERIRFHEENL
exposure. We have obtained sufficient credit facilities from Mainland China banks to BHARKERZSER - HRPRANHEH
avoid using offshore RMB for financing China operations. We also closely monitored £ RPRPBERNBNRTESZTENG
market information and regularly evaluated the impact. REENEREFRERE - RMOREEYT
BETEERE  WEMFGEFE -
\_ J
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/‘\{ Major Social and Environmental Initiatives

FTEHERBRRER

This year, the Group supported social enterprises by engaging them to provide
services so as to create job and training opportunities for the underprivileged
groups. The venue and performance of the annual spring dinner this year were
decorated and organised by a social enterprise under the Youth Outreach. The
co-operation allowed young people who aspired to work in stage management
to have chances to practise and gain experience.

The Group has a volunteer team, the “CTF CARES”. As at 31 March, 2016, the
number of volunteer team members in Mainland China, Hong Kong and Macau
was 6,549, providing an aggregate of 8,942 man-hours of services.

The Group prepares donation budget and plans every year mainly for
3 aspects, namely the care of children, teenagers and the elderly, education
and medical treatment, each accounting for about one-third of the donations.
In FY2016, the total charitable donations amounted to approximately HK$9.8
million.

Under the name of Bao Bao Family, the Group held the “Bao Bao Family Smart
Dreamer — Charitable Art Exhibition” and bazaars.

The Group sponsored activities of various charitable organisations, including the
YO Dancical of Youth Outreach, “China Children’s Week: Little Artists Big Dream
Drawing Competition” and the charity run of UNICEF as well as the fundraising
gala of Diamond Empowerment Fund.

X EREEE - N2016 FiEEM
HEAEENEBRMARE A5
HEAEMEMEIRE - SFELH
FENSMHGERE B RIFERHTE
HETHEEE  BESREERE
BRNFEARERR  REER -

HABTARBEOLEIR]  BiEZ2016
F3A318 FEABIBRNLE
ETAEE6549F5  BRSEHHE
8,942 /NBF o

BEEEVRNEENFTE T E2E
BRRE -BOFERRENGERE -
HEMBR=-AHE  SLIBNEE
W=D z— 2016 TRFEMNEER
RBEARBEISEREEBT -

UIEEHE NERENHEEHEE
RERR — BELNREEEEH ] -

BEHTRAEZSHENETD BF
% & %t YO Dancical 7 8 R EE &) »
BEEREESENFRERER
NERKBREELE | REEN
LAR Diamond Empowerment Fund #Y£8
MR o
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Major Awards and Recognition

FERERE

I

Governance &i§

Award 218

Presenting Organisation 78 5€ #4148

2015 All-Asia Executive Team

2015 % Z All-Asia Executive Team

1. Most Honored Company — Ranked 26th
Most Honored Company 58 26 {i

2. Best Investor Relations — Second Place
BREREEBR AR — F 45

3. Best CEO — First Place
BETBES — F—H&5l

4. Best CFO — Second Place
BRIEMBEAE — E 45

5. Best Investor Relations Professional — First Place

REREEBRRES — £ &5

Institutional Investor

Directors Of The Year Awards

The Hong Kong Institute of Directors

BEHEER BEREEES
HKIRA Investor Relations Awards Hong Kong Investor Relations Association
BEBREEREKRR BEEREERRHS

1. Best IR Company — Large Cap
BEREEBERRT — KER
2. Best IR by Chairman/CEO — Large Cap
BEREEBRR(EE 1TBER) — KER
3. Best IR by CFO — Large Cap
BEREEBRR (MBRE) — KER
4. Best IRO — Large Cap
BEREEBRES — RER
5. Best IR Presentation Collaterals — Large Cap

REREEBRENH — KER

Corporate Social Responsibility {~# it & & 1T

Award 218 Presenting Organisation fE#Z #13
Caring Company The Hong Kong Council of Social Service
AR REE EELSRBEHS

Consumer Caring Company
B3

GS1 Hong Kong
EREREBTE

Gold Award for Volunteer Service

e e

Social Welfare Department

HEENE

Hong Kong Corporate Citizenship Logo — Enterprise Category
EBLENREIES — XA

Hong Kong Productivity Council
BEREENRER
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Major Awards and Recognition FE#BFR 25T

Corporate Branding 1 % & %

Award $EI18

Presenting Organisation 78 5€ #18

2008 - 2015 Award for Outstanding Contribution Enterprise to
the Standardization of Jewelry Industry
2008 - 2015 FEHRE E ARE{ THESHRERIEE

Gems & Jewelry Trade Association of China

TERETREMTEHRS

2015 Top 10 Jewelry Retail Brands of China

Gems & Jewelry Trade Association of China

015 FEFREAKREEREMTEZEXTARME TEREEAEMTXGS
Best Franchise: Princess/Frozen Product Award Disney
REEME  AERT mtfe

HKMA/TVB Awards for Marketing Excellence 2015
Citation for Excellence in Mainland Marketing
HKMA/TVB # H T 35 5K 8 2% 2015

FEH P B A T ISR BT HR

Hong Kong Management Association

BEREBEXGS

Hong Kong Leaders’ Choice 2016 — Excellent Brand of Jewellery

BBLEEMMBIE2016 — SBHB SRS

Metro Finance Radio and Metro Finance Digital Channel

MBI EERFBBIBHES

IAIR Awards

IAIR K 8

1. Best Company for Leadership/Luxury/Asia
BEEESEAR —NBESGMITHE

2. CEO Of The Year/Luxury/Asia
FETHRY —DNEBEZMITH

IAIR Magazine
IAIR 5%

Outstanding Listed Company Award 2015

The Hong Kong Institute of Financial Analysts and

FHARFEKRE2015 Professional Commentators Limited
BEREDMEMHS

Quamnet Outstanding Enterprise Award — Outstanding Jewelry Retail Network Quamnet

EEZURBHOERR —REKBETERRRE EER

2015 Best China Brands — Ranked 22nd Interbrand

2015 BREFEI MRS 2212

Top 500 Most Valuable Brands in China — Ranked 42nd
HEl 500 fx BB {E m 5 4211

World Brand Lab
HRADEERE
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Design &% &t

Award 218

Presenting Organisation 78 3€ #4148

Chuk Kam Jewellery Design Competition 2016 “Open Group” Award

Hong Kong Jewellers’ & Goldsmiths’ Association

BeEMRET & 2016 ABAE | 2818 BN ERSRENERS
Year of Jewellery Design Excellence — A Heritage in Bloom Bazaar Jewelry
FERNRBERTTR — Bt ETE B HE

E-commerce and Technology & F & # & #} 3%

Award 2218

Presenting Organisation fEAE 48

Digital 1Q Index Luxury China 2016 — No. 1 Luxury Brand for
Digital Competence

2016 PEIECRBBEHEY —BRENE - LESRE

L2

ECR Golden Circle Award 2015 — Technology Innovation Leader
ECR&IRHE 2015 — AIFI R EHEE

Efficient Consumer Response Hong Kong and
GS1 Hong Kong
ECREEBREBERFEHHE

JNA Awards 2015 — Industry Innovator of the Year
INAKRHE2015 — FERIFTRIERE

Jewellery News Asia
DINERE RS
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Risk Management and Internal Controls &

Operational objectives

=R

Internal Audit

RAREZ

Whistleblowing Operational Controls
System RS

HERHE

Strategic objectives

REEER

Compliance objectives

BHRER

Risk Management
[E b E

Internal Controls

RARES 1R

Compliance Controls

AR

BREE RN

Financial objectives

B E R

External Audit
IMEBEX

Financial Controls

g3

To ensure sustainable development, management shall fulfil the following objectives

in three major aspects:

. Operational:  maximise effectiveness and efficiency
. Compliance:

Company, code of business practices and moral standards
. Financial:

In order to realise the Company’s vision, management shall adapt to the latest changes
and overcome difficulties in the five main areas in the Group's strategic roadmap (i.e.
market development, customer service and marketing, products and production,
operations and management, financials) by analysing major risk factors and allocating
resources to strengthen relevant monitoring measures, aiming to fulfil the strategic

objectives of every financial year.

Financial Reporting

B E

comply with laws and regulations, by-laws and rules of the

assure data accuracy, information reliability and asset security
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The Board is responsible for evaluating and determining the nature and extent of
the risks the Company is willing to take in achieving it's strategic objectives, and
ensuring that the Company establishes and maintains appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems.

The systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
various objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance

against material misstatement or loss.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, oversees the management on the design,
implementation and supervision of the risk management and internal control systems.

In the year under review, the Audit Committee reviewed the reports prepared by the

management, internal audit team and external auditors:

. Risk management and internal controls reports
. Internal audit reports

. Follow-ups review of internal audit reports

. Whistleblowing system reports

. Independent auditor’s report

Having considered the findings of these reports and other relevant factors, the Audit
Committee has confirmed that there was no significant issue that would have an
adverse impact on the effectiveness and adequacy of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group.

Risk Management

The Group Risk Management Committee was established in 2012, comprising the
Managing Director, four executive directors and management personnel from Group
Executive Office and Finance & Governance Centre. The committee aims to promote
the awareness of risk management in daily operations and develop best business
practices of the Group.
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In each financial year, the Group Risk Management Committee coordinates the
management of all major business units to walk through the risk management cycle in
accordance with “Enterprise Risk Management Manual”. The six steps included in the
cycle are as follows:

. Risk identification
. Risk analysis
. Risk evaluation

. Risk mitigation
. Risk monitoring
. Risk reporting

As a result of the abovementioned cycle, the three highest risks of the Group were as

follows:

Loss of talents
Stringent economic environment
Brand and reputation damage

These risk factors and the corresponding control measures are further discussed in
“Management Discussion and Analysis” in this annual report.

In the year under review, the Group Risk Management Committee was not aware of
unexpected adverse changes that were significant to the risks related to the Group’s
business.
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Internal Controls

The Board is responsible for the internal controls of the Company, including
operational controls, compliance controls and financial controls, and reviewing their
effectiveness and adequacy annually through the Audit Committee.

The review is based on the internal control framework set down by the Committee
of Sponsoring Organisations of the Treadway Commission which covers the
areas of control environment, risk assessment, control activities, information and
communication and monitoring.

The Audit Committee obtains confirmation from senior management of all major
business units with regards to the effective implementation of internal controls
through self-assessment questionnaires for internal controls collected by the Group
Risk Management Committee. The management has also undertaken in such
questionnaires to fully respond to the related work, including external audit, internal
audit, internal control review, case investigation, risk management and whistleblowing

system.

In the year under review, the Board was not aware of any significant issues that would
have an adverse impact on the effectiveness and adequacy of the internal control
systems of the Group.

Internal Audit

Our internal auditors and PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC") formed an internal audit
team whom independently adopts the risk-based approach to establish the annual
audit plan, in order to assess the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal controls.

Taking into consideration of the size and complexity of the business, and the required
expertise of information technology and other areas, the Board believes that such
composition can provide the most conductive audit advice.

Audit findings and control deficiencies would be communicated between the internal
audit team and management, who is responsible for ensuring these deficiencies are
rectified within a reasonable period. Afterwards, post audit review would be performed
to ensure the remediate actions have been implemented.

In the year under review, the internal audit team was not aware of any material frauds
or deficiencies in internal controls of the Group.
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Whistleblowing System

The system provides a confidential channel to encourage employees to raise concerns
to frauds and other misconduct behaviour.

Being appointed by Audit Committee, whistleblowing officers have formed a team at
the group level to manage the daily operation of the system and report independently
to the Audit Committee.

During the year, whistleblowing officers revised the whistleblowing policy, and poster
design, whistleblowing system has been well known within more than 2,000 stores via
the POS audit programme. Besides, seminars were organised in Shunde and Wuhan
(in which there are many construction, renovation, production and procurement

activities).

During the year under review, whistleblowing officers were not aware of significant
fraud or significant deficiencies in internal controls in the Company.

External Audit

Regarding the roles of external audit and its opinions, please see the Independent
Auditor’s Report in this annual report.
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Nomination
Committee

REEEE

Review the structure,

size and composition

of the Board, assess the
independence of the
independent non-executive
directors and make
recommendations to the
Board on the appointment
and re-appointment

of directors and board
diversity policy

BRESSRB  BER
AR SHEBLFRTE
B URHMEE
MRENEFAEFHESS
ZRBREEBESENE
EFRBEBES

Remuneration
Committee

HFHEEE

Make recommendations to
the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for
the remuneration of all

the directors and senior
management and on

the establishment of a
formal and transparent
procedure for developing
remuneration policy of the
Group for approval by the
Board
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Management

EEE

Audit
Committee

BEREEE

Engage external auditors;
review the Group's financial
information, financial
reporting system, internal
control procedures and risk
management system; and
hear the reports of internal
audit and whistleblowing
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Managing Director

EERKE

Manage the Group’s business and
implement its strategy and policy

EEAREENEB R BTEERM
BUR

Operations

BE

Functional department heads and
management committees formed by
senior executives

WRERFIEER S ETRASARK
NEREEZES
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Executive
Committee

HITZE®

Oversee the day-to-day
management and operation
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authority
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Board Governance Framework and Their Works

The Board's role is to provide leadership of the Company and direction for the
management as an independent decision-making body. Our Board is collectively
responsible and accountable to our shareholders for the Group's performance.

The Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee
each having its respective terms of reference specified by the Board to
undertake detailed governance work. A brief summary of their works during
FY2016 is shown on the chart in the preceding page and further mentioned in
the sections below.

The Executive Committee is delegated with all the powers, authorities
and discretion to act for the Board according to its terms of reference in all
operational, managerial and administrative functions concerning the Company’s
ordinary course of business. It monitors the execution of the Company’s
strategic plans and the operations of all business units of the Company.

Matters beyond its delegated authority are reserved to the Board for decision,
including those transactions which are notifiable transaction, non-exempt
connected transaction under the Listing Rules; or which an executive director
has or together have material interest; and those matters of onerous or unusual
nature.

The roles of our Chairman and Managing Director are clearly defined and there
is an effective segregation of duties between the Board and the management.
Our Chairman, Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry, provides leadership for the Board and
ensures that the Board works effectively and all important issues are discussed
in a timely manner. Our Managing Director, Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent, takes the
lead in managing the Group’s operations and business development.

Directors’ Composition and Appointments

The Board currently comprises a total of 15 directors, with nine executive
directors, one non-executive director and five independent non-executive
directors. The profile, role and function of each director, their relationship with
each other and the membership of the board committees are set out in the
section headed “Profile of Directors and Senior Management” in this annual
report.

The Executive Committee comprises of executive directors. Each executive

director has his own role and function to oversee the Group's operations.
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General Status

The Company has its Board diversity policy and looks for a broad spectrum of
background, to bring along comprehensive considerations in forming Board
decisions. During the year, Mr. Liu Chun-Wai, Bobby, who has been engaging in
the Group's business innovation, was invited to join the Board in the hope for a
younger and more diversified Board.

Independent directors nominated to the Board are required to be of sufficient
calibre and experience for their views to carry weight and pose constructive
challenge to Board proposals.

The five independent non-executive directors come from diverse business and
professional background. Their experience ranges from general management to
professional practices, from China business to global enterprises, from private
investments to companies listed worldwide. All of them have proven experience
in forming corporate strategies, risk management and corporate governance.

While the executive directors possess management experience and professional
knowledge in various fields, the diverse composition of the Board enables us to
connect with a wide range of stakeholders including our customers, suppliers,
business partners, investors and colleagues. The diversity of the Board is
summarised in the following charts:
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. The Nomination Committee held two meetings during the year. New
appointment to the Board was reviewed and approved by the Nomination
Committee of which majority members are independent non-executive
directors; and the new director has to stand for re-election in the forthcoming
shareholders’ meeting pursuant to the Articles where all shareholders are
entitled to vote.

. All directors have formal letters of appointment with the Company for a term
of three years, subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the Articles.
Appointments to the Board and board committees are made on specific terms
to facilitate regular reviews and planning for any adaptations in the structure
and composition of the Board.

Board Effectiveness

Leadership and Control

. Strategies drive our risk-based management approach that aims at seizing
emerging opportunities amid the changing external and internal environment,

in order to achieve sustainability.

. During the year, strategy workshop and risk evaluation workshop were held to
facilitate the Board to draw up the Group's strategy plan for the forthcoming
year and determine the critical tasks and key performance indicators.

. We also organised the annual corporate planning day to lay down the work plans

for various business units and to prepare the annual financial budget of the Group.

The reporting and analysis generated from our information management
system are put under the spotlight by the management who keep a close eye
on the financial budget and analyse the outcomes of its strategies in order to

review or make appropriate adaptations.

. In the four Board meetings held during the year, the Managing Director took
the lead to make reports to the Board on various aspects, including business
performance and prospects, financial performance, risk management and
corporate governance.

. The Company also provides monthly updates to all directors on the Group’s
performance and position to enable the directors to make balanced assessment
and informed decisions for the benefit of the Group.

. The enhanced accountability and objectivity of the management are built on
the scientific management approach mentioned above which promotes a
professional management style.
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Board Independence in Decision-making

We believe that independence is crucial for the Board to work effectively to
create value for our stakeholders as a whole. Notwithstanding the family stake of
89.3%, the Company is committed to maintaining a balance among the interests
of the stakeholders by implementing various corporate governance policies and
practices.

The Group and the controlling shareholder exhibit independence in regard
to their respective operation, asset holding and financial management.
The business nature differs from each other so that conflict of interests are
minimised fundamentally in the absence of directly competing business.

Driving for long-term value is the main objective in making Board decisions.
During the year, the independent non-executive directors raised questions
actively in the Board meetings and board committee meetings. Both the
commercial context and perspectives of minority shareholders are taken into
account for the Board to make thoughtful decisions which are regarded as
reasonable by third parties and to keep the interests of controlling shareholder
and other shareholders in alignment.

In respect of our approach for connected transactions, we work together with
related companies mainly for collaborating efforts in marketing to explore
value-added services for our common customers. While each of us contributes
our edge, we believe such efforts could enhance the competitiveness of our
brand and shareholders’ interests as a whole.

When approving a connected transaction, apart from the fairness of the
agreement terms, independent directors also consider the commercial rationale

and the benefits brought by the proposal to the business of the Group.

It is a norm for the director who is a connected person in relation to the
connected transaction tabled for approval to declare his interest in advance and
then abstain from voting on that resolution, regardless of the materiality of such

interest involved.

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence from all the
independent non-executive directors in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Board is of the view that all the independent non-executive directors
are independent.
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Compliance and Audit

The Company has established policy for inside information disclosures and
its internal controls on the reporting and monitoring systems so that material
matters are escalated to the Board timely for them to judge whether inside
information exists and to issue an announcement to disclose inside information
in due course.

All directors and employees are bound by prevention of insider trading policy
of the Company to refrain from dealing in the Company'’s securities if they are in
possession of any inside information of the Group.

The Company has adopted a code of conduct on terms no less exacting than the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Director of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules regarding the securities
transactions by all directors and those employees who are likely to come across
inside information because of their duties. Having made specific enquiry of all
directors and relevant employees, they confirmed that they had complied with
the required standard as set out in the Model Code during FY2016.

The Board, supported by the finance department, is responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements of the Company and the Group. The
directors were not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. The statement by the auditors of the Company and
the Group regarding their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements
of the Company and the Group is set out in the section headed “Independent
Auditor’s Report” of this annual report.

The Audit Committee held three meetings during the year. They reviewed
the financial statements for the Group's interim and annual results. They also
reviewed reports on the Group's risk management, internal controls, internal
audit and whistleblowing system; and discussed the related matters directly
with the management, external and internal auditors. The Audit Committee has
reviewed and was satisfied with the effectiveness of our risk management and
internal control systems. Further details are included under the section headed
“Risk Management and Internal Controls” in this annual report.
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. The Audit Committee recommended the re-appointment of Deloitte Touche . ERZESERERERY - BERL g

Tohmatsu the Company'’s principal auditor. During FY2016, the total fee paid/ R T B AN T EEBAZEE - NEEMN 2016
payable in relation to audit services of the Group amounting to HK$8.9 million, HREEMEEZRB N EAERE
of which a sum of HK$4.8 million was paid/payable to our principal auditor, BHASIEBB T HPEH ENEE
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, and the remaining was mainly paid/payable to other A . AER S EHMT48EHE
auditors performing audit work for the Company’s subsidiaries in Mainland BT BB EEF AN T A E R
China which were subject to local statutory requirements. The remuneration BARRMAEBREETHNERZIES
paid to Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu and its affiliated firms for services rendered is 14/ N E b B8 - FLEIREREE
listed as follows: B WERS R GATREBEA TN
BemFIMT -
FY2015 FY2016
20154 B B 2016 A BIE &
Types of services HK$’000 HK$'000
BRsER F#ET T
Statutory audit & & B % 4,737 4,793
Non-audit services Mot 3k 2 1% iz # ) 4,168 6,083
8,905 10,876
Note: Non-audit services comprise primarily services on review of interim results, tax advisory and IT system enhancement provided Mzt FERRBEIEEEOAEEREMERTRES  BBERR
to the Group ISR E MR FIRFE
Attendance at Annual General Meeting and Board Meetings BREBEFAERESTEERMLFCE

Number of Meetings Attended/Eligible to attend for FY2016
2016 BEEWE AEEHFEEHRY

Annual
General Board Audit Remuneration Nomination
Meeting Meeting Committee Committee Committee
BREBFXE EXEEH ENERY FMERY REZRY
Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry BRRAE L 0/1 3/4 - 1/2 2/2
Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent BERESE 1/ 4/4 - 2/2 2/2
Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian BERIE L 1/1 4/4 - - -
Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy BEELE 11 4/4 - - -
Mr. Chan Sai-Cheong BRit 8 e 11 4/4 - - -
Mr. Suen Chi-Keung, Peter BEREE 11 4/4 - - -
Mr. Chan Hiu-Sang, Albert PREEA 54 11 4/4 - - -
Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton ERIRER e 11 4/4 - - -
Mr. Liu Chun-Wai, Bobby BiRBEED - 11 - - -
Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson ERERIZ LA 11 4/4 - - -
Mr. Koo Tong-Fat® HEREE 11 3/3 - - -
Mr. Cheng Ming-Fun, Paul EREAGII e 11 4/4 3/3 - 2/2
Dr. Fung Kwok-King, Victor BESE LT 11 4/4 - 2/2 2/2
Mr.Kwong Che-Keung, Gordon B854 11 4/4 3/3 2/2 -
Mr. Lam Kin-Fung, Jeffrey NEE =2 1”1 4/4 3/3 - 2/2
Dr. Or Ching-Fai, Raymond EEE L 11 4/4 3/3 2/2 2/2
Notes: B 5
(1) Mr. Liu Chun-Wai, Bobby was appointed as an executive director of the Company with effect from 1 January 2016. 1) BERBAEER2016F1 A1 BEZEARQATRTES -
(2)  Mr.Koo Tong-Fat resigned as a non-executive director of the Company with effect from 1 January 2016. () HEREEECR2016F1 51 BRHEAQATRHITES -
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Remuneration and Continuing Development

The remuneration policy for the executive directors and senior management is
incentive-based, with a significant portion of discretionary bonus linking to the
overall performance and profitability of the Group, as well as the share price of
the Company. This aims at enhancing accountability by a better alignment of
their rewards with the interests of our shareholders.

The Remuneration Committee held two meetings during the year. The
performance of the executive directors was assessed; and the remuneration
packages of the executive directors and senior management were reviewed
and approved by the Remuneration Committee of which majority members
are independent non-executive directors. They also reviewed the effectiveness
of the Company’s medium to long-term incentives for the management'’s
remuneration package to align with corporate goals to be achieved in a longer
term.

In order to broaden the management’s horizon, the Company sponsors them
to study professional programmes and participate in forums or conferences. It
also commits to enriching the roles to be played by young management and
creating promotional opportunities in their career path which in turn promote
the sustainability of the Group's business.

The Company'’s basic principle for selection of the management is on merits.
Coupled with talents obtained via external recruitment, the Company has built
up its management team primarily through internal promotion.

We tailor-made induction programme for new directors in view of their
background to brief them on the Board proceedings and culture, the operation
and business of the Company, its corporate governance policies, and statutory
duties and responsibilities of directors.

We arrange visits to our management centres and production sites to enable
independent non-executive directors to understand the management,
operation and control systems, as well as the latest innovations. During the
year, we arranged an intensive workshop for them to understand the latest
developments in e-commerce and try our Smart Tray technology applications.

We also encourage colleagues to participate in awards or competitions which
are relevant to their expertise. During the year, we nominated our Managing
Director Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent and Finance Director Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei,
Hamilton to participate in the Directors Of The Year Awards organised by The
Hong Kong Institute of Directors (HKloD). Both of them were selected winners
by the professional judging panel and such recognition was encouraging for the
Company and the management alike.
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The directors also attended seminars or workshops relevant to their profession and
duties as directors. Their training records during the year are summarised as follows:

ESTEHFEMMERESNEXNBHA
BB BE S TR o AL F A AV IR IIC R
E:31

Other Professional Development Activities

HihEXBREY
Attending
trainings
organised by
Name the Company as speaker/trainer as attendant read materials
HAEAL A
=1 4B 1ER#EE HEm ERHEE FREE R
Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry xR v
Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent FRESE v/ v/ v/ v/
Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian ey v/ v/
Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy B|EELRE 4 v
Mr. Chan Sai-Cheong Bt 2 4 v/ v/ v v/
Mr. Suen Chi-Keung, Peter BREREE v/ v/ v
Mr. Chan Hiu-Sang, Albert BREEAE K4 v/ 4 v/
Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton* ERIRER S 4 * v v/ v v/
Mr. Liu Chun-Wai, Bobby BiRBxE v/ v/ v v/
Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson ERERIR B v/ v/ v
Mr. Cheng Ming-Fun, Paul EREAFI S v/ 4
Dr. Fung Kwok-King, Victor BEZE L v v/
Mr. Kwong Che-Keung, Gordon R ST A v v v/
Mr. Lam Kin-Fung, Jeffrey ML v/ 4
Dr. Or Ching-Fai, Raymond BRI v v/
* Our company secretary, Mr. Cheng Ping Hei, Hamilton, had taken no less than 15 hours relevant professional training as * ADRANADWEBRRALE - RELTHRAE320FEE

required under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

Corporate Governance Practices

The Company'’s corporate governance practices are discussed in the section headed
“Governance” in this annual report. During the year ended 31 March 2016, the
Company was in full compliance with all applicable principles and code provisions
of the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules, except for the deviation mentioned below.

. Pursuant to code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code, the Chairman of the Board
should attend the annual general meeting of the Company.

. Due to another meeting engagement, Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry, the Chairman
of the Board, was unable to attend the AGM of the Company held on 31 July
2015.

. Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent, the Managing Director who took the chair of the 2015

AGM, together with other members of the Board who attended this meeting,
were of sufficient calibre for answering questions at the 2015 AGM.
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Executive Directors H1{TE = Responsibilities B &
Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry* (Chairman) NcRc  Strategic direction and overall performance of the Group
ERAE L (EFE) AEBEMNRE S RERRER
Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent (Managing Director) nc,Re  Overall management of the Group
BERESE (EEHKE) AEENERERE
Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian? Brand identity re-creation and marketing activities
B L RS A R S EEE
Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy* Procurement of diamonds and gemstones and production management
BEERE A BEORBREEERE
Mr. Chan Sai-Cheong Mainland China operations
BRiES 4% PEIR 2 75
Mr. Suen Chi-Keung, Peter Hong Kong, Macau and overseas operations
BEBEE BRI KB I 2 T
Mr. Chan Hiu-Sang, Albert Diamond procurement and operations of Diamond Department
PRI SE & BANBARERESE
Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton Financial management and company secretarial functions
ERIRER e 4 B EE RN B ERRE
Mr. Liu Chun-Wai, Bobby Business innovation and Mainland China operation management
BiRBEE (BRI RPBEANEEEERE
Non-Executive Directors E#{1TEE Responsibilities B &
Mr. Cheng Kam Biu, Wilson* Bank and landlord relationship management
BRI S IRITREFBERER
Independent Non-Executive Directors Responsibilities & &
BIAEHITES
Mr. Cheng Ming-Fun, Paul acne  Independent non-executive directors serve a significant role in the Board
ERERFI e to bring independent judgment on the performance, development and
Dr. Fung Kwok-King, Victor ncrre sk management of the Group. As chairmen or members of the Audit
EREE L Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee,
Mr. Kwong Che-Keung, Gordon A nc they also undertake detailed governance work under their respective
B terms of reference
] BYFHTESRESENEETERE  RAEENKRE - #RKA
Mr. Lam Kin-Fung, Jeffrey NN pEBRTEYER - FABKEAR  REEEARFHEERNE
s RRME  BETREESENREETARNEATH
Dr. Or Ching-Fai, Raymond RC*, AC,NC
RS
NC= Nomination Committee member
REZRERE
RC= g;ageémgggmmittee member
5 R

# Four directors are family members related to the Company’s major shareholders. Apart from them, all other directors are not related to each other
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Chairman and Executive Director
Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry, GBS

Aged 69, joined the Group in 1971, was appointed as Chairman and an executive
director in July 2011 and is a member of the Nomination Committee and
Remuneration Committee of the Company. Dr. Cheng is responsible for the strategic
direction and overall performance of the Group. He is a director of certain subsidiaries
of the Group. Dr. Cheng is also chairman and an executive director of New World
Development Company Limited, chairman and managing director of New World
China Land Limited, chairman and an executive director of NWS Holdings Limited
and International Entertainment Corporation, chairman and a non-executive director
of New World Department Store China Limited, Newton Resources Ltd and FSE
Engineering Holdings Limited (became listed in Hong Kong on 10 December 2015), a
non-executive director of SJM Holdings Limited, and an independent non-executive
director of HKR International Limited and Hang Seng Bank Limited, all of which
are listed public companies in Hong Kong. He was also a non-executive director of
Lifestyle International Holdings Limited, which is a listed public company in Hong
Kong, until his retirement on 4 May 2015. In addition, Dr. Cheng is also a director of
several substantial shareholders of the Company, including Cheng Yu Tung Family
(Holdings) Limited, Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings II) Limited, Chow Tai Fook Capital
Limited and Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited and its subsidiary, Chow Tai Fook
Enterprises Limited. Dr. Cheng is chairman of the Advisory Council for The Better Hong
Kong Foundation and a Standing Committee Member of the Twelfth Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference. Dr. Cheng is the eldest son of Dato’ Dr. Cheng Yu-
Tung, the father of Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian, an uncle of Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng,
Conroy, a cousin of Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson and Mr. Cheng Sek-Hung, Timothy and
a nephew of Mr. Cheng Yu-Wai.
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Executive Directors

Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent

Aged 60, joined the Group in 1977, was appointed as Managing Director in July 2011
and is a member of the Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee of
the Company. Mr. Wong is responsible for the overall management of the Group.
Mr. Wong has diverse experience in both operations and management. He was
responsible for developing the Group’s market in Mainland China and in 2008 he was
promoted to managing director of Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Company Limited. He is
also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group and a director of Chow Tai Fook
Enterprises Limited, which is a subsidiary of a substantial shareholder of the Company.
Mr. Wong is a member of the 2016 fair organising committee of the Hong Kong Trade
Development Council for its Hong Kong International Jewellery Show and Hong Kong
International Diamond, Gem and Pearl Show, chairman of the Hong Kong Jewellers’
& Goldsmiths’ Association Ltd., chairman of the supervising committee of the Hong
Kong & Kowloon Jewellers’ & Goldsmiths’ Employees’ Association Ltd, a vice chairman
of the Gems & Jewelry Trade Association of China, a member of Hong Kong Consumer
Council, vice-chairman of the Yantian District General Chamber of Commerce and
a member of the Yantian Committee of Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference. He was awarded Director of The Year Awards 2015 by The Hong Kong
Institute of Directors in December 2015 and named as “CEO of the Year/Luxury/Asia”
at the 2016 IAIR Awards presentation ceremony held by International Alternative

Investment Review.

Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian

Aged 36, joined the Group in 2007, was appointed as an executive director in July 2011.
Dr. Cheng is responsible for the brand identity re-creation and marketing activities of
the Group. Prior to joining the Group, Dr. Cheng worked at UBS AG from September
2003 to April 2006. He is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group, a director
of a substantial shareholder of the Company, Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited
and its subsidiary, Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Limited. Dr. Cheng is executive vice-
chairman and joint general manager of New World Development Company Limited,
an executive director of New World China Land Limited, New World Department Store
China Limited and International Entertainment Corporation, and a non-executive
director of Giordano International Limited and Modern Media Holdings Limited, all of
which are listed public companies in Hong Kong. Dr. Cheng is also chairman of New
World Group Charity Foundation Limited, the vice-chairman of the All-China Youth
Federation, a member of the Tianjin Municipal Committee of The Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference, a vice-chairman of the Youth Federation of the
Central State-owned Enterprises, chairman of the China Young Leaders Foundation,
founder of K11 Art Foundation and a member of the board of the West Kowloon
Cultural District Authority. Dr. Cheng holds a Bachelor of Arts degree (cum laude) from
Harvard University and was conferred the Honorary Doctorate of Humanities by the
Savannah College of Art and Design. Dr. Cheng is a grandson of Dato’ Dr. Cheng Yu-
Tung, a son of Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry, a cousin of Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy,
a nephew of Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson and Mr. Cheng Sek-Hung, Timothy and a
grandnephew of Mr. Cheng Yu-Wai.
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Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy

Aged 38, joined the Group in 2007, was appointed as an executive director in July 2011.
Mr. Cheng is responsible for the procurement of diamonds and gemstones as well
as production management of the Group. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Cheng had
worked at Yu Ming Investment Management Limited from 1999 to 2000 as a corporate
finance executive. Mr. Cheng is an executive director of New World Development
Company Limited, which is a listed public company in Hong Kong. Mr. Cheng is also a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Group and a director of a substantial shareholder
of the Company, Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited and its subsidiary, Chow Tai Fook
Enterprises Limited. He was a non-executive director of China Huishan Dairy Holdings
Company Limited until his resignation in June 2015. Mr. Cheng holds a Bachelor of Arts
degree in Economics from The University of Western Ontario. He is a member of the
executive committee of the Diamond Federation of Hong Kong, China Ltd.. Mr. Cheng
is a grandson of Dato’ Dr. Cheng Yu-Tung, a nephew of Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry, Mr.
Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson and Mr. Cheng Sek-Hung, Timothy, a cousin of Dr. Cheng Chi-
Kong, Adrian and a grandnephew of Mr. Cheng Yu-Wai.

Mr. Chan Sai-Cheong

Aged 53, joined the Group in 1985, was appointed as an executive director in July 2011.
Mr. Chan is responsible for the Group’s operations in Mainland China. Mr. Chan has
been in the jewellery industry for 35 years. He is also a director of certain subsidiaries
of the Group. Mr. Chan is a non-executive director of Giordano International Limited,
which is a listed public company in Hong Kong. Mr. Chan is an administrative director
of the Gems and Jewellery Trade Association of China, an executive vice-chairman of
the Guangdong Gold and Silver Jewellery Chamber of Commerce, a vice-chairman
of the Shenzhen Gold & Jewellery Association, a general vice-chairman of Gold
Association of Guangdong Province, a vice-chairman of the Guangdong Golden
Jewellery and Jade Industry’s Association and a director of the Gemmological Institute,
China University of Geosciences (Wuhan).

Mr. Suen Chi-Keung, Peter

Aged 51, joined the Group in 1985, was appointed as an executive director in July
2011. Mr. Suen is responsible for the Group’s Hong Kong, Macau and overseas
operations. He is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Suen holds an
Executive Master’'s degree in Business Administration from The Chinese University of
Hong Kong.

Mr. Chan Hiu-Sang, Albert

Aged 65, joined the Group in 1977, was appointed as an executive director in July
2011. Mr. Chan is responsible for the diamond procurement and operations of the
Group’s diamond department. He is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group.
Mr. Chan holds a Bachelor's degree in Business from Western Illinois University. Mr.
Chan is a Graduate Gemologist of the Gemological Institute of America, a Fellow of The
Gemmological Association of Great Britain and a Lifetime Member of the Gemological
Institute of America, Alumni Association.

98 Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited Annual Report 2016

EEELEE

WF38E% 0 MR2007FMAKREBE KR2011F
TREZEANTEE HAEEEHEA B
LRBREETE - MAARNEBR - BMELEH
1999 F £ 2000 F A B IR EEEFR A AIET
CERETHAB BELERAFERERE
RATHTES  ZATNBEBLTARLQT -
BMEERAEAERE THBRARAZES 1A
AABREERRBAARE (BER) BRQ B REH
BARARBLEERATZES - HEAY
BB LS EZRERARFHITES » N2015
FoARE BEEBEARABAZBLEEY
BLEY - HAEBEBABRZERATVELES
EBRE BELEAZERBHEBELZRERR
BRAHL  BIRELERBBBLEZER
BEMBE L 2ZERARBIRELE ZFR -

BRitt S ST 4%

WES35 > R1985FMAREE - R20115F7
PEZERPTES BRAELESEAEEHEH
AER - BREERERBITHEZBISF - &
TAREBETHEB AR ZES - REERE
ANEBRERARZIRTES  HAEEL
TARAT - REEAPEKRBEEAEMTE
HEEKES ERECKRENENSELAS
R -RITESUEENTEDZRIER &
REESHEEKEER ERESRHUEE
BERESEEERTEHE AR (RE)%E
BIREE o

BERLEE

WES1E R1985FMAREE 2011 F7H
BEZIANTES BRELEBEREEB R
BREMNZES - BEABEEEE THEBEAR
REE -BREEBEEBPUKRBITHAET
EEEELEN -

BREEE &

BFE658 M1977FEMARER > 201MF7AH
BZARITES REELEBELREEEAD
CHEERBREE - HAAAEEETHEL
AREE -RELBEAFIHEABSHEZ L
B -RAEAEEERERMNEREIM -
AT BEREHEEREERZHERER
REEHKRBEE -



Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton

Aged 41, joined the Group in 2004, was appointed as an executive director in July
2011. Mr. Cheng is the finance director and company secretary of the Group and is
responsible for the Group’s financial management and company secretarial functions.
He is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Cheng holds a Bachelor
of Business Administration degree in Professional Accountancy from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong. He is a Fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, a Fellow of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and
a Chartered Financial Analyst. He is also a member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Directors. Mr. Cheng was awarded Director of the Year Awards 2015 by the Hong Kong
Institute of Directors in December 2015.

Mr. Liu Chun-Wai, Bobby

Aged 41, joined the Group in 1999, was appointed as an executive director in January
2016. Mr. Liu is responsible for the business innovation of the Group and managing the
Mainland China Management Centre. He has also been responsible for developing the
Group's e-commerce and high-end luxury jewellery business in Mainland China since
2010. He is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Liu holds a Master of
Business Administration degree from the University of Western Ontario and a Bachelor
of Science degree in Computer Mathematics from Carleton University. He has over 17

years of experience in retail and administrative management.

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson

Aged 57, joined the Group in 1979, was appointed as a non-executive director in
July 2011. Mr. Cheng is responsible for the Group’s bank and landlord relationship
management. Mr. Cheng is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group and a
director of Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Limited, a subsidiary of a substantial shareholder
of the Company. Mr. Cheng is currently an executive director of International
Entertainment Corporation, which is a listed public company in Hong Kong. Mr. Cheng
is a vice-president of The Chinese Gold and Silver Exchange Society. Mr. Cheng holds
a Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics from the University of Hawaii, Honolulu. Mr.
Cheng is a nephew of Dato’ Dr. Cheng Yu-Tung, a cousin of Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry
and Mr. Cheng Sek-Hung, Timothy, an uncle of Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian and Mr.
Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy and a nephew of Mr. Cheng Yu-Wai.
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Mr. Cheng Ming-Fun, Paul, JP

Aged 79, was appointed as an independent non-executive director in September
2012 and is a member of the Audit Committee and Nomination Committee of the
Company. Mr. Cheng holds a Bachelor of Arts degree from Lake Forest College (lllinois,
the United States) and a Master’s degree in Business Administration from the Wharton
Graduate School of Business at The University of Pennsylvania. He is deputy chairman
and an independent non-executive director of Esprit Holdings Limited, a listed public
company in Hong Kong; and an independent non-executive director of Global Logistic
Properties Limited (a company listed on the Singapore Stock Exchange) and Pacific
Alliance China Land Limited (a company listed on the AIM Board of the London Stock
Exchange). In addition, he is a director of the CHG Capital Growth Fund. He was an
independent non-executive director of Kingboard Chemical Holdings Limited and
Pou Sheng International (Holdings) Limited, which are both listed public companies
in Hong Kong. He was also an independent non-executive chairman of Vietnam
Infrastructure Limited, which is listed on the AIM Board of the London Stock Exchange,
until his resignation in June 2014. He was a former member of the Hong Kong
Legislative Council as well as the former chairman of Inchcape Pacific Limited, N M
Rothschild & Sons (Hong Kong) Limited, The Link Management Limited and the Hong
Kong General Chamber of Commerce.
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Dr. Fung Kwok-King, Victor, GBM, GBS, CBE

Aged 70, was appointed as an independent non-executive director in November 2011
and is chairman of the Nomination Committee and a member of the Remuneration
Committee of the Company. Dr. Fung holds Bachelor’s and Master’s Degrees in
Electrical Engineering from the Massachusetts Institute of Technology and a Doctorate
in Business Economics from Harvard University. He is group chairman of the Fung
Group, a Hong Kong based multinational which comprises major operating groups
engaging in trading, logistics, distribution and retailing. They include publicly-listed
Li & Fung Limited, Global Brands Group Holding Limited, Convenience Retail Asia
Limited and Trinity Limited. He is also honorary chairman of Li & Fung Limited. In
addition, Dr. Fung is an independent non-executive director of Koc Holding A.S. (a
company listed on the Istanbul Stock Exchange). He retired from the Board of China
Petrochemical Corporation (PRC) end of January 2016. He was an independent non-
executive director of Baosteel Group Corporation (PRC) from October 2005 to January
2013, and BOC Hong Kong (Holdings) Limited (Hong Kong) from June 2002 to 11 June
2014. In 2015, Dr. Fung was appointed Chairman of the Advisory Board of the Asia
Global Institute at The University of Hong Kong, a new multi-disciplinary think-tank
to assume and carry forward the mission and operations of Fung Global Institute, of
which Dr. Fung was Founding Chairman (July 2010-June 2015). In public service, Dr.
Fung is a member of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference. He is also
a member of the Economic Development Commission of the Hong Kong Government,
and chairman of the Steering Committee on the Hong Kong Scholarship for Excellence
Scheme. Dr. Fung was chairman of the Hong Kong Trade Development Council
(1991-2000), the Hong Kong representative on the APEC Business Advisory Council
(1996-2003), chairman of the Hong Kong Airport Authority (1999-2008), chairman of
the Council of The University of Hong Kong (2001-2009), chairman of the Greater Pearl
River Delta Business Council (2004-February 2013), a member of the Commission on
Strategic Development of the Hong Kong Government (2005-June 2012), chairman of
the International Chamber of Commerce (“ICC") (2008-2010), a member of WTO Panel
on Defining the Future of Trade (2012-April 2013) and a vice chairman of China Centre
for International Economic Exchanges (March 2009-October 2014). The Government of
Hong Kong awarded Dr. Fung the Gold Bauhinia Star in 2003 and the Grand Bauhinia
Medal in 2010 for his distinguished service to the community in Hong Kong.
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Mr. Kwong Che-Keung, Gordon

Aged 66, was appointed as an independent non-executive director in November
2011 and is chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the Remuneration
Committee of the Company. Mr. Kwong is an independent non-executive director
of Agile Property Holdings Limited, China COSCO Holdings Company Limited, China
Power International Development Limited, CITIC Telecom International Holdings
Limited, Global Digital Creations Holdings Limited, Henderson Investment Limited,
Henderson Land Development Company Limited, NWS Holdings Limited, OP Financial
Investments Limited, and FSE Engineering Holdings Limited (became listed in Hong
Kong on 10 December 2015), all of which are listed public companies in Hong Kong.
He was also an independent non-executive director of China Chengtong Development
Group Limited until his resignation on 1 November 2013 and an independent
supervisor of the supervisory committee of Beijing Capital International Airport
Company Limited until his resignation on 30 June 2014 upon completion of his term.
Mr. Kwong is a fellow member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Kwong
was a Partner of PriceWaterhouse from 1984 to 1998, an independent member of the
Council of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange from 1992 to 1997, during which, he had
acted as convener of both the Compliance Committee and the Listing Committee.

Mr. Lam Kin-Fung, Jeffrey, GBS, JP

Aged 64, was appointed as an independent non-executive director in November 2011
and is a member of the Audit Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company.
Mr. Lam is also an independent non-executive director of C C Land Holdings Limited,
China Overseas Grand Oceans Group Limited, Bracell Limited, Wynn Macau, Limited
and HNA International Investment Holdings Limited, all of which are listed public
companies in Hong Kong. He was also an independent non-executive director of Hsin
Chong Group Holdings Limited (formerly known as Hsin Chong Construction Group
Limited) until his resignation on 10 May 2014. Mr. Lam is a member of the National
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference. He also holds
a number of other public and community service positions including being a non-
official member of the Executive Council and a member of the Legislative Council in
Hong Kong, chairman of the Assessment Committee of Mega Events Fund, a member
of the board of Airport Authority Hong Kong, a council member of Hong Kong Trade
Development Council, a general committee member of the Hong Kong General
Chamber of Commerce, chairman of Independent Commission Against Corruption
(ICAC) Complaints Committee, a member of Fight Crime Committee, a director of the
Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited and the board of Heifer International-Hong
Kong.
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Dr. Or Ching-Fai, Raymond, SBS, JP

Aged 66, was appointed as an independent non-executive director in November
2011 and is chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit
Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company. Dr. Or is also chairman, chief
executive officer and an executive director of China Strategic Holdings Limited, vice-
chairman and an independent non-executive director of G-Resources Group Limited,
chairman and an independent non-executive director of Esprit Holdings Limited, and
an independent non-executive director of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
Limited, Television Broadcasts Limited and Regina Miracle International (Holdings)
Limited (became listed in Hong Kong on 8 October 2015), all of which are listed public
companies in Hong Kong. Dr. Or is appointed by Aquis Entertainment Limited (a
company listed on the Australian Securities Exchange) as deputy chairman and a non-
executive director in August 2015. Dr. Or was a former vice-chairman of Hang Seng
Bank Limited until his retirement in May 2009. Dr. Or was deputy chairman of the
Council of City University of Hong Kong until 31 December 2013.
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Honorary Chairman
Dato’ Dr. Cheng Yu-Tung, GBM

Aged 90, joined the Group in 1947, was appointed as Company’s honorary chairman
and a non-executive director in July 2011. He retired from the position of non-
executive director in December 2012 and retained the title of Honorary Chairman.
Dr. Cheng is a director of several substantial shareholders of the Company, including
Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) Limited, Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings Il) Limited,
Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited and Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited and its subsidiary,
Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Limited. Dr. Cheng is the father of Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun,
Henry, the grandfather of Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian and Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng,
Conroy, an uncle of Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson and Mr. Cheng Sek-Hung, Timothy and
a brother of Mr. Cheng Yu-Wai.

Honorary advisers to the Board of Directors

Mr. Ho Pak-Tao

Aged 85, joined the Group in 1947, was appointed as an honorary adviser to the
Board with effect from August 2011 and is responsible for advising on research and
development. Mr. Ho is also a director of a substantial shareholder of the Company,
Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited and its subsidiary, Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Limited.

Mr. Cheng Yu-Wai

Aged 84, joined the Group in 1949, was appointed as an honorary adviser to the Board
with effect from August 2011 and is responsible for advising on procurement. Mr.
Cheng is also a director of a substantial shareholder of the Company, Chow Tai Fook
(Holding) Limited and its subsidiary, Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Limited. Mr. Cheng is a
brother of Dato’ Dr. Cheng Yu-Tung, an uncle of Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry, Mr. Cheng
Kam-Biu, Wilson and Mr. Cheng Sek-Hung, Timothy, and a granduncle of Dr. Cheng
Chi-Kong Adrian and Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy.

Mr. Cheng Sek-Hung, Timothy

Aged 65, joined the Group in 1994, was appointed as an honorary adviser to the Board
with effect from August 2011. Mr. Cheng is a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Group. Mr. Cheng is also a director of a substantial shareholder of the Company, Chow
Tai Fook (Holding) Limited and its subsidiary, Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Limited. Mr.
Cheng is a nephew of Dato’ Dr. Cheng Yu-Tung, a cousin of Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry,
an uncle of Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong Adrian and Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy, a cousin of
Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson and a nephew of Mr. Cheng Yu-Wai.
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Senior Management

Dr. Tan Guet-Lan, Lauren

Aged 49, joined the Group in 2011, is General Counsel of the Group. She is responsible
for overseeing the Legal Department of the Group. Dr. Tan is a lawyer with over 20
years of international legal experience in regional and global roles in Asia, North
America and Europe providing legal advice and support to multinational and start-up
companies at both management and operational level.

Mr. Chan Yee-Pong, Alan

Aged 44, joined the Group in 2010, is deputy general manager of the Group and
director of the Branding Department. Mr. Chan is mainly responsible for the branding
and marketing activities of the Group. Mr. Chan has over 21 years of experience in
luxury branding and marketing.

Mr. Tsang Siu-Kwong

Aged 45, joined the Group in 1993, is deputy general manager of the Group and head
of the Management Information System Department. Mr. Tsang is mainly responsible
for managing the information system of the Group. Mr. Tsang has over 23 years of
experience in information technology.

Mr. Chan Chi Kong, Morison

Aged 49, joined the Group in 2012, is deputy general manager of the Group. Mr.
Chan is responsible for corporate planning and the related affairs of the Group. Mr.
Chan has over 26 years of experience in accounting, auditing, corporate finance and
management. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, the Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators, and a Chartered Financial Analyst. Mr. Chan is the past Chairman of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants Hong Kong. He is currently a member
of the Professional Development Sub-committee of the ACCA Hong Kong, Human
Resources Development Management Committee of the Hong Kong Management
Association and Council of Management of the Hong Chi Association.

Mr. Lau King Ming
Aged 49, joined the Group in 2013, is a deputy general manager of the Group. Mr.
Lau is responsible for the Group’s production management and the management of
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Park in Wuhan. Mr. Lau has over 26 years of management and
consultancy experience.
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Mr. Wong Kim-Ming, Mark

Aged 54, joined the Group in 1986, is senior manager of the Diamond Department.
Mr. Wong is responsible for the operation of the Diamond Department and diamond
manufacturing management of the Group. Mr. Wong has over 29 years of experience
in the jewellery industry.

Mr. Cheng Ming-Chi

Aged 44, joined the Group in 1994, is senior manager in the Procurement (Gemstones)
Department. Mr. Cheng is responsible for managing and purchasing gemstones such
as jadeite, colour stones and pearls for the Group. Mr. Cheng has over 21 years of
experience in the jewellery industry.

Mr. Lam Hung Shing, Max

Aged 33, joined the Group in 2011, is creative director of the Group. He is responsible
for the design and development of jewellery products. Mr. Lam has over 12 years of
experience in jewellery design. He was awarded Hong Kong Ten Outstanding Designer
Award in 2014 and is an adjunct professor of the Shanghai International College of
Fashion and Innovation, Donghua University.

Mr. Tam Chun-Wah, Daniel

Aged 53, joined the Group in 2011, is head of Production Management Centre of
the Group. Mr. Tam is responsible for the production technology innovation of the
Group. He has over 23 years of experience in jewellery manufacturing and 8 years of
experience in gold inventory management.

Mr. Wong Tang, Alex

Aged 57, joined the Group in 2000, is the general manager responsible for managing
the Hong Kong and Macau Management Centre and Chow Tai Fook Fei Cui Testing
Centre of the Group. Mr. Wong has over 42 years of experience in the jewellery
industry. Mr. Wong holds an Executive Master’s degree in Business Administration
from The Chinese University of Hong Kong. He is also a Graduate Gemologist of
the Gemological Institute of America and a Certified Gemmologist (Fei Cui) of the
Gemmological Association of Hong Kong Limited.

Ms. Danita On

Aged 39, joined the Group in 2012, is director of Investor Relations and Corporate
Communications of the Group. Ms. On is mainly responsible for maintaining effective
communications with investors and media. Ms. On has over 18 years of experiences in
auditing, management consulting, equity research, asset management and investor
relations. She is a member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
a Chartered Financial Analyst.
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Directors’ Report EE &R

The Board is pleased to present the annual report of the Company together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for FY2016.

Principal Activities

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group’s core business is
manufacturing and selling of mass luxury and high-end luxury jewellery, including
gem-set products, gold products and platinum/karat gold products, and provision
of related services; and distributing watches of various brands. The activities of the
principal subsidiaries are set out in note 40 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group's revenue is derived from business activities conducted in Mainland China,
Hong Kong, Macau and other markets. The segment information of the Group’s

operation is set out in note 7 to the consolidated financial statements.

Results and Dividends

The results of the Group for FY2016 are set out in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income on page 136.

The directors recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK8.0 cents per share
(FY2015: 15.0 cents per share) and a special dividend of HK22.0 cents per share for
FY2016, amounting to approximately HK$3,000.0 million (FY2015: HK$1,500.0 million).
Such payment of dividends will be subject to the approval of shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to be held on Tuesday, 2 August
2016 and is payable to shareholders whose names appear on the register of members
of the Company at the close of business on Tuesday, 9 August 2016. Together with
the interim and special dividends of HK50.0 cents per share paid in December 2015,
the total distribution of dividend by the Company for FY2016 will be HK80.0 cents per
share (FY2015: HK28.0 cents). The payment date of the final and special dividends is
expected to be on or about 18 August 2016.
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Business Review

FY2016 continued to be a year filled with challenges amid the volatile macro-economic
environment in Greater China. The Group’s revenue and profit decreased and we
slowed down the pace of POS openings. Despite the headwinds ahead, the Group's
underlying competences and strategies remain strong. We are dedicated to leverage
the Internet and technology to extract online-to-offline synergies and direct traffic
to our distribution channels. Besides, we will be more selective in opening new POS
and aim at enhancing customers’ shopping experience by creating more visual and
emotional connections and optimising our product portfolio. We will further invest for
the future to strengthen our infrastructure and talents development.

A review of the Group’s business and operations for the year as well as a discussion on
the likely future developments are provided throughout this annual report, particularly
in the following sections:

—  “Chairman’s Statement”

—  “Managing Director’s Strategic Report”

—  “Management Discussion and Analysis”

Further discussion on the Group’s principal risks and uncertainties, compliance with

the relevant laws and regulations, environmental policies and performance and key

relationships with its stakeholders are provided throughout the “Governance” section

in this annual report, particularly in the following sub-sections:

—  "Risk Management and Internal Controls”

—  "Board Governance”

—  “Investor Relations”

—  "Corporate Social Responsibility” (the full report is available on our corporate
website)

Financial Summary

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five
financial years is set out on page 218.

Share Capital

Details of the Company’s share capital are set out in note 33 to the consolidated
financial statements. There is no movement in the share capital during the year.

Distributable Reserves

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 March 2016 amounted to
approximately HK$5,539.3 million (31 March 2015: HK$5,536.8 million).

Movements in reserves of the Group during the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 140.
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Pre-emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or the laws of the
Cayman Islands.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Listed Securities

The Company had not redeemed any of its listed securities during the year. Neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased or sold any of the Company’s listed
securities during the year.

Directors

The directors during the year and up to the date of this annual report are:

Executive Directors

Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry

Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent

Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian

Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy

Mr. Chan Sai-Cheong

Mr. Suen Chi-Keung, Peter

Mr. Chan Hiu-Sang, Albert

Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton

Mr. Liu Chun-Wai, Bobby (appointed with effect from 1 January 2016)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson
Mr. Koo Tong-Fat (resigned with effect from 1 January 2016)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Cheng Ming-Fun, Paul

Dr. Fung Kwok-King, Victor

Mr. Kwong Che-Keung, Gordon

Mr. Lam Kin-Fung, Jeffrey

Dr. Or Ching-Fai, Raymond

In accordance with articles 83 and 84 of the Articles, Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent, Mr.
Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy, Mr. Chan Hiu-Sang, Albert, Mr. Suen Chi-Keung, Peter, Mr. Liu
Chun-Wai, Bobby and Mr. Lam Kin-Fung, Jeffrey will retire at the forthcoming annual
general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.
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Mr. Koo Tong-Fat resigned with effect from 1 January 2016 as a non-executive director.
Mr. Koo confirmed that he had no disagreement with the Board and there were no
other matters relating to his resignation that need to be brought to the attention of
the shareholders of the Company.

Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the directors has a service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries
which is not determinable within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.

Directors’ Interests in Transactions, Arrangements and
Contracts

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no transactions, arrangements and contracts
of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which any of the Company’s
subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries or parent companies was a party and in which a
director of the Company or the director’s connected party had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.
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Continuing Connected Transactions

The Group has certain ongoing transactions carried on with connected persons
with expected annual transaction amounts exceeding the “de minimis” exemption
threshold and therefore the Company reports these non-exempt continuing
connected transactions during FY2016 under the Listing Rules. These transactions
are mainly related to lease of premises and sale and purchase of goods and services.
Information about the connected persons is shown on page 114. Details of these

transactions are set out in the tables below.

Lease of premises ) £ A&

ERE

REEBFHEBEEALETETRS  REFE
RETHEBBREREKFT  HARXFAREL
MRAER 2016 RFERNNZEFRRISE
BEXS ZEXZTEERYEBEEURE
BEEMRERE - EHRBEALHERSR
REN4E - ZEXZNHBHEINT &R -

Name of counterparties

ZHHTaR

Main purposes of the leases

HEFTEAR

Master/framework
agreement date
mE/MERBZEAH

Next renewal date
TREEZBH

CTFE
BXBEEE

Standalone retail shops,
industrial and office uses
in Hong Kong

REBNBELZEE
IERBAERR

28 November 2011*

2011511 B288*

31 March 2017
201793 H831H

NWD
iR R

Offices and standalone

retail shops in Hong Kong

REBHOMRLE
BYZREE

28 November 2011/
11 April 2014
2011 FE 115288/
2014F 48118

30 June 2017
2017796 B30H

NWDS
HERER

Concessionaire counters
operated in department stores
in Mainland China

RABEREEE AR
FREE

22 March 2012**

201238228 *

30 June 2017
20176 A30H

Annual cap approved and actual amount incurred for FY2016 (HKSmillion)

016 HFEMNCHEFE ERRERSHLESH(BEBT)

Annual cap 108.0 178.0 348.0
FELR
Amount incurred 76.2 126.2 74.0
ERBESHE
Annual cap approved for subsequent financial years (HK$million)
HEHRFENCHEFELR(BEHET)
FY2017 108.0 199.0 455.0
2017 ST BUF B
Notes: B & -
* This agreement was renewed on 1 April 2014 * ZER2014F4 81 HER
** This agreement was renewed on 1 July 2014 ** R 2014F7 81 HER
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Sale and purchase of goods and services 4 & % & 5 & SR

Name of counterparties

REHATERE

Major types of goods and services

EmkRENETREE

Master/framework agreement date

FE/ERBEAS

Next renewal date
TREEZEBH

NWDS
MHREE

Use of shopping vouchers,
prepaid shopping cards,
joint name vouchers etc.
to purchase goods at
NWDS stores, and settlement
of respective purchase value,
commissions and rebates,
where appropriate

ERAHES ANBYFR
BEHES SRR
BEENBESEM
WHEAHEBEEHE -
BEREF (EA)

22 March 2012/11 April 2014
2012 38228/2014F48 11 R

30 June 2017
20176 H30H

NWCL
57 R B it

Use of gift vouchers to
purchase goods in
our Group’s POS and
settlement of respective
voucher value and rebates;

sale of gold products

ERESFRAKEET
TEHBEER
TN EERSEER
Bl HEEEER

19 March 2013%**
201343 A 19 B ***

30June 2018
2018 6 A30H

NCE

Polishing, processing and
handling of gemstones for
the Group, and provision
of related technology,
related assets and
other ancillary services,

products and devices

AAEEEAWE -
INTRERIE - iRA4HEEE
Biff - HEAEEMN
HtpmERY - EMK
IA

29 January 2016
201651 H29H

28 January 2019
201951528 H

Annual cap approved and actual amount incurred for FY2016 (HKSmillion)

016 HRFENCHEFE LRREERESR(BEBT)

Annual cap 64.0 369.2 90.0
FELR

Amount incurred 0.7 41.0 68.4
BRBEESHE

Annual cap approved for subsequent financial years (HK$million)

HENBFENCHEFELR(BEET)

FY2017 96.0 390.1 130.0
2017 T E

FY2018 N/A T 3E A 461.0 240.0
2018 AU

Note:

FEE

Hrx This agreement was renewed on 1 July 2015
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The Group'’s pricing policy and internal control on continuing
connected transactions

The Company has entered into master agreements or framework agreements to
set out the principles governing the above continuing connected transactions. The
Group maintains a pricing policy which servers as a guidance for the negotiation with
counterparties regarding the respective definitive agreements under the continuing
connected transaction arrangements of the Group.

(@)  For rental of premises, prevailing market rates around the time of entering into
the respective tenancy agreements will be followed. The Group will obtain
comparison from relevant market information from the market or independent
valuers and with rental rates of premises in similar locations leased by the
Group.

(b)  For sale of goods and services, retail or wholesale prices (as the case maybe)
and discretionary discounts which the Group offers or is willing to offer to
independent customers around the time of transaction will apply.

(c)  For purchase of goods, services and other assets, prevailing market prices
around the time of transaction will apply. The Group will obtain quotations
or tenders from independent third parties for goods, services or asssets with
similarities to compare with the prices and terms offered in the market; if there
is no sufficient comparable in the market, the Group will make reference to the
reasonable costs for developing or providing such goods, services or assets plus
a reasonable profit margin that commensurates with industry practices.

The Group will monitor industry practices and market trends on a regular basis to
ensure the terms offered to the Group are either equivalent to or better than the
prevailing market prices.

EEEERRARGEFAES S ZAME
=

AN A BRI AR S W RAELR 175 58 LA B 51 AR RS
RARE FRFHERERS - ARERBEE
BE RRHTESECSERERSZHT
HERRE R E g -

(@) WFEEESH X KAKITAEEESE
ERNTSERAMKE - AEEERH
S LEREBAEMESHEBNTEE
& RIREEE AU I EE YN
HEEHLER -

b) HEERMRBRMESE  FKAETX
SRS RERMIAEIETN
ZEERIMBERTER) RPEE
E o

\
4

(0 BEER EREXHMEEST  HA
ETRSZKEMSERARE -SEER
BETEURSNBELE =7 FTiRM
HREHZE LB TS EERT
BRAR ; NHHEWET D AELE
Ha&E  SEHZERERREHEHEE
W BEREENSERAE » RinAHE
THEEREFTNESERE -

SEBEMENTEERNTSBE - LUE

ROEERHNESQOERET SEREER
EfEe
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Relationships between counterparties

Other than NCE, the other counterparties to the continuing connected transactions
mentioned above are connected persons of the Company mainly due to direct or
indirect shareholding held by the Company’s substantial shareholder, CTF Holding, in
these counterparties. Shareholding relationships among the Company, CTFE, NWD,
NWDS and NWCL are illustrated in the simplified chart below:

CTF Holding"
BREER"

B HHHZEHE

BRNCE25h » LS ERER S NEMXZH T
BRAAAWEAEAL TERARARAE
ERREARBEREELBEREZEHTFH
[RAE - ART) - ARIBRE - HERERE A
RBEEENT R P ELENSRERRBLR
TEEE :

The Company
RAF]

100.0%

NWD(3)
it RERY

72.3% 99.1%
NWDS" NwCL®
HREEY it R E®

Notes:

(1) Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited

(2) Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Limited

(3) New World Development Company Limited (stock code: 17)
(4) New World Department Store China Limited (stock code: 825)
(5) New World China Land Limited (stock code: 917)

(6) The approximate percentages of shareholding are shown for reference only to illustrate the relationships between the
connected parties. The information is sourced from the Disclosure of Interests published on the Stock Exchange website as at
the date of annual report, which however may not be updated or correct

New Cutting Edge Limited (“NCE") and its subsidiaries are majority-controlled
companies indirectly held by Mr. Cheng Kam-Chiu, Stewart, who is a family member
and therefore an associate of certain directors of the Company under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. As such, NCE and its subsidiaries are connected persons of the
Company.
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Annual review of the continuing connected transactions

At the end of each financial year, the management will prepare a summary of
the pricing and other relevant terms of those non-exempt continuing connected
transactions for the review of the Executive Committee to ensure that those
transactions are entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business, on normal
commercial terms or better and in accordance with the relevant agreements on terms
which are fair and reasonable. Our internal audit team will further select samples from
those transactions and compare them with similar types of transactions entered into
by the Group with independent third parties during that financial year.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Company has engaged the
Company’s auditor to perform certain review procedures in order to report on the
Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard
on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or
Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
"Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing
Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor
has issued his unqualified letter in respect of the continuing connected transactions
disclosed by the Group in this annual report in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the
Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the
Stock Exchange.

The results of the review procedures performed by each of the Executive Committee,
the internal audit team and the auditor of the Company were reported to the
independent non-executive directors in the Audit Committee meeting. After review
by the Audit Committee, the independent non-executive directors confirmed that
the continuing connected transactions were entered into (i) in the ordinary and usual
course of business of the Group; (ii) either on normal commercial terms or better; and
(iii) according to the relevant agreements governing them on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Announcements were published regarding the Group’s non-exempt continuing
connected transactions. The directors confirm that the Company has complied with
the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in so
far as they are applicable.

HEREXSNEESEX
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NAERENFEREIZNEBRNK 69
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Connected Transaction

Formation of Joint Venture

On 25 August 2015, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, Chow Tai Fook Jewellery
(Shenzhen) Co. Ltd., entered into a joint venture agreement with the respective wholly-
owned subsidiaries of CTFE and NWD for the purposes of forming certain joint venture
entities to jointly develop and operate a shopping complex in Qianhai, Shenzhen.

The effective interests in the joint venture entity held by the Group, CTFE and NWD
were 30%, 50% and 20% respectively. The total investment in the said joint venture
entity was RMB350 million, of which RMB105 million was contributed by the Group,
representing 30% of the total investment.

Details of this connected transaction is disclosed in the Company’s announcement
dated 25 August 2015.

Related Party Transactions

The significant related party transactions entered into by the Group during the year
set out in note 39 to the financial statements include transactions that constitute
connected transactions and continuing connected transactions for which the
disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules have been complied
with.

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year, less than 30.0% of the Group's revenue was attributed to the Group’s
five largest customers. Besides, 71.1% of the Group’s total purchases were attributed
to the Group’s five largest suppliers and 48.9% of the Group's total purchases were
attributed to the Group’s largest supplier. To the best of the directors’ knowledge,
none of the directors, their respective close associates (as defined in the Listing Rules)
and any shareholder who to the knowledge of the directors owned more than 5.0% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at 31 March 2016 held any interest in any of
the five largest suppliers or customers of the Group.
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Directors’ Interests in the Shares, Underlying Shares

and Debentures

As at 31 March 2016, the interests and short positions of the directors and the chief

executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the

Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the

SFO) which have been notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to

Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required

to be kept pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company

and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code set out in Appendix 10 to the

Listing Rules were as follows:

Long position in shares

BEERANAZRY - HER®
RiE#EHEZER

MR2016F38318 RAATEERRSITHA
ERARARLEEMEBEIE(EEZRESRE
BERBIEXVER) IR « RGO REEES
BEERERBSRPERAIEXVHE7TRESHH
EHERAARBRAzEZR AR RiLtk
RIRBE SR BERAIEIS2FEEETEEN
ZMAZERERAR  RARE LR A &
10FTENEETHBHNEERRARBERT2E
BRKRBWOT

RERBZFE

Number of shares

BHEA
Approximate
Personal Spouse Corporate % of
interests interests interests Total shareholding
BEAIFE R
BARE igH & EEREE A&t Bt
The Company (ordinary shares A A (BREE1.00
of HK$1.00 each) BrTrLER)
Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry R 1,900,000 1,900,000 0.0%
Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent ERELE 12,000 12,000 0.0%
Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian BEREL 20,000 20,000 0.0%
Mr. Chan Sai-Cheong Rt 8 4 12,000 12,000 0.0%
Mr. Suen Chi-Keung, Peter BREEEE 3,600 3,600 0.0%
Mr. Chan Hiu-Sang, Albert PREEA a4 12,000 12,000 0.0%
Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton BRIRER o4 4,800 4,800 0.0%
Mr. Liu Chun-Wai, Bobby BiRAEE 12,000 12,000 0.0%
International Entertainment B REGRA R
Corporation (ordinary shares (BB mE{E1.008T
of HK$1.00 each) By &)
Mr. Suen Chi-Keung, Peter BREBEE 4,000 4,000 8,000 0.0%
Note: P 5T

(1) These shares are beneficially owned by a company, which in turn is wholly-owned by Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian

() ZERVEABSEIBL2EREN-—RAAEREE
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in Securities

As at 31 March 2016, the following persons (not being directors or chief executives
of the Company) had the following interests or short positions in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 336 of the SFO:

Long position in shares

FEREREBFNES

MR2016F3 8318 RIEFBSREEHRHIZE 336
REGENELRMARHNUT AL (EHEERD
AEERESTHRAR) IBEARATRMG KA
BRANESEHIARNT :

RERBZEFE

Number of shares

B &E

Approximate

Beneficial Corporate % of

Name interests interests Total shareholding
E=1 B EEREE Aast AR E
Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) Limited 8,933,937,400 8,933,937,400 89.3%
Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings II) Limited 8,933,937,400 8,933,937,400 89.3%
Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited 8,933,937,400 8,933,937,400 89.3%
Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited 8,933,937,400 8,933,937,400 89.3%

Note: B &

As at 31 March 2016, Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) Limited and Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings II) Limited held approximately
49.0% and 46.7% interest in Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited respectively, which in turn held an approximately 78.6% interest in Chow
Tai Fook (Holding) Limited and accordingly each of Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) Limited, Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings II)
Limited and Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited is deemed to have an interest in the shares of the Company held by Chow Tai Fook (Holding)
Limited. Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited held 8,933,937,400 shares of the Company directly.

Share Option Scheme

A share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted pursuant to a shareholders’
written resolution of the Company passed on 17 November 2011. No options have
been granted, exercised or cancelled under the Scheme since its adoption up to the
date of this annual report.

The purpose of the Scheme is to attract skilled and experienced personnel,
incentivise them to remain with the Group and motivate them to strive for the future
development and expansion of the Group by providing them with the opportunity to
acquire equity interests in the Company. The Board may, at its discretion, grant options
pursuant to the Scheme to the directors (including executive directors, non-executive
directors and independent non-executive directors), the directors of the Company’s
subsidiaries and employees of the Group and any other persons (including consultants
or advisers) whom the Board considers, in its absolute discretion, have contributed or
will contribute to the Group.
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The total number of shares in respect of which options may be granted pursuant to the
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company shall not exceed 10%
of the shares of the Company in issue on the Company’s listing date of 15 December
2011, being 1,000,000,000 shares (“Scheme Mandate Limit”), which represented 10%
of the shares of the Company as at the date of this annual report. The Company may
renew the Scheme Mandate Limit with shareholders’ approval provided that each such
renewal may not exceed 10% of the shares in the Company in issue as at the date of
the shareholders’ approval.

The maximum number of shares underlying all outstanding options which have been
granted and have yet to be exercised pursuant to the Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company shall not exceed 30% of the shares in issue from time

to time.

Unless approved by shareholders of the Company in the manner as set out in the
Scheme, the maximum number of shares underlying the options granted to each
eligible participant (including both exercised and outstanding options) in any
12-month period shall not exceed 1.0% of the shares of the Company in issue for the
time being.

The period during which an option may be exercised by a grantee (the “Option
Period”) shall be determined and notified by the Board to the grantee at the time of
such grant, which shall not expire later than 10 years from the grant date.

Subject to any restrictions applicable under the Listing Rules, an option may be
exercised in whole or in part by the grantee at any time during the Option Period
in accordance with the terms of the Scheme and the terms on which the option was
granted.

No amount is payable by the grantee upon acceptance of an option.

The exercise price shall be determined by the Board but in any event shall not be less
than the highest of: (a) the closing price of the shares as stated in the daily quotations
sheet issued by the Stock Exchange on the grant date, which must be a business day; (b)
the average closing price of the shares as stated in the daily quotations sheets issued
by the Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding the grant
date; and (c) the nominal value of the shares.

The Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10 years after the date of conditional
adoption, i.e. 17 November 2011.
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Permitted Indemnity Provision

The Company’s Articles provides that every director is entitled to be indemnified out
of the assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities which he/she may sustain
or incur in or about the execution of duties of his/her office or otherwise in relation
thereto provided that such indemnity shall not extend to any matter in respect of
fraud or dishonesty which may attach to the director.

The Company has taken out and maintained directors’ liability insurance throughout
the year, which provides appropriate cover for the directors.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed during
the year.

Donations

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year amounted to
approximately HK$9.8 million (FY2015: HK$72.2 million).

Events after the Reporting Period

There is no material subsequent event undertaken by the Company or by the Group
after 31 March 2016 and up to the date of this annual report.

Auditor

The financial statements of the Company have been audited by Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu, who will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Dr. Cheng Kar-shun, Henry

Chairman

Hong Kong, 7 June 2016
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Investor Relations 2 & £ i

We are committed to “Be responsible and provide confidence” towards our

investors.

Since founded in 1929, we have stayed focused on development of jewellery
business. We supervise directly on the key functions throughout the supply
chain from procurement of raw materials, R&D and production, to marketing
and sales.

After we became listed on the Stock Exchange in 2011, transparency,
communication and fair treatment have always been the keys in our approach
to investor relations. We believe that enabling investors to make informed
investment decision is a way to enhance their confidence in the Company.

In FY2016, the Company received various industry accolades such as the
inclusion in the “Most Honored Company” of 2015 All-Asia Executive Team
(ex-Japan) rankings by Institutional Investor and was named as the “Best IR
Company - Large Cap” by Hong Kong Investor Relations Association (HKIRA)'s
Investor Relations Awards 2015, in recognition of our relentless effort in

maintaining corporate governance and investor relations.
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The management of the Group at the press conference of

HKIRA's Investor Relations award presentation 2015

EBREZHFHE 2015 FEERELEHFALBELE

2015/2016 interim results presentation
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Timely and Transparent Disclosure

Enhancing transparency has been our Board’s crucial mission in governance.
Increasing visibility prompts us to keep stakeholders in mind no matter in our
decisions or operations, and to proactively prepare ourselves to stand up to
scrutiny and the ever-changing regulatory environment.

To ensure timely and simultaneous public access to the Group’s material
information, we publish announcements and results presentations, annual and
interim reports and press releases via public channels including websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company. We also hold press and analysts conferences
at least twice a year after releasing the interim and annual results.

The presentations and webcasts for these conferences are uploaded to our
company website. In addition, we keep our investor relations webpage up-to-
date and provide an “Investors FAQ" section for ease of reference. Furthermore,
investors subscribe to our email alerts and contact our investor relations team

quite often via email at ir@chowtaifook.com directly.

We publish quarterly announcements of key operational data voluntarily in
standard format we developed to report in about 10 working days after each
quarter end. Conference calls for the press and the analysts are arranged after
the first and third quarter announcements where our executive directors are
available to respond and help the public and investors to get a clearer view of
the Group's business going forward.

The Company has policies and internal control measures in place to handle
inside information to make sure that announcements are published in
due course. After all endeavours to keep timely, transparent and effective
disclosures, the Company’s results announcement is not supposed to surprise
the market to a large extent.

Our reasons for preparing better annual reports go beyond compliance with the
Listing Rules. It is the means of communication with our shareholders externally
but also an internal management tool driving for further self-actualisation and
value creation.

Our annual report for 2015 was awarded gold prize under retail-jewelery division
in traditional annual report category by ARC Awards.
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Two-way Interactive Engagement

We believe communication with our shareholders is a two-way process. We
make no distinction between institutional investors and retail investors.

While we try to understand investors’ perspective, we are eager to share with
investors a full picture through the eyes of the management, including our
thoughts in making decisions, our views on the market outlook, our development
strategies and so on. In addition to reporting the performance as a result, we
move forward to show how we run this business and how the Company will
look like in the future.

Every year, our executive directors and senior management in the investor
relations team participate in various investor meetings, conferences and non-
deal roadshows.

For FY2016, we attended over 380 one-on-one and group meetings, 11 investor
conferences and 15 non-deal roadshows held in Beijing, Boston, Hong Kong,
London, New York, Paris, Philadelphia, Radnor, San Francisco, Shanghai,
Singapore, Taiwan and Toronto. We also maintained continuous dialogues with
a large number of analysts from research institutions, of which 21 of them cover
our Company and publish research reports on a regular basis.

Investor visits are often arranged to our operation centres, shops and production
facilities.

The annual general meeting is a platform for face-to-face communication with
our shareholders. Our full Board and external auditors will attend and answer
questions on the performance of the Group raised by the shareholders. In
general, we will meet over 100 shareholders or their proxies there and the voting
rate among the independent shareholders is around 20-30%. Shareholders can
also stay afterwards to meet with our Managing Director and Finance Director
for further exchanges.

In our meetings with investors, business outlook, gross margin, change in
product mix, POS network, industry benchmarking, capital expenditure,
inventory management, e-commerce development, dividends payout ratio and

free cashflows are hot topics that are frequently touched on.

In the other way round, they often give us thoughtful ideas that inspire us how
to go further and enhance values for shareholders. That is why we are so keen
on engaging with them.
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Meetings by investor event in FY2016:
2016 B FEEH (EREZFHNR) ¢

M Conference call BFE&H
M Face-to-face meeting EI ¥ E &%
M Investor conference & HE st &

Non-deal roadshow JF 32 5 B &

Major investor conferences that we participated in FY2016 are set out below: R2016 THFESHEHNAEKREESE
Date Event Location
B | 1B
May 2015 Bank of America Merrill Lynch Vanity Capital Conference 2015 Singapore
201545 A E|EMBREERNS F R
June 2015 Deutsche Bank 12th Annual dbAccess Global Consumer Conference Paris
20154 6 A EEERITREEWNS B3
Credit Suisse Asia Corporate Days Boston
HEREEMHNE LA
CICC Semi-annual Investment Strategy Conference 2015 Shenzhen
HEBERERIREENNS ]l
BNP Paribas Regional Consumer & Gaming Corporate Day Hong Kong
EEBRRTREEMNTS =B
September 2015 J.P. Morgan'’s Asia CEO-CFO Conference 2015 New York
201559 A BERABREEWRNS B/H
Barclays Asia Consumption & Gaming Conference 2015 Hong Kong
BRREREEWRIS 58
CLSA 22nd Investors’ Forum Hong Kong
BEEREEWTE 9
October 2015 Macquarie Greater China Consumer Corporate Day Hong Kong
2015510 A EREBREENNS &8
December 2015 Morgan Stanley Hong Kong/China Consumer Corporate Day Hong Kong
20155128 BERTFRREERTS 58
January 2016 Deutsche Bank 14th Annual dbAccess China Conference Beijing
201651 A BRERTREEWHTS =
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Our investor relations and corporate communications team also plays an
important part in assisting the Board to watch on the market feedbacks, which in
turn helps to strengthen the management of the Company’s inside information

policy.

We constantly gauge and monitor the fluctuation in share prices of the
Company, screen media and analysts’ reports, record feedbacks from investors’
meetings to understand the investors’ expectation and the market's sensitivity.

Accordingly, we can provide analysis for the directors to assess whether a
significant gap exists between the expectation of the market and the Group’s

circumstances.

It also provides basis for the Company to assess the likelihood of whether
a particular piece of information on the Group’s circumstances will lead to
material share price movement when it is made public.

Further, these market signals are helpful for the Company to determine whether
it should clarify media news or market rumours in view of its possible influence
in misleading the market activities; and to monitor whether the Group’s
inside information that relies on a safe harbour provision has been leaked and
therefore prompt disclosure is immediately required.
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Treat all shareholders equally

The Board is conscientious about returning dividends to shareholders. The
Company used to declare dividends twice a year. The payout ratio for the last
year is about 50% of the Group’s net profit.

In order to ensure adequate engagements with shareholders and potential
investors, shareholders’ analysis is conducted every quarter. It enables us to
review our strategy and work plan on investor relations activities. Through well-
planned roadshows and investor conferences, we hope that the long-term value
of the Company can be made visible to the investment community at large,
which helps to enhance the investment value of all shareholders.

No selective disclosure of inside information is allowed in our Company. We
have formalised controls on the sources of information and the communication
channels.

We emphasise the integrity and consistency in the content of the annual and
interim reports, which should contain all meaningful information desired by
investors and the public.

We base upon this set of published information for the investor meetings and
conferences attending thereafter.

According to our spokesmen policy, only designated executive directors and the
investor relations and corporate communications team are authorised to speak
to or hold meetings with the investors or media on behalf of the Company.
Attendance notes and call logs are kept for future reference.

Our investor relations team establishes its own code of practices, which include
setting out a quiet period to stay out of investor relations’ publicity before
results announcement; preparing mock Q&As to control the information being
communicated to the public; and obtaining approval from the Board on the
results presentation materials.
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Other Information
Shareholders’ Rights

We endeavour to ensure that shareholders are treated fairly and are able to exercise
their shareholders’ rights effectively. Shareholders are entitled by the Articles and are
also encouraged to participate in the Company’s general meetings or appoint proxies
to attend and vote. Shareholder(s) holding not less than 10% of the Company’s paid-
up capital may request the Board to convene an extraordinary general meeting and
put forward proposals. The objectives of the meeting must be stated in the related
requisition signed and deposited with our company secretary at the Company’s
headquarters at 33/F, New World Tower, 16-18 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong.

If a shareholder wishes to nominate a person for election as director in a general
meeting, the particulars of the candidate must be stated in a nomination notice signed
and deposited together with a notice of willingness signed by the candidate to our
company secretary at the Company’s headquarters or at the Registration Office (Tricor
Investor Services Ltd., Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong)
of the Company. The notice should be given at least seven days prior to the date of
such general meeting.

Enquiries may be put to our investor relations team and the Board via email at
ir@chowtaifook.com.

Market Capitalisation

As at 31 March 2016, the market capitalisation of the listed shares of the Company
was approximately HK$48.5 billion (31 March 2015: HK$83.4 billion) based on the
total number of 10,000,000,000 issued shares of the Company and the closing price of
HK$4.85 per share.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge
of the Directors as at the date of this annual report, the Directors confirm that the
Company has maintained the prescribed public float of 10.7%, which is a lower
minimum percentage of public float accepted at the discretion of the Stock Exchange.
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Information for Investors BEHEEH

Investor Calendar & HE B

FY2016 annual results announcement 2016 B FEEEFEENTE
7 June 2016 2016 F 6 A7H

Annual general meeting BREBEXE

2 August 2016 201658 A2 H

Proposed payment of final dividend and special dividend ##/R2 K8z S R4S

on or about 18 August 2016 2016 8 B 18 AR AT#E

Closure of register of members (both days inclusive) HEHERMBRELFE(HEMXBEEN)
For ascertaining attendance and voting right at the annual general meeting BREHERRBFAGING LRE

29 July to 2 August 2016 20165F7H29H%E8A2H

For ascertaining entitlement to proposed final dividend and special dividend TERERERRARE RSB ENEFR

9 August 2016 20168 A9H

Share Information B E R

Company name NEEE

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited BAAEHREEEERLE
Listing £

Hong Kong Stock Exchange BBB AT

Stock code Bz 43 X 5%

1929 1929

Listing date tHEH

15 December 2011 20115128158

Board lot size BFEHEEMN

200 shares 200 fig

Issued share capital as at 31 March 2016 R2016F3 A31 HEEITHRA
10,000,000,000 shares 10,000,000,000 i

Index constituent B9 B

Hang Seng Global Composite Index BERRGESIEH

Hang Seng Composite Index BEFREIEH

Hang Seng Mainland 100 Index 184 R EI A i 100 355

FTSE Asian Retail Index ERDNEEEER

Hang Seng Corporate Sustainability Benchmark Index EEFEEROEREERY
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Shareholder Services

B% 3R AR %5

For matters relating to your shareholding such as transfer of shares, change of
name or address, and loss of share certificates, please write to our Hong Kong

Branch Registrar:

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 22, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2980-1333

Fax: (852) 2810-8185

Shareholders can obtain the annual/interim report of the Company by writing
to our Hong Kong Branch Registrar, or access the electronic version from our

company website.

Investor Relations

FHEEATHERSE  ROEZR  BREASBUR
BRARE FUEEAABHEMNEBERNDEBFE

RAE

EERSECERAT
&5
EERER1835E
BRI 2218

TEE 1 (852) 2980-1333
5K : (852)2810-8185

RETEBEASFRBUARMANEBROBEBEES
ENERAATNER FHERS  RRBRMAO DT
HEMEB TR -

BEERE

For more information about the Group,

please visit our company website

www.chowtaifook.com

or contact our Investor Relations and Corporate Communications Department at

38/F, New World Tower
16-18 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong
Tel:  (852)2524-3166
Fax:  (852)2526-9178

e-mail: ir@chowtaifook.com

General Information

BERAEEFE
FREEMNQTHE

www.chowtaifook.com

REARFINIRE BEAERR D EENIBPIBLS :
BEBERFKEP 16185

it R K E 3818

EEE 1 (852) 2524-3166

fEE : (852) 2526-9178

EE : ir@chowtaifook.com

— R

Headquarters and principal place of business
in Hong Kong

33/F, New World Tower

16-18 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong

Registered office

Codan Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive

P.O.Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

RAREBTEERMME

BRBEFRET16-185%
MR AE 3348

AEMmEER

Codan Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman Islands
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Philosophy — Scientific system — Interaction with people — Contribution to shared value

NILEE —HMBHE — AFEH — EELR

Business philosophy and management approach

With 87 years of heritage, Chow Tai Fook’s iconic brand has been widely recognised
for its trustworthness and authenticity. Jewellery represents our commitment to
consumers but not merely a product. We wish to create unforgettable experience for
the most precious moment of our consumers with excellent products and services. In
pursuit of our corporate core value of “Sincerity « Eternity”, we have been committed to
giving our best and blessings to our customers, employees, partners, shareholders and
the society. We have encountered various challenges along our development path.
Nonetheless, our management has strictly followed our policy to sell genuine products
at marked price. Committed to integrity, business ethics and legal compliance, we are
widely recognised and supported by customers, partners and other stakeholders. With
their support, we are able to overcome challenges and surpass ourselves in our pursuit
of sustainable development.

We have stated our corporate culture, commitments, policies and principles
regarding sustainable development that our employees have to follow (including
business ethics, anti-money laundering, supply chain management, employment
policy, occupational safety and health, anti-discrimination, human rights, rights to
freedom of association and collective bargaining and environmental protection,
etc.) and company rules (including intellectual property rights, prevention of bribery
and corruption and conflict of interests, etc.) in our employee handbook. These are
applied in our daily practice which forms an integral part of our relevant business
processes and management systems, which are being governed by appropriate
management structure and embedded operational procedures. This effective system
is also supported by the monitoring mechanism with reporting and self-assessment
functions. The relevant controls are reviewed internally by a designated team for
corporate social responsibility and audits on the implementation of corporate social
responsibilities are carried out by external independent institutions.
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Stakeholder engagement and mutual trust

The development of a scientific management system shall originate from people-
oriented objectives. In addition, it can only sustain by implementing the essence
of people-oriented concepts in parallel. This enables us to meet the needs of
stakeholders through continuous interactions and explore growth opportunities for
the Group and our stakeholders. We engage with stakeholders continuously through
various channels, including contacts during the daily business operations such as
various meetings, employees’ opinions, satisfaction surveys, customer hotlines and
frontline sales, industry associations and events, inspection of suppliers’ best practice
principles and related training, communications from regulatory bodies, activities of
social welfare or environmental protection bodies, compliance audits on our social
responsibilities system by external institutions or suppliers. We also hold regular
conferences with investors, franchisees and suppliers, results announcement briefing,
media interviews, etc Feedback collected and concerns raised via these channels are
discussed and followed up in the respective meetings of responsible departments, a
designated internal team for corporate social responsibility audits, the management,
the risk management committee and the board of directors. All these human factors
serve as valuable input which inspire and drive us to make continuous improvement in
various levels of our operations.

Adhering to Chow Tai Fook’s philosophy of “Sincerity” and the belief of “from the
Society, for the Society”, we ensure proper and efficient use of social resources in
support of our business and give back to the society by creating shared value for
sustainable development and establishing a constructive rapport with the community.

Corporate Social Responsibility Report

We published our first standalone corporate social responsibility report this year, an
electronic version of which is available for download on the website of the Group
(http://corporate.chowtaifook.com/en/about/csr.php) and the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong respectively.

The said report is made with reference to the 1ISO26000 corporate social responsibility
framework and the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide of the
Stock Exchange. It mainly covers the information of our wholly-owned subsidiaries
from 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016. The report focuses on illustrating aspects with
important impacts on or opportunities for the Group and its stakeholders, including
business practice, staff benefits, customer service, community involvement and
environmental protection. The said report shall be read in conjunction with this annual
report for further details of the Group’s sustainable development, including strategic
planning, corporate governance and business performance, as well as the inclusion of

its social responsibilities in its strategic planning and business operation.

You are welcome to comment on the said report and the Group's sustainable
development via email at ir@chowtaifook.com.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B M % BT R

Deloitte.
=)

TO THE MEMBERS OF
CHOW TAI FOOK JEWELLERY GROUP LIMITED
AXEHREEEERAF

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Chow Tai Fook Jewellery
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) set out on pages 136 to 217, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 March 2016, and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a

summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards issued by International Accounting Standards Board
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether

due to fraud or error.

BEAXEHREEEBRAARE
(REEHEZMA L 2 FRRA])

AZEMUTEBIRMEDEFAINENE
1362217ERAABHREEEER AT (TEAT )
REME QB (FGB EEE ) NREIMBIRE
WS BERREENR2016F3 831 BNGSE
MERARESEEZALEFENGEREERAE
tEERER GEREEBRNGEEESR
ER URFESHTBRRBER MM THERE

EENGAMBRRAKENEE

BEAREEAEERBEERETERNEEER
i B9 R B B 5 3 5 22 B 2 5B A RIR 9D BV 2
BRERHEERDITHREUBEHRER &%
BHEABRUGEUBRRALENAIBEE
LA 4Ra MR T 7 AN RFFR AR E
VR KA ERIRAL

BABHRESBERAT 2016FFR

133



Independent Auditor’s Report &3 & 8EhR &

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements
based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on
Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated

financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as

evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2016, and of its financial performance
and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial

Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in compliance with the

disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong

7 June 2016
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
FeBRmRHEME2ERER

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #( £ 2016 53 A 31 B IEFE

2016 2015
Notes HK$ million HKS million
PEE BHEBT ER-5:: 54
Revenue =2 7 56,591.5 64,277.0
Cost of goods sold SHERA (40,950.1) (45,204.6)
Gross profit EF 15,641.4 19,072.4
Other income H A 8 306.2 301.5
Selling and distribution costs HER DR (9,196.8) (9,935.8)
General and administrative expenses — R RATERX (2,426.6) (2,408.6)
Other gains and losses Hittl = R EE 9 (244.9) (35.9)
Other expenses Hihpi % (51.2) (94.7)
Share of results of an associate DI —REE DB ZHEE 21 (3.6) =
Share of results of a joint venture PME—REELEZEE 22 - (10.8)
Interest income FEYA 10 154.6 151.5
Finance costs BhE R A 10 (243.0) (380.5)
Profit before taxation P& #8133 71 11 3,936.1 6,659.1
Taxation 18 13 (957.2) (1,123.3)
Profit for the year FEHER 2,978.9 5,535.8
Other comprehensive (expense) income: Hiv2m (F) s :
Item that will not be reclassified subsequentlyto ~ BEETFEEH 7B E 181 EH :
profit or loss:
— remeasurement of defined benefit scheme ~ — Bt E EEEBAFTE (2.1) (19.0)
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to BEZ AJBEEEH P HE B HY
profit or loss: EH :
— exchange differences arising on translation ~ — #aE E 4 (FE 7 =258 (1,010.7) 21.1
— share of translation reserve of an associate — D ME—FREEQT2BRE
] (0.7) =
— share of translation reserve of a joint venture — i —REEL¥EZBE
& - (0.1)
(1,011.4) 21.0
Other comprehensive (expense) income for SEHEtbem(BAX)WE
the year (1,013.5) 2.0
Total comprehensive income for the year FE2EIRERE 1,965.4 5,537.8
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2016 2015

Note HK$ million HKS million
PEE BEBT ER-5: 54
Profit for the year attributable to: UTEAEEEERT :
Shareholders of the Company PiN/NET ) 2,941.4 5,456.0
Non-controlling interests R R 37.5 79.8
2,978.9 5,535.8
Total comprehensive income (expense) UTE&FELEE
attributable to: a5 (B %8
Shareholders of the Company PUNET) T 1,979.3 5,456.2
Non-controlling interests IR FE R (13.9) 81.6
1,965.4 5,537.8
Earnings per share — Basic BREF—EX 14 HK29.4 cents i#{ll HK54.6 cents /&1l
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

mEMBRR R

At 31 March 2016 /2201643 A 31 H

2016 2015
Notes HK$ million HKS$ million
PEE BHEET BEAT
Non-current assets EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BMEREXE 16 4,749.7 4,442.5
Land use rights =+ i {5 I A 17 211.6 237.9
Investment properties REYHE 18 272.9 508.9
Goodwill SRS 19 257.8 257.8
Other intangible assets Hinmp EE 20 407.5 397.2
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, BEYE BERRECHNERSE
plant and equipment 132.6 294.1
Interest in an associate N NG £ 21 39.7 =
Amount due from an associate FEUR — SR Eg & 1\ B R IE 21 82.8 =
Interest in a joint venture R—REEBELEER 22 - -
Loan receivables EWRER 23 37.6 39.8
Deferred tax assets ELEFIBEEE 24 478.2 860.1
6,670.4 7,038.3
Current assets mEEE
Inventories FE 25 31,376.5 39,797.6
Trade and other receivables B 5 R H b EWFIE 26 4,605.2 5,785.4
Loan receivables W E X 23 4.1 43
Convertible bonds o HES 27 17.8 17.9
Pledged bank deposits 2 IFRITIER 28 - 0.4
Bank balances and cash IRITHEREIRSE 28 13,001.4 8,477.1
49,005.0 54,082.7
Current liabilities MEAE
Trade and other payables B 5 R H A ENFIE 29 4,336.1 3,997.9
Amounts due to non-controlling shareholders  FE{FH{ B 1 B FE 1= IR AR R 7B
of subsidiaries 30 161.2 197.3
Taxation payable FEARiE 4334 595.8
Bank borrowings IRITER 31 7,320.0 6,750.6
Gold loans HEMEE 32 6,513.3 8,338.3
18,764.0 19,879.9
Net current assets WEEERHE 30,241.0 34,202.8
Total assets less current liabilities BEERGEAR 36,911.4 41,2411

138 Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited Annual Report 2016




2016 2015

Notes HK$ million HKS$ million
P = BHEET ER-Y: 54
Non-current liabilities ERBERE

Bank borrowings IRITER 31 600.0 =
Retirement benefit obligations RARTE R I 37 243.4 2433
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEEE 24 318.1 457.0
1,161.5 700.3
Net assets EEEFH 35,749.9 40,540.8
Share capital i %N 33 10,000.0 10,000.0
Reserves #HE 24,904.3 29,429.5

Equity attributable to shareholders of AR B B R FE (LR &
the Company 34,904.3 39,429.5
Non-controlling interests JERE PR HE 2 845.6 1,111.3
35,749.9 40,540.8

The consolidated financial statements on pages 136 to 217 were approved and

authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 7 June 2016 and are signed on its

behalf by:

Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry

MRAE L
DIRECTOR
EE

Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent

DIRECTOR

EE

BEEN2016F6 87 BHET RETIRERSE

136 E217 HZRE M BHK  WHNTRKRE

=

Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton

WMIAEREE
DIRECTOR
EE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mERRBBHR

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #( £ 2016 53 A 31 B IEFE

Attributable
Statutory to shareholders Non-
Share Share Special surplus Translation Retained ofthe controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve profits Company interests Total
iz RiraR WHEE  AEEREEE BERE REEH  AARRRER FERER &t
HKS million HKS million HKS million HKS million HKS million HKS million HKS million HKS million HKS million
BEER BEER BEER BEER BERR BEER BEER BERR BEER
(notea) (noteb)
(Hita) (KzEb)
At 1 April 2014 014471 10,0000 54987 24995 606.7 14358 17,1326 371733 1.279.1 384524
Profit for the year EEER - - - - - 54560 54560 798 55358
Other comprehensiveincome  FEE 2 H W& (%)
(expense) for the year - - - - 192 (190) 02 18 20

Total comprehensiveincome ~ FE2ANRALE
forthe year - - - - 192 54310 54562 816 55378
Capital contributionsfrom ~ REMBADEERRE

non-controlling shareholders ¥

of subsidiaries - - - - - - - 920 920
Deregistration of subsidiaries & A = - - - - - - (74) (74)
Transfers & - - - 528 - (528) - - -
Dividends RE - - - - - (3,2000) (3,2000) (3340) (3,5340)
At31 March 2015 015838317 10,000.0 5498.7 2,499.5 659.5 1,455.0 19,316.8 39,4295 1,113 40,5408
Profitfor the year EERER - - - - - 29414 29414 315 29789
Other comprehensive expense  EEE M2 AER

forthe year - - - - (960.0) (21) (962.1) (514) (1,013.5)

Total comprehensive (expenses) £ 27 (%) W45

income for the year - - - - (960.0) 29393 19793 (139) 1,965.4
Acquisitions of aditional ~ WEEME L A EIMER
interests in subsidiaries - - - - - 11 11 (13) (10.2)

Partial disposal of interestsina - A ERRREE—F
subsidiary tonon-controlling B A F AR

shareholders - - - - - 0.1 0.1 04 05
Deregistration of subsidiaries KB A - - - (5.7) - - (5.7) (112.1) (117.8)
Transfers i - - - 1381 - (1381) - - -
Dividends RE = - - - - (6,500.0) (6,500.0) (1288) (6,628.8)
At31March 2016 016F3 7311 10,000.0 5498.7 2,499.5 7919 4950 15,619.2 34,9043 845.6 35,7499

Notes: B EE :

(a) Special reserve represents (i) the accumulated contribution from the Macau jewellery business and (ii) the difference between (a) RIS () RPIBREER 2 Rt BERE () 2GR IBH R
the nominal value of the shares of various subsidiaries under common control, and cash consideration payable arising from TEHEBDRNRMEEEBEEEEARREEILEES TH
acquisition of these subsidiaries under common control pursuant to the group reorganisation as more fully explained in the BRAEESN2RSREZ2E - #EREEAQTIZRHR
section headed “History and Corporate Structure” of the prospectus of the Company dated 5 December 2011 in connection EBMERZFERATERER LT - AR 2011F1285
with the initial listing of the shares of the Company on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. B2RRER[ELRATEE ]| — /M -

(b)  As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations for foreign investment enterprises in Mainland China, the Company's (b) REBHRERBIECENEBEERER  AARANHRER
subsidiaries in Mainland China are required to maintain a statutory surplus reserve fund. Appropriation to such reserve is B ARBEBELERGRREES - GRAREZBRADEKA
made out of net profit after taxation as reflected in the statutory financial statements of the subsidiaries in Mainland China in PERLHEADNEENBERR (RETFERBEEBERN
accordance with the relevant laws and regulations applicable to enterprises in Mainland China. The statutory surplus reserve HEEERERER) TR 2 RRIFE c A ERMBEE
fund can be used to make up prior year losses, if any, and can be applied in conversion into capital by means of capitalisation ESTANBERBEFENER(WE) LA UERLBITZ
issue. FRERBEAR o
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
LAREHER

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #( £ 2016 53 A 31 HIEFE

2016 2015
Note HK$ million HKS million
PEE BEBT ER-5: 54
OPERATING ACTIVITIES RERD
Profit before taxation FREL A& A 3,936.1 6,659.1
Adjustments for: BT 5B IEEHFE
Interest income FIEWA (154.6) (151.5)
Interest expenses FMEREX 243.0 380.5
Allowance for doubtful debts AR 19.5 -
Impairment of inventories FERE 74.2 =
Fair value change of gold loans ELEENLATEEY 542.1 (418.0)
Depreciation of property, Y . BERREITE
plant and equipment 837.0 730.6
Depreciation of investment properties REETE 21.3 17.5
Amortisation of land use rights = 3th {55 PR RE S 8 14.9 14.1
Amortisation of other intangible assets HittEmp EE s 414 24.0
Share of results of an associate DL —REE N R 2 EE 3.6 =
Share of results of a joint venture ME—REELECHEE = 10.8
Loss on disposal of property, HEYE  BMERSZENERE
plant and equipment 10.9 17.4
Provision for defined benefit obligations EFRNERRER B 6.7 7.6
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes in BEE R B ¥ 20D 7 &
intercompany balances o we 191.3 (4.2)
Operating cash flows before movements in EEESEH 2 KREHESRE
working capital 5,787.4 7,287.9
Decrease in inventories FERD 7,499.2 3,116.9
Decrease (increase) in trade and other receivables & 5 K E fth fE Uk Z} 88 2> (12 40) 937.1 (650.1)
Increase (decrease) in trade and other payables & 5 & HE A FE(S FRIEE 0 GRl2>) 509.9 (299.5)
Defined benefits paid 2T ERRR BT (8.7) (8.3)
Cash generated from operations KESRE 14,724.9 9,446.9
Interest received 2T E 42.4 236
Income tax paid BT
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEBREHR (177.9) (872.9)
Enterprise Income Tax and withholding tax in R At EFER R TEINR
Mainland China (608.1) (903.0)
Macau complementary tax BT SmTR (82.2) (124.4)
Taxation in other jurisdictions Hith B A & 2 18 (1.9) (2.0)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES REFHMBEREFH 13,897.2 7,568.2
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BREEH
Interest received 2T S 112.2 127.9
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits RIS IEFERTER 0.4 14.3
Placement of pledged bank deposits FECIEARITER - (9.4)
Withdrawal of short-term bank deposits REURHRITIER - 500.0
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEYX* BMERRE (917.3) (1,924.8)
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, BEYXE BMERZECHNERSE
plant and equipment (77.0) (133.2)
Payment for acquisition of land use rights Ut B + th f5F AR (S K = (78.6)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEYE  BRERZEFRERE
plant and equipment 19.5 12.9
Purchase of investment properties BEREYE - (549.1)
Purchase of patents BEER (51.7) -
Loan advanced by the Group AEBCENFERK (4.9) (10.5)
Repayment of loan to the Group BEEEFAEEZER 1.0 1455
Capital contribution to an associate B—REE QAT EE (44.0) =
Advance to an associate ) — REE & A R B (82.8) =
Net cash outflow from acquisition of subsidiaries WEEKIB AT EEZRESREFEE 34() = (1,187.7)
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES REFHAREFH (1,044.6) (3,092.7)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows &8RS RER
For the year ended 31 March 2016 # % 2016 F 3 A 31 HILFE

2016 2015
HK$ million HKS million
HEET HEBT

FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEED
Interest paid 2FE (257.1) (400.3)
Bank borrowings raised EEKRITER 6,300.0 7,486.2
Repayment of bank borrowings BEIRTER (5,107.8) (7,036.2)
Capital contributions from non-controlling M A RIERRFEE

shareholders of subsidiaries - 92.0
Deregistration of subsidiaries EEa | PN (117.8) =
Dividends paid 2RRE (6,581.6) (3,534.0)
Gold loans raised EEEESRE 16,799.2 12,903.9
Repayment of gold loans BEEEEE (18,960.0) (14,940.2)
Acquisition of additional interest from B IR I BB Y BE I 2

non-controlling interest (10.2) -
Advance from non-controlling shareholders REME A R FEIE IR IR R B

of subsidiaries 40.2 48.8
Repayment to non-controlling shareholders EEFHBLTFERBRE

of subsidiaries (112.6) (91.7)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES REEB AR ST (8,007.7) (5,471.5)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND RERRELSEWEMORD ) FHE

CASH EQUIVALENTS 4,844.9 (996.0)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE FINBEERESEEY

BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 8,477.1 9,466.6
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes ERSHHNEE (320.6) 6.5
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ATTHEEND OF FARMRERIRESZEY -

THE YEAR, REPRESENTED BY BANK BALANCES El$R1T46c R &

AND CASH 13,001.4 8,477.1
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e VI |RME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 &= 2016 F 3 A 31 HIEFE

1. General

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated as an
exempted company in the Cayman Islands with limited liability under the Companies Law
of the Cayman Islands on 20 July 2011. Its shares were listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 15 December 2011.
Its immediate holding company is Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited (“CTF Holding”), and
in the opinion of the directors of the Company, its ultimate holding company is Chow Tai
Fook Capital Limited, both are incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal activities of the
Company's principal subsidiaries are set out in note 40. The address of registered office
is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands. The address of principal place of business is 33/F, New World Tower, 16-18
Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HKS$"),
which is same as the functional currency of the Company. Certain comparative
figures have been reclassified to conform with current year’s presentation. These
reclassifications have no effect on financial position, profit for the year or cash flows of
the Group.

2. Application of New and Revised International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs")

The Group has applied the following amendments to IFRSs issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”) for the first time in the current year:

Amendments to IAS 19 Defined benefit plans: Employee contributions

Amendments to IFRSs Annual improvements to IFRSs 2010-2012 cycle

Amendments to IFRSs Annual improvements to IFRSs 2011-2013 cycle

The application of the above amendments to IFRSs in the current year has had no
material impact on the Group’s financial performance and positions for the current
and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial

statements.

1. —HBER
ARBHREEEERAT (ERAT ) H2011F7
B2 B REHEHS ARENBEEHETMATL
REHRRBRAT - HRMHBE2011F 128158
FEREBHER S AR T (TBRAT]) 4R
i o HEEEMR A 7 A Chow Tai Fook (Holding)
Limited ([ CTF Holding]) * " AR ZEERBHBLK
2 B% X ®] £ Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited * ¥ 5
NEIREBHER R A BEMARL o

RABRBREERAR  MEFTEHEARE
SRS K M RE40 o AN X B A &F 1 3 55 R i hE
A Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681,
Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands ° & & &
Eint HEBEERIBP16-185RH T RE334E -

REVBBRBT (AN IEER) 2
e ETHBRBBEER S BURKRFENZ
-2 ZEEH D RE RSB FHAR -
FEBNHREREIELE o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #& B #3R&K Mz

For the year ended 31 March 2016 # % 2016 F 3 A 31 HILFE

2. Application of New and Revised International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs") (continued)

New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised IFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective:

IFRS 9

IFRS 15

IFRS 16

Amendments to IFRS 11

Amendments to IFRS 15

Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IAS 16
and IAS 38

Amendments to IFRSs

Amendments to IAS 16

and IAS 41

Amendments to IAS 27

Amendments to IFRS 10,

IFRS 12 and IAS 28

Amendments to IFRS 10
and |AS 28

Amendments to |AS 7

Amendments to IAS 12

Financial instruments®

Revenue from contracts with customers®

Leases*

Accounting for acquisitions of interests
in joint operations’

Clarifications to IFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with
customers”?

Disclosure initiative’

Clarification of acceptable methods of depreciation
and amortisation’

Annual improvements to IFRSs 2012-2014 cycle’

Agriculture: Bearer plants’

Equity method in separate financial statements’

Investment entities: Applying the consolidation

exception’

Sale or contribution of assets between an investor and
its associate or joint venture®

Disclosure initiative?

Recognition of deferred tax assets for unrealised losses?

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017.

9 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.

“ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.

8 Effective for annual periods on or after a date to be determined.
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2. Application of New and Revised International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs") (continued)

New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet effective (continued)

IFRS 9 Financial instruments

In relation to the impairment of financial assets, IFRS 9 requires an expected credit
loss model, as opposed to an incurred credit loss model under IAS 39. The expected
credit loss model requires an entity to account for expected credit losses and changes
in those expected credit losses at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk
since initial recognition. In other words, it is no longer necessary for a credit event to
have occurred before credit losses are recognised.

The directors of the Company are in the process of assessing the impact of application
of IFRS 9.

IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the identification of lease arrangements
and accounting treatments for both lessors and lessees. It distinguishes leases
and service contracts on the basis of whether an identified asset is controlled by a
customer. Subject to limited exceptions for short-term leases and low value assets,
distinctions of operating and finance leases are removed for lessee accounting, and is
replaced by a model where a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability have to
be recognised for all leases by lessees. However, the standard does not significantly
change the accounting of lessors.

Application of IFRS 16 will result in the Group’s recognition of right-of-use assets and
corresponding liabilities in respect of many of the Group’s lease arrangements. These
assets and liabilities are currently not required to be recognised but certain relevant
information is disclosed as commitments to these financial statements. The directors
of the Company anticipate that the application of IFRS 16 in the future will have a
material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements; however, it is not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect until the Group performs a
detailed review.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #& B #3R&K Mz

For the year ended 31 March 2016 # % 2016 F 3 A 31 HILFE

3. Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
IFRSs issued by the IASB. In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (“CO").

The disclosure requirements set out in the Listing Rules regarding annual accounts
have been amended with reference to the new CO and to streamline with IFRSs.
Accordingly the presentation and disclosure of information in the consolidated
financial statements for the financial year ended 31 March 2016 have been changed
to comply with these new requirements. Comparative information in respect of the
financial year ended 31 March 2015 are presented or disclosed in the consolidated
financial statements based on the new requirements. Information previously required
to be disclosed under the predecessor CO or Listing Rules but not under the new CO or
amended Listing Rules are not disclosed in these consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
basis, except for certain financial instruments, which are measured at fair values at the
end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in
exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group
takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for share-
based payment transactions that are within the scope of IFRS 2, leasing transactions
that are within the scope of IAS 17, and measurements that have some similarities to
fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in IAS 2 or value in use in
IAS 36.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised
into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical

assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date;

. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below:

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the
Company and entities controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved when the Company:

. has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee; and

. has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances

indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control
listed above.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #& B #3R&K Mz

For the year ended 31 March 2016 # % 2016 F 3 A 31 HILFE

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights of an investee, it has
power over the investee when the voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical
ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally. The Group considers
all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether or not the Group’s voting
rights in an investee are sufficient to give it power, including:

. the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion
of holdings of the other vote holders;

. potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote holders or other parties;

. rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

. any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the Group has, or does not
have, the current ability to direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions
need to be made, including voting patterns at previous shareholders’ meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the
subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the date the Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases to
control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are attributed to
the shareholders of the Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the shareholders of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to
bring their accounting policies in line with the Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to

transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately from the Group’s
equity therein.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing subsidiaries
Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in subsidiaries that do not result in the
Group losing control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions.
The carrying amounts of the Group's interests and the non-controlling interests
are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any
difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted
and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity
and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss and is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the previous
carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary
and any non-controlling interests. All amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified
to profit or loss or transferred to another category of equity as specified/permitted by
applicable IFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained in the former subsidiary
at the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for
subsequent accounting under IAS 39, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition
of an investment in an associate or a joint venture.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method. The
consideration transferred in a business combination is measured at fair value, which
is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred
by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree.
Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #& B #3R&K Mz

For the year ended 31 March 2016 # % 2016 F 3 A 31 HILFE

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Business combinations (continued)
At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are
recognised at their fair value, except that:

. deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities related to employee
benefit arrangements are recognised and measured in accordance with IAS 12
“Income taxes” and IAS 19 “Employee benefits” respectively;

. liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based payment arrangements of
the acquiree or share-based payment arrangements of the Group entered into
to replace share-based payment arrangements of the acquiree are measured in
accordance with IFRS 2 “Share-based payment” at the acquisition date; and

. assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance
with IFRS 5 “Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations” are
measured in accordance with that standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed. If, after re-assessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts
of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree
and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the
excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders
to a proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may be
initially measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
share of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of
measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types of non-
controlling interests are measured at their fair value or, when applicable, on the basis
specified in another IFRS.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Goodwill
Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost as established at the
date of acquisition of the business (see the accounting policy above) less accumulated

impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the Group’s
cash-generating units (or groups of cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually, or more frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be
impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than its carrying
amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata based
on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is
recognised directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in subsequent periods.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and
represents amounts receivable for goods sold in the normal course of business and net
of trade discounts.

Sales of goods are recognised when goods are delivered and title has passed.

Service income including franchise income and income from provision of services to
franchisees is recognised when the services are provided.

Sales of goods that result in award credits for customers, under the Group’s customer
loyalty program, are accounted for as multiple element revenue transactions and the
fair value of the consideration received or receivable is allocated between the goods
supplied and the award credits granted. The consideration allocated to the award
credits is measured by reference to the fair value of the awards for which they could
be redeemed. Such consideration is not recognised as revenue at the time of the initial
sale transaction — but is deferred and recognised as revenue when the award credits
are redeemed and expired and the Group’s obligations have been fulfilled.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of income can be measured
reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #& B #3R&K Mz

For the year ended 31 March 2016 # % 2016 F 3 A 31 HILFE

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including land and buildings held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes (other than
properties under construction in progress) are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

For land and buildings where the cost of land cannot be reliably allocated between the
land and buildings elements, the cost of land and buildings are depreciated and amortised
on a straight-line basis over the lease terms or 20 years, whichever is the shorter.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of other property, plant and
equipment, other than construction in progress and land and buildings, less their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method, at the

following rates per annum:

Plant and machinery 10%
20%-33"/3%
Over the lease term, or 20%,

Furniture, fixtures and equipment

Leasehold improvements
whichever is the shorter

Motor vehicles 25%

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at
the end of the reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted
for on a prospective basis.

Construction in progress is carried at cost, less any recognised impairment loss. Costs
include professional fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. Such properties are classified to the
appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready
for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other property
assets, commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant
and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Investment properties
Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any directly attributable
expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.

If there is a transfer from investment property to owner-occupied property evidenced
by the commencement of owner’s occupation, the property shall be measured at its
carrying amount at the date of change in use for subsequent accounting.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of investment properties over
their estimated useful lives and after taking into account their estimated residual value,
using the straight-line basis over 20 years.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment property
is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are expected from
the disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in profit or loss in the period in which the property is derecognised.

Land use rights

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the Group assesses the
classification of each element as a finance or an operating lease separately based
on the assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of each element have been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear
that both elements are operating leases in which case the entire lease is classified as
an operating lease. Specifically, the minimum lease payments (including any lump-
sum upfront payments) are allocated between the land and the building elements in
proportion to the relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the land elements
and building element of the lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made reliably, interest in
leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating lease is presented as “land use
rights” in the consolidated financial statements and is amortised over the lease term
on a straight-line basis. Land use rights which are to be amortised in the next twelve
months or less are classified as current assets.

When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land and building
elements, the entire lease is generally classified as a finance lease and accounted for as
property, plant and equipment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #& B #3R&K Mz

For the year ended 31 March 2016 # % 2016 F 3 A 31 HILFE

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at costs
less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation
for intangible assets with finite useful lives is recognised on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation method
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination and recognised separately from
goodwill are initially recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is
regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired in a business combination
are reported at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses, on the same basis as intangible assets that are acquired separately.

Borrowing costs
All borrowing costs are recognised in profit and loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is calculated
using specific identification basis for gem-set jewellery and watches; and weighted
average for other inventories.

Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a group entity becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are mainly loans and receivables and financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"). The classification depends on the nature and
purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt
instrument and of allocating interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts future cash receipts (including all fees
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial
assets, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The Group has designated the convertible bonds as financial assets at FVTPL as
the convertible bonds form part of a contract containing one or more embedded
derivatives, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or
loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss includes any dividend or interest
earned on the financial assets.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in active market. Subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and receivables (including trade and other receivables, amount due from an
associate, loan receivables, pledged bank deposits and bank balances and cash) are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment
(see accounting policy on impairment of financial assets below).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #& B #3R&K Mz

For the year ended 31 March 2016 # % 2016 F 3 A 31 HILFE

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

Loans and receivables are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of each
reporting period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired where there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the financial assets, the estimated future cash flows of the financial
assets have been affected.

For trade receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually are,
in addition, assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of
impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past experience of
collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio
past the average credit period, observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment loss
recognised is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly
for all financial assets with the exception of trade receivables, where the carrying
amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade
receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment losses was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or
loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at the date of the impairment
loss is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of
the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

156 Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited Annual Report 2016

3. EXEFHBER®

ERTE @

SRMEERE
BERRERREEREREHRTIEREER
BEFR EEEHEBEETEREE MR
RESHFEARVITRRAZSHEERBEZ
—EYZEEAMIATERN ZeRmEER
BERE -

o SEZREFAMS - TEEBFELRE
BEEESES —HGRE BRFUEAS
HIRRE 2 R REEEAEBIBERRRE -
AENBBYHIEERNEESRBEEM -
B0 2R 3 it [ A RO H ER B R A B B BB WUAR
FARBEEE ©

ERREERAARNEREE  REHERE
RACEROAEEEZSREERBEBRFIRE G
FSAARRBEESREGFENRENE BNEHE -

FEtREECRERESEERSREEY
SREEIR - HE 2 RWFRARD - HRE
ESEBRBERELIR - BEERANZIREE
ZHENEEER - EEZRUFERATH
e - HAS R R ERAME - REZWEN
B MEERIES T AR

R EZHEEBRESEZSERD  MZAE
DANEEBERRRESRARE —HSE
HER ALRCRIAZAEERZBESE
B EZEEREREBEEHZKREE T
BHEBZEERARBRRER 2 BHMA

cRBREREETIR
SEERRTZEBRESRTATRBEMG L
BRZHEEHSRAERESTACZESR
TEREHMEELES -

ERTA
BEIADEAREERNBEFEABEZ
EETRERNSERZEAEN REBBIT
RS T ERWETERENREERITRA
TR o



3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities classified as either financial liabilities at FVTPL or other financial
liabilities.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

The Group has designated the gold loan as financial liabilities at FVTPL as the gold
loans form part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, with any
gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or

loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any interest paid on the financial liabilities.

Other financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables, amounts due to non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries and bank borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a
financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimate future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Derecognition
The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash
flows from the asset expire.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group'’s
obligations are discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable
is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #& B #3R&K Mz

For the year ended 31 March 2016 # % 2016 F 3 A 31 HILFE

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Impairment on tangible and intangible assets (other than
goodwill)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its
tangible and intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss, if any. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or
otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash
flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in

profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or
a cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
(or a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs
from ‘profit before taxation’ as reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income because it excludes items of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years, and it further excludes income or expense
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of each reporting period.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and the corresponding
tax base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, an associate and a joint venture, except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated with such investments
and interests are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will
be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of the reporting
period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax
rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the end
of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates to items
that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting for
the business combination.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #& B #3R&K Mz

For the year ended 31 March 2016 # % 2016 F 3 A 31 HILFE

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity, transactions
in currencies other than the functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising monetary items are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements, the assets and
liabilities of the Group's foreign operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rate prevailing at the end of
each reporting period. Income and expenses are translated at the average exchange
rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period,
in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity under translation reserve (attributable to non-controlling
interests as appropriate). Such exchange differences are reclassified to profit or loss in
the period in which the foreign operation is disposed of.

In relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that does not result in the Group
losing control over the subsidiary, the proportionate share of accumulated exchange
differences are re-attributed to non-controlling interests and are not recognised in
profit or loss.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the
term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the term. Contingent rentals and concessionaire fees arising under operating leases
are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Leasing (Continued)

The Group as lessee (Continued)

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating leases, such
incentives are recognised as a liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is
recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis.

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to retirement benefits plans and government-managed retirement benefits
schemes are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.

For defined benefit retirement benefit plans, the cost of providing benefits is
determined using the projected unit credit method, with actuarial valuations being
carried out at the end of each annual reporting period. Remeasurement, comprising
actuarial gains and losses, is reflected immediately in the consolidated statement of
financial position with a charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive income
in the period in which they occur. Remeasurement recognised in other comprehensive
income is reflected immediately in retained earnings and will not be reclassified to
profit or loss. Past service cost is recognised in profit or loss in the period of a plan
amendment. Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate at the beginning
of the period to the net defined benefit liability or asset. Defined benefit costs are
categorised as follows:

. service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and
losses on curtailments and settlements);

net interest expense or income; and
. remeasurement.
The Group presents the first two components of defined benefit costs in profit or
loss in “selling and distribution costs” and “general and administrative expenses”.

Curtailment gains and losses are accounted for as past service costs.

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position represents the present value of the defined benefit obligation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #& B #3R&K Mz

For the year ended 31 March 2016 # % 2016 F 3 A 31 HILFE

4. Capital Risk Management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the group entities will be able to
continue as a going concern while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of bank borrowings, gold loans and equity
attributable to shareholders of the Company, comprising share capital, reserves and
retained profits as disclosed in the consolidated financial statements.

The management of the Group reviews the capital structure regularly. The Group
considers the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital, and
will balance its overall capital structure through the payment of dividends, new share
issues as well as the raising of bank borrowings and gold loans.

5. Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are described in note
3, the directors of the Company are required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate
is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year, are described below.
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5. Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable
value of inventories is based on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to
be incurred to completion and disposal. These estimates are based on the current
market condition and the historical experience in selling goods of similar nature. It
could change significantly as a result of changes in market conditions. The Group will
reassess the estimation at the end of each reporting period. As at 31 March 2016, the
carrying amount of inventories is HK$31,376.5 million (net of allowance of HK$49.1
million (2015: carrying amount of HK$39,797.6 million, net of allowance of nil).

Useful lives, residual value and impairment of property, plant
and equipment, investment properties and other intangible
assets

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful lives, residual value and
related depreciation and amortisation charges for its property, plant and equipment,
investment properties and other intangible assets. This estimate is based on the
historical experience of the actual useful lives and residual value of property, plant
and equipment, investment properties and other intangible assets of similar nature
and functions. Management will increase the depreciation and amortisation charges
where useful lives or residual value are expected to be shorter or lower than estimated,
or it will write-off or write-down obsolete assets that have been abandoned or sold.
Changes in these estimations may have a material impact on the results of the Group,
which would be recognised in profit or loss in the year when such change occur. As at
31 March 2016, the carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment, investment
properties and other intangible assets are HK$4,749.7 million (2015: HK$4,442.5
million), HK$272.9 million (2015: HK$508.9 million) and HK$407.5 million (2015:
HK$397.2 million), respectively.
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5. Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (Continued)

Deferred taxation in respect of temporary differences
attributable to the undistributed profits of subsidiaries in
Mainland China

The Group’s management determines the dividend distribution plan of the
subsidiaries in Mainland China. Based on the dividend distribution plan, retained
profits as at 31 March 2016 amounting to HK$6,086.7 million (2015: HK$7,325.5 million)
will be distributed by the subsidiaries as dividend in the foreseeable future, while
the remaining retained profits amounting to HK$9,130.0 million (2015: HK$10,628.9
million) has been set aside for reinvestment by the subsidiaries and will not be
distributed in the foreseeable future. The Group’s management further reassesses
the dividend withholding tax rate based on current dividend distribution plan and
determines that certain of these subsidiaries should be entitled to a withholding tax at
the rate of 5% for dividend payments instead of 10%. The dividend distribution plan
is determined and made with reference to the Group'’s approved expansion plans in
Mainland China. Future change in the dividend distribution plan may have a material
impact on the amount of deferred taxation being recognised.

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of the value in
use of the cash-generating units to which goodwill has been allocated. The value in
use calculation requires management to estimate the future cash flows expected to
arise from the cash-generating units and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate

present value.

The carrying amount of goodwill as at 31 March 2016 was HK$257.8 million (2015:
HK$257.8 million). Details of the impairment loss calculation are set out in note 19.
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6. Financial Instruments

Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted, including the
criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which income
and expenses are recognised, in respect of each class of financial assets and financial
liabilities are disclosed in note 3.

6. £@iI R
HEELREAERSREBEMNFIRMEA
SHKER LN (BERREE  HER
R R A 2 B S B L) B ST 3R

Categories of financial instruments ERITRER
2016 2015
HK$ million HK$ million
BHEHET BEBET
Financial assets EREE
Loans and receivables (including cash and EXRERRE(BRERERASEEY)
cash equivalents) 15,571.5 12,185.8
Convertible bonds at fair value through BAFEFABZ 2 LiRES
profit or loss 17.8 17.9
15,589.3 12,203.7
Financial liabilities EMaE
Amortised cost BEHRR A 8,911.4 8,173.0
Gold loans at fair value through profit or loss AR ESABENESEE 6,513.3 8,338.3
15,424.7 16,511.3

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and other receivables, amount
due from an associate, loan receivables, convertible bonds, pledged bank deposits,
bank balances and cash, trade and other payables, amounts due to non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries, bank borrowings and gold loans. Details of these
financial instruments are disclosed in the respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments include market risk (interest rate risk, currency risk and
commodity price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. The management manages and monitors these exposures

to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

EREREEBRRER
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&% CEMRITER  RTEHRRE - ES
R H b FEA IR - RS I 2 R IR AR SR
HRTEFUARESEE - ZEESRITEF
BREWNERE - ZE ST A HBEREE
EhERR(FXAR - E¥EREERERER
)  FERBRKRBESER - AREZSE
BEEROBEER T EEEEEREEZS
[ B AR AR J% B At B e 4 R 0

BABHRESBERAT 2016FFR

165



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #& B #3R&K Mz

For the year ended 31 March 2016 # % 2016 F 3 A 31 HILFE

6. Financial Instruments (continueq)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Market risk

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation to fixed-rate loan
receivables, certain trade receivables and gold loans. The Group currently does not
have any instruments to hedge against the fair value interest rate risk.

Also, the Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk through the impact of rate
changes on interest bearing financial assets and liabilities, mainly interest bearing
pledged bank deposits, certain trade receivables, bank balances and bank borrowings
at variable interest rates. The Group currently does not have an interest rate hedging
policy. However, the management will consider hedging significant interest rate risk
should the need arise.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the cash flow interest rate risk is
considered insignificant and therefore no sensitivity analysis is presented.

Currency risk

Certain group entities have foreign currency sales, which expose the Group to foreign
currency risk. During the year ended 31 March 2016, about 0.4% (2015: 0.5%) of the
Group's sales are denominated in currency other than the functional currency of the
group entities. During the year ended 31 March 2016, about 6.1% (2015: 6.3%) of the
Group's purchases, are denominated in currencies other than the functional currency
of the group entities making the purchase. The majority of the Group’s foreign
currency denominated monetary items are bank balances denominated in Renminbi
(“RMB"), which are held by Group entities whose functional currencies are not RMB,
with carrying amounts of HK$536.3 million (2015: HK$1,084.3 million). In addition,
certain group entities whose functional currency is HKS, have intra-group advances to
their subsidiaries, denominated in RMB.

The Group mainly exposes to currency of United States dollars (“USS$”) and RMB, which
are arising from relevant group entities’ foreign currency denominated monetary
assets and liabilities for the Group's operating activities.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy to eliminate the
currency exposures. However, the management monitors the related foreign currency
exposure closely and will consider hedging significant foreign currency exposures
should the need arise. As at 31 March 2016, if the exchange rate of RMB had been 2%
appreciated or depreciated against HKS, the Group’s profit after taxation for the year
would increase or decrease by HK$101.7 million (2015: HK$89.1 million).

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the currency risk of USS is
considered insignificant.
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6. Financial Instruments (continueq)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Market risk (Continued)

Commodity price risk

The Group is engaged in the sales of jewellery including gold products. The gold
market is influenced by global as well as regional supply and demand conditions.
A significant decline in prices of gold could adversely affect the Group’s financial
performance. In order to reduce the commodity price risk, the Group uses gold loans
to reduce its exposure to fluctuations in the gold price on gold inventory. Gold loans
are settled at maturity which is usually in 1 to 4 months (2015: 2 to 6 months) from
date of inception and any fair value change is immediately recognised in profit or loss.

As at 31 March 2016, if the market price of gold had been higher or lower by 10%, the
potential effect on gold loans and the resulting impact on profit after taxation for the year
would decrease or increase approximately by HK$598.8 million (2015: HK$773.8 million).

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of the counterparties failure
to perform their obligations at the end of the reporting period in relation to each
class of recognised financial assets is the carrying amount of those assets stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position. In order to minimise the credit risk,
the management of the Group has delegated a team responsible for determination
of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual trade debt at the end of the reporting period
to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.
In this regard, the directors of the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk in trade and loan receivables,
with exposure spread over a number of counterparties.

The credit risk on bank balances is minimal as such amounts are placed in banks with
good reputation.
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6. Financial Instruments (continueq)

REMBHRERWE

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Liquidity risk

The management of the Group has built an appropriate liquidity risk management
framework for the management of the Group’s short and medium-term funding and
liquidity management requirements. The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining
banking facilities and by continuously monitoring forecasted and actual cash flows

and the maturity profiles of its financial liabilities.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual maturity for its financial
liabilities. The table has been drawn up to reflect the undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can be required to

pay. The table includes both interest and principal cash flows.

6. ERIIREwm

EREREEBERBUR @)
RHE & ER
TEEEEECAREBRNEHRPHES
RABDECEBREEYEENRBESRAR
EEER AEEERAEFRITMEUARSE
EXEIRERESRERESRABEZEH
&R EERBESRE -

TRAFEBZEREERTENIBA 2
B RRERBAEETRERINEHEE
ZERFHPREE URREFPEBE 2 RERE
TRE - ZRBEEFNEREFISHEERE -

Weighted On demand or Total
average less than 3 months undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 3 months to 1year 1to 5 years cash flows amount
METHFHE REKESEAN 3EAZE 1258 AERRERELR fREE
HKS million HK$ million HKS million HK$ million HKS million
BRET HBEET HBEET HRET BRET
Financial liabilities EHER
At31 March 2016 M201653 8310
Trade and other payables B RHEMENE - 830.2 - - 830.2 830.2
Amounts due to non- ENAHBARFERRRRE
controlling shareholders
of subsidiaries - 161.2 - - 161.2 161.2
Bank borrowings RITER 0.9% 7,324.8 - 614.2 7,939.0 7,920.0
Gold loans EEHE 1.9% 6,389.7 139.0 - 6,528.7 6,5133
14,705.9 139.0 614.2 15,459.1 15,424.7
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6. Financial Instruments (continueq)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

6. I Bmwm
EREMREIEBEZERBR @

Liquidity risk (Continued) MEBE & R (&)
Weighted On demand or Total
average less than 3 months undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 3 months to 1year 1to 5 years cash flows amount
MEFHFIE REREHIBAR 3BAZF 1255 AERRERELE REE
HKS million HKS million HKS million HKS million HKS million
BEER BEET BEER BEERT BEER
Financial liabilities EHaE
At31 March 2015 R2015F3A31R
Trade and other payables B REMENFE - 1,225.1 - - 1,225.1 1,225.1
Amounts due to non- FERIE A RIFEER R RE
controlling shareholders
of subsidiaries - 197.3 - - 197.3 197.3
Bank borrowings BITER 1.5% 6,760.2 - - 6,760.2 6,750.6
Gold loans ESfRE 23% 7,537.6 825.1 = 8,362.7 83383
15,720.2 825.1 - 16,5453 16,511.3
Notes: Fif5E

(i) The amounts included in above for variable rate bank borrowings are subject to change if changes in variable interest rates
differ from those estimates of interest rates determined at the end of the reporting period.

(ii) The amounts of gold loans are determined with reference to quoted market bid price of gold traded in active liquid markets.

() HEREHROTIERERHERNEHENFIEMT - L5
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6. Financial Instruments (continueq)

Fair value measurements of financial instruments

(0]

=
2N

A
=

7

IR R AL

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that are measured at fair

value on a recurring basis

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined as

follows:

the fair value of gold loans is determined using discounted cash flow

valuation technique reference to quoted market bid price of gold traded

in active liquid markets as a key input; and

. the fair value of convertible bonds is determined in accordance with

generally accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis.

The following table provides an analysis of convertible bonds and gold loans

that are measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair value, grouped into

6. ERIIREwm

SERMIAEAFERE

() BELEREUNTEIELSHEERS
PEaEzATEE
CREERSREBEZAFEDUTIE
HEE :

ESBEZOTFEFARRRER
FiEE  HPSBESREN
BEECEESMSEEAREATE
WASE &

ARBES 2 A HEDREAREE

TREH#NSEAFERRRTEZTR
BREZRESEE  BRERATEBEMS

Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fair value is observable. BESB1E3IH-
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
ERE E28 B3 Bt
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
BEET BRET HERET BEBT
At 31 March 2016 W20164£3 A31H
Financial assets EREE
Convertible bonds AR BRES - - 17.8 17.8
Financial liabilities E@mAas
Gold loans BEREE - 6,513.3 - 6,513.3
At 31 March 2015 201543 A31H
Financial assets EMEE
Convertible bonds ] R ES - = 17.9 17.9
Financial liabilities sHMas
Gold loans =ELEE - 83383 - 8,338.3
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6.

Financial Instruments (continueq)

Fair value measurements of financial instruments (continued)

(0]

(i)

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that are measured at fair
value on a recurring basis (Continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements of convertible bonds

6.

EMT R

EMITEATEFE @

U}

ERERABURNTEAECHEERSE
MaEfz A TE @
A IR (E S5 3R A FER B 2R

HK$ million

BEET

At 1 April 2014 20144818 215
Currency realignment =gk (3.6)
At 31 March 2015 201563 A31H 17.9
Currency realignment Bl (0.1)
At 31 March 2016 A2016F3H31H 17.8

Fair value measurements and valuation processes

In estimating the fair value of convertible bonds, the Group uses market-
observable data to the extent it is available. Where Level 1 inputs are not
available, the Group performs the valuation using discounted cash flow model
with reference to comparable market data.

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that are not measured at
fair value on recurring basis

The fair value of other financial assets and financial liabilities is determined in
accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on discounted cash
flow analysis.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying amounts of financial
assets and liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated financial
statements approximate their fair values.

(ii)

RPEFTERIGEERE
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RETSH TS BERYE - MREE
RWARBE  AEEESRULBTHSH
BRAMRRESRBREET(HE
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7. Revenue and Segment Information

Revenue represents the net amounts received and receivable for goods sold less
returns and net of trade discounts.

For the purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment, information
reported to the chief operating decision maker (the “CODM”"), which comprises
executive directors of the Company, mainly focuses on the location of management.
Revenue derived from each location of management is further analysed into those
from retail and wholesale markets when reviewed by CODM. The Group’s reportable
and operating segments for the year ended 31 March 2015 included three segments,
namely (i) jewellery business in the Mainland China, (ii) watch business in the Mainland
China and (iii) business in Hong Kong, Macau and other markets. During the year
ended 31 March 2016, for the purposes of better assessment of performance from
each location and operation, the Group has further separated the business of Hearts
On Fire Company, LLC (“Hearts On Fire”), where the operational decisions are made
by the local management in the United States (the “US”), from business in Hong Kong,
Macau and other markets. Comparative figures have been restated to conform with
the current year’s presentation. No operating segments identified by the CODM have
been aggregated in arriving at the reportable segments of the Group.
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Revenue and Segment Information (continuea 7. EXRBERTBER@

An analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by (a) FAEBLLERLENTIRNHN
reportable segment: T

For the year ended 31 March BE3RALEE

Mainland China
R, Hong Kong, Macau and
Jewellery business Watch business other markets Total
KEER BRER it AN REMHS Hearts On Fire @3t
(notei)
(Rati)
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015

HKS million  HKS million  HKS million  HKS million  HKS million ~ HKS million  HKS million  HKS million  HKS$ million  HKS million
A&t HBEBT FHEAET BAEET FAEEx HEET HE#ET BEBR  BRER  BEAR

Revenue L
External sales HREE
— Retail —2g 24,6578 267684 18148 19310 21,7005 258742 1524 872 483255 546608
— Wholesale (note i — B3 (W) 71978 91428 - - 465.2 1598 603.0 3136 82660 96162
Segment/group revenue 2 AW/ EBLEE 31856 359112 18148 19310 22,1657 26,0340 7554 4008 565915 64,2770
Inter-segment sales (noteiii) D EHREHE
(& iii) 4196 560.6 - - 270 3,0049 21 2.1 2,693.7 36756
322752 364718 18148 19310 244377 29,1289 7515 4209 592852 67,9526
Adjusted gross profit BRBER 94857 106160 3549 4721 5,883.9 79096 3504 1848 160749 19,1825
Inter-segment eliminations DR (74) (68.2) - = 299.7 (380.6) - = 2923 (4488)
94783 105478 3549 4721 61836 75290 3504 1848 163672 187337
Otherincome HitrgA 211 17 322 123 529 415 - - 306.2 3015
Selling and distribution costs ~ $HER 2 HHAH
and general and —RRATHER
administrative expenses (62754)  (7,0403) (447.2) (4562)  (44316)  (45934) (469.2) (2545)  (11,6234)  (123444)
Core operating profit (loss) FERLET
Eﬂg 34240 37492 (60.1) 82 18049 29831 (118.8) (697) 50500 66908

Unrealised hedging (loss) gain ~ E & K& B4

on gold (B8 i (725.8) 3387
Others (note v) Hft (HzEiv) (299.7) (1414)
Interest income FISHA 1546 1515
Finance costs RERK (243.0) (380.5)
Profit before taxation BRBiAnER 3,936.1 6,659.1
Other segmentinformation st AAEFEHTS

included in measurementof ~ HEEFEMNE

segment profit or o HER

loss or segment assets:

Concessionaire fees s 1,787.8 20766 139.6 1543 218 262 - - 1,949.2 2,257.1
Operating lease paymentsin ~ AMIYIELEHE

respect of rented premises HE 2140 1916 36.7 416 1,788.5 1,583.7 392 231 2,0784 1,840.0

Staff costs EIFA 2,265.7 2,266.1 144.8 1372 1,283.8 1,559.6 186.2 93.7 3,880.5 4,056.6
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Revenue and Segment Information (continued)

An analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by
reportable segment: (continued)

(a) (@)

Notes:

(i) Being operations managed by the management in the US.

(ii) Wholesale mainly represents sales and provision of services to franchisees.

(iii) Inter-segment sales are charged at a price mutually agreed by both parties.

(iv)  Amount represents other gains and losses, other expenses, share of results of an associate and a joint venture.

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as the Group’s
accounting policies described in note 3. Core operating profit represents the
profit generated from each segment without allocation of unrealised hedging
(loss) gain on gold, other gains and losses, other expenses, share of results of
an associate and a joint venture, interest income and finance costs. This is the
measure reported to the CODM for the purposes of resource allocation and

performance assessment.

(b) Analysis of the Group’s property, plant and equipment, (b)

BEBRETEHBER @

AEEEXEBEREENATERD
D@

PHEE -
(i) EREEEHEEEERNEY -
(i) HBEEIRHERRBURE T MERF -
(i)  DEREEEREFIREZBELRE -

ZEEEAMWREREE At ES G —REE
DEARBELEIHEE -

(iv)

280 WMEVE FH R E M 3 A A AR
EESHBEMER - TELKERRNEER
DEESAREFRE T (FE) Wi - HbW
HmREE  HAX 2 E—RBE QT
REELEZEE  FBBRARBERA
AIEDEAEENGR - LRMETEEE
REEERUMEEIR D B R RBFTE A

BEE.

BUERSMETHEEEDE -

investment properties and inventories by reportable BMERDZHE REVERESE
segment: T
As at 31 March ®m3A31H
Mainland China
HE A it Hong Kong, Macau and
Jewellery business Watch business other markets Hearts On Fire Total
KEEH EHREH & AMREMTS a5t
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
HKS million  HKS million  HK$ million  HKS million  HK$ million ~ HKS million ~ HK$ million ~ HKS million  HK$ million  HKS million
AEn HEBEn FHRET AEET FEEx HEET HE#ET BEBRT  BRAR  BEAR
Property, plantand equipment  #1% + MERRE 35415 33873 68.5 1014 1,386 8706 101.1 832 47497 44425
Investment properties REME - - - - 2729 508.9 - - 2729 508.9
Inventories #E 12,196.0 15,695.0 1,783.6 23119 16,803.5 21,3270 5934 4637 31,3765 39,797.6
Segment assets and liabilities NHMEERER

Except for the above, no other assets and liabilities are included in the measures
of the Group’s segment reporting that are reviewed by the CODM. Accordingly,
no segment assets and liabilities are presented.
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7. Revenue and Segment Information (continued) 7. EXRBERTBER@

(c) An analysis of the Group’s revenue is as follows: (0 AEFEEXEBRIWNT :
2016 2015
HK$ million HKS million
BEBT BHEET
Sales of HE
— Gem-set jewellery — LREEREE 15,495.7 17,378.9
— Gold products —E=EEMR 31,301.2 34,214.2
— Platinum/karat gold products — L KEEM 6,974.5 9,256.3
— Watches — B 2,785.5 3,427.6
Service income from franchisees PNEPIEEEST )T ON 34.6 =
56,591.5 64,277.0
No individual customer contributed over 10% of the total revenue of the Group MEFER  BEENETLEAEEEF
in both years. MEHETE10% U L o
The Group's non-current assets, excluding loan receivables, interests in an BRiEHNBE S NAEEFRRBEE (T
associate and a joint venture, amount due from an associate and deferred tax BIERRER R—FEEATREGEDL
assets, by geographical areas are as follows: FotEm - B —REE R RREREL
MEEE)DHWT :
2016 2015
HK$ million HKS million
BEET BEBT
Mainland China R B A 3,942.9 4,020.7
Hong Kong, Macau, the US and other markets &% + BP9 « 2B & Hihis 2,089.2 2,117.7
6,032.1 6,138.4
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8. OtherIncome 8. HilA
2016 2015
HKS$ million HK$ million
BHEHET BAEBT
Franchise income MEEEU A 116.3 140.5
Government grants BN RERL 77.7 64.3
Gain on scrap sales EERISHE N = 11.9 31.0
Rental income HEWA 18.0 14.5
Others Hith 82.3 51.2
306.2 301.5
9. Other Gains and Losses 9. HinEREE
2016 2015
HKS$ million HK$ million
BEET BHEBT
Net foreign exchange loss & 5B FRE (229.0) (12.7)
Loss on disposal of property, HEME  BERREEE
plant and equipment (10.9) (17.4)
Others Hith (5.0) (5.8)
(244.9) (35.9)
10. Interest Income and Finance Costs 10. F RN RAAE WA
2016 2015
HKS$ million HK$ million
HEET BEAT
Interest income from FEYA
— banks —R1T 111.8 125.1
— trade receivables — B 5 EWFIE 42.4 23.6
— loan receivables —EWRER 0.4 2.8
154.6 151.5
Finance costs on borrowings EERERA
— gold loans —HEEX 174.4 2316
— bank loans —RITEE 68.6 148.9
243.0 380.5
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11. Profit before Taxation

11. BgBLaTEF

2016 2015
HK$ million HKS million
BEET EF-5: 54
Profit before taxation has been arrived at after ~ BREHATEFRIS I (FTA) :
charging (crediting):
Directors’ remuneration (note 12) EEMS (FFEE12) 47.7 80.4
Staff's retirement benefits scheme contributions 8 T 3R K& R 5t 2 5% 643.1 598.7
Staff costs BT 3,189.7 3,377.5
3,880.5 4,056.6
Allowance for doubtful debts RERERE 19.5 -
Amortisation of other intangible assets HittEEEE#HE 41.4 24.0
Amortisation of land use rights = b5 PR 6 14.9 14.1
Auditors’ remuneration ZEETE &
— audit services — R EBR % 8.9 83
— non-audit services — IEREAR TS 6.1 42
Concessionaire fees HED K 1,949.2 2,257.1
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses FERFBERAAX 39,153.6 43,847.5
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ¥ - [ E RREBITE 837.0 730.6
Depreciation of investment properties REVETE 21.3 17.5
Donations (included in other expenses) Rt Gt AEMEXZA) 9.8 72.2
Fair value loss (gain) of gold loans (included in ~ E&£E &M A FEEE (k)
cost of goods sold) (GtABHERETR) 542.1 (418.0)
Impairment of inventories (included in costof ~ F&EBE (Gt AHEERAR)
goods sold) 74.2 -
Operating lease rentals in respect of rented AAYELEHERS
premises 2,078.4 1,840.0

12. Directors’, Chief Executives’ and Employee’s

12. EX  RRITHABRESR

Emoluments B &

2016 2015

HKS million HK$ million

BHEET BEET

Directors’ fees EEWE 4.1 4.1
Other emoluments to directors EEMNHMM S

— salaries and other benefits — FHekEMER 25.2 253

— performance-based bonus — EBMACAL 16.5 21.9

— retirement benefits scheme contributions — RIRB R FT 2R 1.9 23

— share-based payments — IR BEEN R - 26.8

47.7 80.4
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12. Directors’, Chief Executives’ and Employee’s
Emoluments (continued)

Details of emoluments paid by the Group to the directors and the chief executives of

12. EE &

i & )
AEERARRAEBERESITHAS X THIEN

it

THAS

'3

==

the Company are as follows: SEBWT
2016 2015
Retirement Retirement
Salaries benefits Salaries benefit
Director's  and other Performance scheme  Share-based Director's  andother Performance scheme  Share-based
fee  benefits based-bonus contribution  payments Total fee benefit based-bonus  contribution  payments Total
HeREt IR HBRBAR  FeRdM BN WRHAR
f £k B OBRNA BER ReXR & ESH BA O OBMEA EER BO%A &t
HKS milion ~ HKSmillion ~ HKS million ~ HKS million ~ HKSmillion ~ HKSmillion ~ HKSmilion ~ HKSmilion ~ HKSmillion ~ HKSmillion ~ HKS million ~ HKS million
ENAT ERAT BART ANAL ERAT EAAR AAER BERR  ARAR BRRR RERR  ARER
(notei) (note )
(Wt (Hi3i)
Executive directors: Yi7EE:
Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry (Chairman) B4Rt (2R) 02 44 29 02 - 77 02 44 38 02 46 132
Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent (Managing Director) ERELL (E2008) 02 43 28 04 - 77 02 43 38 04 44 131
Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian BIAEL 02 1.1 07 01 - 21 02 12 09 02 23 48
Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy -y 02 21 14 02 - 39 02 21 18 04 23 68
Mr. Chan Sai-Cheong RS 5% 0.2 29 19 03 = 53 02 29 24 03 24 82
Mr. Suen Chi-Keung, Peter bty 02 21 14 02 - 39 02 21 19 02 24 68
Mr. Chan Hiu-Sang, Albert RELEE 02 23 15 0.1 - 41 02 23 20 01 2% 70
Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton BB 02 23 15 02 - 42 02 23 20 03 23 7
Mr.Liu Chun-Wai, Bobby BIRALE (R01651 A1 REZRE)
(appointed on 1 January 2016) (note i) (BEi) - 05 02 - - 07 - - - - - -
Non-executive directors: F4ES:
Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson Bigks 02 16 11 01 - 30 02 16 14 01 1 44
Mr.Koo Tong-Fat (rtired on 1 January 2016) TEREE (K061 A1RER)
(notedi) (Mitii) 02 16 11 01 - 30 02 2 19 01 11 54
Independent non-executive directors: BUkHTES:
Mr. Cheng Ming-Fun, Paul Bl is 04 - - - - 04 04 - - - 03 07
Dr. Fung Kwok-King, Victor BEAEL 04 - - - - 04 04 = = = 03 07
Mr. Kwong Che-Keung, Gordon Brags 05 - - - - 05 05 - - - 03 08
Mr. Lam Kin-Fung, Jeffrey gLt 04 - - - - 04 04 - - - 03 07
Dr. Or Ching-Fai, Raymond fEERL 04 - - - - 04 04 - - - 03 07
Total 5t 41 252 165 19 = 417 41 253 09 23 268 804
Notes: fisE :
(i) The performance-based bonus is discretionary based on the Group’s financial results and directors’ performance decided by (i) ERRANEAEEEEERAEENTBEEREERER
the management of the Group. 1EHEE ©
m ’ ) q T i (i) BRAKEN2016F1F1ARBEERNTES - RERP
(ii) Mr. Liu Chun-Wai, Bobby was appointed as an executive director on 1 January 2016. The amount of his emoluments shown on - — .
the above table covers the period from the date of his appointment to 31 March 2016. 2IINEBEHIEREERZ 201653 A31 RS
(i) HEBEEN2016F1 1 ARREFHUTES -NERPE

(iii

) Mr. Koo Tong-Fat as a non-executive director retired on 1 January 2016. The amount of his emoluments shown on the above

table covers the period from 1 April 2015 to the date of his resignation.
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12. Directors’, Chief Executives’ and Employee’s
Emoluments (continueq)

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were mainly for their services in
connection with the management of the affairs of the Company and the Group. The
emoluments of the non-executive directors and independent non-executive directors
shown above were mainly for their services as directors of the Company.

The five highest paid individuals included four directors (2015: five) of the Company,
details of whose emoluments are included above. The emoluments of the remaining

12. EE - EITBAERES
i & )

EXFI R ITEEHNE T EEARENEE

AANBRAEEEKRMRE - EXFIRZIE

HITESRBUFHTEEZHSTZRHRS
BERRAESHE -

FEBREMEATBEAQATEEES (2015
FRR)  FEHFWHBTHRR L - FREET

highest paid individual during the year were as follows: BeMEe A LHFBMNT -
2016 2015
HK$ million HKS million
BEET BAEBT
Employee =]
— salaries and other benefits — 5 RHEMEF 4.8 N/A 38 A
— performance-based bonus — EWACAL - N/A T3 A
— retirement benefits scheme contributions — RREFIF B - N/A 38 A
438 N/A R 3E A
The emoluments were within the following bands: HEFMDONFTIIER !
2016 2015
Number of employee Number of employee
BEHE EEHE
HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,500,001 & JT £ 5,000,000 & JT 1 N/A 38 A

During the year ended 31 March 2016 and 2015, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to the directors and the chief executives of the Company or the five highest
paid individuals (including directors, the chief executives and employees) as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.
None of the directors have waived any emoluments during the year ended 31 March
2016 and 31 March 2015.

BZE2016FK2015F3A31BILLFE  £EE
WEBAAAEERESTERAEREERS
e AL (BEES  ETBRAERES)X
BN € » LA S| 1% 5 0 A S0 E in A A £2 [ B Y
HBREABBHEE - B22016F38318K
20153 A31 BILFENEEMES WETM
o
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13. Taxation

13. %18

2016 2015
HKS$ million HKS million
BEET BEEBT
The taxation charge comprises: BB B
Current tax: BIHABEIE
Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) in Mainland China B R it (2 FT ISR 377.1 842.8
Hong Kong Profits Tax FEREH 128.9 4729
Macau complementary tax BPYFF B R 54.3 82.1
Taxation in other jurisdictions =01 B S T 1.9 2.0
562.2 1,399.8
(Over)underprovision in prior years: BEFE (BERBE BETR
EIT in Mainland China PE Rt FTER (22.7) 0.1
Hong Kong Profits Tax BENEHR (0.9) (1.2)
Macau complementary tax BRPFSEEH - 44
(23.6) 33
Deferred tax charge (credit) (note 24) IEFER BB (5T A) (Bi5E 24) 388.2 (307.8)
Withholding tax* T * 30.4 28.0
957.2 1,123.3

&

Withholding tax mainly represents withholding tax on intra-group licence income and interest income from Mainland China.

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated assessable profit for
both years.

Under the Enterprise Income Tax Law (the “EIT Law”) of the People’s Republic of China
(“PRC") and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the subsidiaries
in Mainland China is 25% for both years.

For certain subsidiaries of the Company in Mainland China, they are entitled to the tax
incentives in connection with the development of the western part of Mainland China.

The applicable tax rate is 15% for both years.

Macau complementary tax is calculated at the maximum progressive rate of 12% on
the estimated assessable profit for both years.
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13. Taxation (continued)

Taxation charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit before taxation per the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

13. BilH @

FRABBEXHAIRGFEESRAMMEEKER
BRBIATEFHARAT ¢

2016 2015

HK$ million HKS million

BHEBT HEBT

Profit before taxation BREL AR R 3,936.1 6,659.1
Tax at the applicable income tax rate — (Mainland RBEREHETENSE — (PERL :

China: 25%; Hong Kong: 16.5%; Macau: 12%) 25% ; BB 1 16.5% 5 B 1 12%) 798.6 1,319.4
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax purposes 7~ B #1555 X OB FE = & 458 39.0
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purposes BERFIMANT L (73.4) (81.9)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERABIEEENHRETE 113.2 34.3
Utilisation of tax losses previously not recognised B LRI AR IEEE (1.0) (13)
Tax effect of tax exemptions and incentives granted & F BRI E A THIER R R EENHE

to certain subsidiaries in Mainland China ga (5.6) (10.6)
Withholding tax on undistributed profits of Fh B PR s BB A B) R 0 TR R FE 4B

subsidiaries in Mainland China 73.7 (216.3)
(Over)underprovision in prior years BAFE (BERE BETR (23.6) 33
Withholding tax BB 30.4 28.0
Others Hity (0.9) 9.4
Taxation charge for the year FRBEESLH 957.2 1,1233

At 31 March 2016, the Group has tax losses of HK$672.8 million (2015: HK$294.3
million) not recognised as deferred tax assets. All of the unrecognised tax losses may
be carried forward indefinitely, except for HK$336.5 million (2015: HK$177.3 million)
which will be expired as follows:

R2016F3831H NEBRBERRELH
BHEENMEEEB67288 BB T (2015%F :
2043 B EEIT) o A RERBIEEIE IR
#uE, H3365EBEBIT(2015F 1177358 B
70) 15 T 51 B R e

2016 2015
HKS$ million HK$ million
HEHET EBT

Tax losses expiring in BEBBERUTERER
— 2017 —2017% 0.8 2.7
— 2018 —2018% 3.2 48
—2019 — 20194 111.7 125.4
— 2020 — 20204 415 444
— 2021 — 2021 % 179.3 =
336.5 1773

Also, at 31 March 2016, the Group has deductible temporary differences of HKS$5.5
million (2015: HK$11.3 million) of which deferred taxation has not been recognised.
Tax effect of such deductible temporary differences as at 31 March 2016 was HK$0.9
million (2015: HK$1.9 million).

BEAh - 20163 8318 » ANEEE RF LT
RIELEHENAHRERFEEERSSAEET
(2015F 1113 EB ) o LiltA2016F3 8
STEHAHREREEZENBEEERIBES
JL(2015F : 19HBBT) °
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13. Taxation (continued)

Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax of 5% to 10% (2015: 5% to 10%) is
imposed on dividends declared in respect of profits earned by subsidiaries in Mainland
China from 1 January 2008 onwards. Based on the dividend distribution plan of
the management, retained profits as at 31 March 2016 amounting to HK$6,086.7
million (2015: HK$7,325.5 million) will be distributed as dividend in the foreseeable
future, while the remaining retained profits amounting to HK$9,130.0 million (2015:
HK$10,628.9 million) has been set aside for reinvestment and will not be distributed in
the foreseeable future.

14. Earnings per Share

The calculation of the basic earnings per share for the year is based on the
consolidated profit attributable to shareholders of the Company for the year and on
the number of 10,000,000,000 (2015: 10,000,000,000) shares in issue during the year.

No diluted earnings per share is presented as there were no potential ordinary shares
during both years.

15. Dividends

13. BilH @

RIEFBECEMEH L PEAMNKEAR
ZERB2008F 1 A1 BEMREBVEFIEEIRRKRE
B 40 3 A F 5% F 10% (20154F : 5% = 10%) Z
BENH - RESEENREDIKTE > K206
F3H31 HWREBIRFIE 60867 B E BT (2015
F:73255HEBBT)SETRBREARES
K M TRERERE 09,1300 5B BT (2015
F:106289E BB L) EREEBRERAE
FEEARBRDIK o

14. BRER

FESREABANRERADIRRELEER
ZEmEA - IR ERE 1T 10,000,000,000
#% (2015 £ : 10,000,000,000 %) 5T & o

HRMEFELEETEER  MAE2E
REERF

15. IE 2

2016 2015
HKS$ million HKS million
ABET EES o
Dividends recognised as distribution during the year: RAFEEZADRKZBRE :
2016 Interim — HK50.0 cents 2016 FE R E — B8R 50.0 84l (20154 : 20155
(2015: 2015 Interim — HK13.0 cents) per share hH— S8R 13.084L) 5,000.0 1,300.0
2015 Final — HK15.0 cents 2015 FARE — R 15.05840 (2015 F : 20145
(2015: 2014 Final — HK19.0 cents) per share RE — B 19.0584L) 1,500.0 1,900.0
6,500.0 3,200.0

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend of HK8.0 cents per
share and a special dividend of HK22.0 cents per share, totalling approximately
HK$3,000.0 million in respect of the year ended 31 March 2016 (2015: a final
dividend of HK15.0 cents per share, totalling approximately HK$1,500.0 million) has
been proposed by the directors of the Company and is subject to approval by the
shareholders in the forthcoming general meeting.
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16. Property, Plant and Equipment

16. M3 - BB RRE

Furniture,
Landand Plantand fixtures and Leasehold Motor Construction
buildings machinery equipment improvements vehicles in progress Total
1HRET BERKE G 2ERRE BENREE g ERIR @3t
HKS million HKS million HKS million HKS million HKS million HKS million HKS million

BEER BEET BEET EL L BERT BEER
cosT B
At 1 April 2014 H20145 4518 17119 2280 1,456.1 1,507.0 459 399.3 53482
Currency realignment B 15 (33) 06 18 (15) 08 (0.1)
Additions hE 3943 935 434 390.1 83 7463 2,0459
Acquired on acquisition of REMBAFAMEA (1 34(a)

subsidiaries (note 34(a)) - - 6.9 753 - - 822

Transfer i 450.0 - - 15 - (461.5) -
Disposals HE - (55) (92.6) (37) (13) - (103.1)
Transferred from investment properties ~ EHREYE 07 - - - - = 07
At 31 March 2015 H2015F3 7310 2,5804 3127 17844 1,9820 514 6849 73958
Currency realignment EaE (1129) (202) (422) (929) (22) (36.1) (3065
Additions RE 2045 298 3653 2750 29 267.3 11448
Transfer i 4] - - 15 - (56) -
Disposals e - (16) (80.1) (189) 2.1 = (1027)
Transferred from investment properties ~ EHREYE 2147 - - - - = 2147
At31 March 2016 #2016F3531H 28908 3207 20274 2,146.7 500 9105 8,346.1
DEPRECIATION it
At 1 April 2014 R2014%4518 268.2 524 902.0 1,0458 25.7 - 2,294.1
Currency realignment EaE 04 (12) 06 16 - - 14
Provided for the year Enie 9% 282 3148 2819 89 - 7306
Eliminated on disposals HERSE - (3J) (67.6) (08) (13) = (7128)
At 31 March 2015 R2015F3531H 3654 763 1,1498 13285 333 - 29533
Currency realignment HAE (194) (59) (264) (68.6) (13) = (1216)
Provided for the year Enie 1319 38 3449 3198 76 = 8370
Eliminated on disposals HEMH - (07) (685) (1.0 21 - (123)
At31 March 2016 R2016%3 8318 4779 1025 1,399.8 15787 375 - 3,594
CARRYING VALUES R
At 31 March 2016 R2016%3 8318 24129 2182 627.6 568.0 125 9105 47497
At 31 March 2015 B2015E3531H 22150 2364 634.6 653.5 18.1 6849 44425
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16. Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)

The carrying values of the Group’s properties (including construction in progress) are
analysed as follows:

16. ¥M% - BB EHRE @

REEYE (BIFERYE) WIREEIMAT ¢

2016 2015
HKS$ million HKS million
HEET HEBT
In Hong Kong BE 645.8 4413
In Mainland China HhE Rt 2,676.5 2,457.1
In South Africa [FES 1.1 1.5
3,3234 2,899.9
17. Land Use Rights 17. TiifERA#E
2016 2015
HKS$ million HKS million
HEET HEBT
Carrying amount IREE
At 1 April R4A1H 253.2 188.8
Currency realignment ik (12.2) (0.1)
Additions = = 78.6
Charged to profit or loss during the year RERNBBZINKR (14.9) (14.1)
At 31 March M3H318 226.1 253.2
Analysed for reporting purposes as: THRERREAENDNT
Current assets (included in trade and other TRBEE(BETEZRAMERFER)
receivables) 14.5 15.3
Non-current assets FRBEE 211.6 237.9
226.1 253.2
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18. Investment Properties

18. & EWE

HKS million
HEBT

COST A
Arising from acquisition of subsidiaries (note 34(b)) LA B Y /B8 /8 R 7= A I Rk 3 (BT EE 34¢(b)) 549.1
Transferred to property, plant and equipment HIZEZYE  BMENREZE (23.5)
At 31 March 2015 20155638318 525.6
Transferred to property, plant and equipment EEEYE  BELRE (228.8)
At 31 March 2016 201653 A31H 296.8
DEPRECIATION e
Provided for the year FREE 17.5
Transferred to property, plant and equipment BEIYE  BEKRE (0.8)
At 31 March 2015 M2015F3H31H 16.7
Provided for the year FREE 21.3
Transferred to property, plant and equipment HZEZEYE BMERRE (14.7)
At 31 March 2016 M201653 31 H 23.9
CARRYING VALUES BREE
At 31 March 2016 M2016F3 A31H 2729
At 31 March 2015 2015563831 H 508.9

The fair value of the Group's investment properties at 31 March 2016 was HK$328.3

million (2015: HK$559.8 million). The fair value has been arrived at based on a valuation

carried out by the Knight Frank Petty Limited (“Knight Frank”), an independent

property valuer not connected with the Group (whose address is 4/F, Shui On Centre,

6-8 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong), in accordance with the HKIS Valuation

Standards (2012 Edition) issued by Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors. Knight Frank is a

member of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors, and have appropriate qualifications

and recent experience in the valuation of similar properties in the relevant locations.

AEBPBREWEN2016F3IB3NENAEE
53283 HBET(2015%F 5598 HEBT) ' A
£ 7 £5 9 % B 22 1Y 08 L W) 3E 1 B B S 3 080 5T
TERAT([FL ) (it BEBEFBEE6S
FERHERPL4E)RESBIEMBER MG 2E
BREMBEMEER (2012F R) ET2HE
MEE RHABBUEMBEREZ2— I
BRBERKAEHEBMEGENLER
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18. Investment Properties (continued)

The fair value was determined based on the income approach, where the market
rentals of all lettable units of the properties are assessed and discounted at the
market yield expected by investors for this type of properties. The market rentals are
assessed by reference to the rentals achieved in the lettable units of the properties as
well as other lettings of similar properties in the neighbourhood. The capitalisation
rate is determined by reference to the yields derived from analysing the sales
transactions of similar properties in Hong Kong and adjusted to take into account the
market expectation from property investors to reflect factors specific to the Group’s
investment properties.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and best use of the properties
is their current use.

Details of the Group’s investment properties and information about the fair value
hierarchy as at 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2015 are as follows:

18. REME =

ZAFEDRBRAEEE - ZEUEZRET
HEEM T SEESRREEMLEWEEAT
ZhEWERFERER - mSHE2EZEY
R AN 2 HS UREECENEA
HEBREFE - MRS EEBEMYE
HEXRGHEzZWEER  URYWEREEZT
SHEBEHRABRUANRAEERENEREZ
ESE

RIPERSNENOATER  BENKZBE
REBEABRRRZE AR -

AEEREMEFBREBER2016FE3A31H
K 2015F3 31 HATFESHMWERNT :

Level 3 Fair value
E=R NEE
HK$ million HK$ million
BHEBT BEBT
At 31 March 2016 201653 A 31 H
Industrial property units located in Hong Kong {7 A& EH) T £ 2By 272.9 328.3
At 31 March 2015 201553 A31H
Industrial property units located in Hong Kong {7 A& BRI T £V 2£E (v 508.9 559.8

The above investment properties are depreciated on a straight-line basis over 20 years.
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19. Goodwill

19. HE

HKS million
BEET
COST AND CARRYING VALUES BARIREE
Arising from acquisition of Hearts On Fire (note 34(a)) B ZE 2015 3 A 31 B L FE RS Hearts On Fire
during the year ended 31 March 2015, at EAERRIE (FEE 34()
31 March 2015 and 31 March 2016 R201556F3 A 31 HM2016 3 A31H 257.8

The recoverable amount of the cash-generating units arising from Hearts On Fire is
determined based on a value in use calculation which uses cash flow projections based
on financial budgets approved by the directors covering a 5-year (2015: 5-year) period,
and a discount rate of 11.0%-14.3% (2015: 11.5%) per annum.

Cash flow projections during the budget period are based on the same expected
gross margins and raw materials price inflation throughout the budget period. The
cash flows beyond that 5-year period have been extrapolated using the projected
long-term average growth rate for the luxury jewellery industry. In the opinion of the
directors, no impairment loss was required for the year ended 31 March 2016 and
31 March 2015. The directors believe that any reasonably possible change in the key
assumptions on which the recoverable amount is based would not cause the carrying

amount of the group of units to exceed the aggregate its recoverable amount.

Hearts On Fire TE A NBE S EE BN AT KE
SEDREFAEEETTE (BERESHLE
RESF(015F (5F) 2B RBEE  FRAESF
11.0%-14.3% (20155 : 11.5%) Z BRI E LB &
MIEREEITEE) MEE ©

ZEEHENRSRTENERERNESHEF
EREEBEHRREMEMER LR o MBBsF
HWESFRAFEAENEEKRETERB T
REHEE -FER R BE2016F3A318K
2015F3 A3 BIELFERBERERIE - EE48
5 AWESEMKENEEBRSNEMEE
AHEEE  FTEEREMARNREERBE R
e EE4R%E o
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20. Other Intangible Assets 20. HithEREEE
Trademarks and patents
HEREH
HK$ million
HEBR
COST A
Arising from acquisition of Hearts On Fire (note 34(a)) B £ 2015 3 A 31 H ILFE WS Hearts On Fire
during the year ended 31 March 2015 and EERRIE (FFE34() &
at 31 March 2015 M2015F3A31H 421.2
Additions NE 51.7
At 31 March 2016 #2016 %F3H31H 4729
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION HetiEsy
Provided for the year FREE 24.0
At 31 March 2015 201563 A31H 24.0
Provided for the year FREE 41.4
At 31 March 2016 201653 H31H 65.4
CARRYING VALUES BREE
At 31 March 2016 20163 A31H 407.5
At 31 March 2015 201563 H31H 397.2
The trademarks and patents are amortised with useful life of 5 to 15 years. ZEWEREANRAEAFLSZ 15 FH#H o
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21. Interest in an Associate/Amount due from an
Associate

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group contributed RMB36.0 million
(approximately HK$44.0 million) for 30.0% of the registered capital of Shenzhen
Qianhai Chow Tai Fook Hong Kong Goods Centre Co., Ltd. (“Qianhai CTF”) which was
established in Mainland China in the current year. Qianhai CTF is engaged in operating
a shopping complex in Qianhai, Shenzhen in Mainland China.

The Group is able to exercise significant influence over Qianhai CTF because it has
the power to appoint two out of seven directors of Qianhai CTF under the provisions
stated in the Articles of Association of Qianhai CTF, representing 28.6% of voting rights
held by the Group as at 31 March 2016.

21, R—REBE NI ZHERE JE
B —REE N R RIE

BZE2016F3831HILEEE  AEEARLKEE
HRYFERARBBEFROLERAR ([FEE
KRB APBEIREMMAL) EEARE 3608
Br(H440BE8HBT)  (hEMEAK30.0% °
BERRBR B EIRYIAEELEBY T o

RIBFERAABNWABEZRRMA > NEERA
BAABRER/BENEEHERZAEHP 25

HAEEEZ2016F3831AFMEBEREEN
286% @ HItAEBMEAEARBEEEATES -

2016

HKS$ million

HEET

Cost of unlisted investment F EHIBERR 44.0
Share of losses FEfhEE (3.6)
Share of translation reserve LB EHE (0.7)
39.7

Amount due from the associate (note) FE U B N B FOE (B EE) 82.8

Note: Amount is unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed repayment terms. The directors of the Company do not expect to demand
for repayment from the associate within 12 months from the end of the reporting period.

Details of the associate are set out as below:

Place of incorporation

M ZRERRER REREEEENY - AQAEEEHTE
ERBE QA RNMEPEE QB 12188 WEERE -

BE N THNFERINT

Proportion of

and principal Issued and fully paid ownership interest
Name of company place of operation registered capital held by the Group  Principal activity
REBFTEHEEE
NEEE HEMALER R EEEX MR ESROTRAEEMEER R FEXH
2016
Qianhai CTF Mainland China RMB120,000,000 30% Operating a shopping
RIBRAKE ] (A dth AR # 120,000,000 7T complex in Mainland China

AP B A it A BB mh O
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REENTZ#ERE
FKEE N T FIE @

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s associate is set out below. BREAEEHE QRN EERBIESHIMT -
The summarised financial information below represents amounts shown in the T 51 87 75 5 R BT 22 I AR R T 1 W) AR 95 B B B
associate’s financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRSs. The associate is BRELARHEN B RRATNSEE o 2

21. Interest in an Associate/Amount due from an 21. ¥ —
Associate (continued) Yg—

accounted for using the equity method in these consolidated financial statements.

ERAURB AN SHAMBREAR -

2016
HK$ million

BEET

Current assets RENEE 254
Non-current assets FERENEE 216.3
Current liabilities RENEE (26.5)
Non-current liabilities FREEE (82.8)
Revenue e 20.0
Loss for the year KEEFE (11.9)
Other comprehensive expense for the year AFEEHMEEREX (2.4)
Total comprehensive expense for the year AEELHMAZERE (14.3)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the carrying amount LB ER B EEN RS M ERRERN —
REE N E 2R REEEAR

of the interest in an associate recognised in the consolidated financial statements:

2016

HKS million

HEBT

Net asset of an associate BE N EEFE 132.4
Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest in AEBRBEARZEEEERADL

an associate 30%

Carrying amount of the Group's interest in an associate ~ ZNEE @ RE#& N 8] 2 X IREE 39.7
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22. Interest in a Joint Venture

22, R—REBEFZHER

2016 2015
HK$ million HKS million
BEET HEET
Cost of unlisted investment FEREERAR 14.0 14.0
Share of losses FEihEE (14.0) (14.0)
Details of the joint venture are set out as below: BELENFBERIINT
Place of
incorporation Issued and
and principal fully paid Proportion of ownership interest and
Name of company place of operation ordinary shares voting power held by the Group Principal activity
= A B AL M B R 2RITR
NER A FEEF MR HRRRTER FEBEFSHEEREE R TR TEXEHB
2016 2015
Fook Ming Watch Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 50% 50% Sales of watches in
BREEERAT &8 1,000,000 7 T Mainland China
A R B A 3t (Y 8 £k

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group'’s joint venture is set out
below. The summarised financial information below represents amounts shown in the
joint venture's financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRSs. The joint venture
is accounted for using the equity method in these consolidated financial statements.

BRAEERECENMBERMEHIINT -
THHBERBERRZE E S FRE R
BRELENFEHRNWIBERRFIRNEEE - ZS
BEREUBHRERE SRS M BRRALR -

2016 2015

HK$ million HKS million

BHEET BEAT

Current assets RENEE 51.6 40.5
Non-current assets FREEE 8.3 95
Current liabilities RENEE (91.7) (55.4)
Revenue 2t 39.9 34.2
Loss for the year AKEEEE (26.0) (27.0)
Other comprehensive expense for the year AEEHMEERX (0.4) (0.2)
Total comprehensive expense for the year AEELHEBARERE (26.4) (27.2)
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22. Interest in a Joint Venture (continueq) 22. R—REELXRZHEZ®
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the carrying amount LB EERMEENGRSHBERRERN —
of the interest in a joint venture recognised in the consolidated financial statements: B ERIREERR
2016 2015
HK$ million HK$ million
BEET BEAT
Net liabilities of a joint venture SECEBETRE (31.8) (5.4)
Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest rEBREGEL¥ 2 HEERERADL
in a joint venture 50% 50%
Effect of unrecognised portion of share of e ELEBEREIBONTE
loss of a joint venture 15.9 2.7
Carrying amount of the Group's interest in AEEBREGEL ¥ EZREE

a joint venture - -

23. Loan Receivables 23. EWRER
Loan receivables represent loan to staff and are classified as current or non-current EWERIEETIER  EREGHAKIARZEE

assets based on contractual terms and taking into account the timing of recovery as EBEEEHANTWREEEMES BAREBRIER
expected by the management. As at 31 March 2016 and 2015, there are no past due BEE - N2016FR2015F3H31H &S
but not impaired loan receivables. All loan receivables were secured over certain BHERBENERER - 2HEVRERE U
properties in Hong Kong, the fair value of which exceeds the carrying amount of the BEBETYEERAR MEATFEIAKNEM

related loan on an individual basis. BEERWIRMEE -
All loan receivables are denominated in functional currency of the relevant FERKREREZEBREEERNNEEE
group entity. S -
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24. Deferred Taxation 24, BREHRE

The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets) recognised by the Group UTAREAEERBAFERAEECRRALIE

and movements thereon during the current and prior years: EEREEE (EE) URBEZE :
Withholding
Unrealised tax on
fair value undistributed
change of profits of
gold loans subsidiaries Unrealised Amortisation
in Mainland in Mainland profit on and
China China inventories  depreciation Tax losses Others Total
TEAES T E NS
BHZAER RQAEARDR #HEZ
ATEEE EFZENH KREREH W RITE BIARE Hit st

HKS million HKS million HKS million HKS million HKS million HKS million HKS million
BEBT "BEBT BEBT BEBT BHEBLT BHEBLT BHEBT

At 1 April 2014 2014548 1H 4.8 628.0 (703.1) - - - (70.3)
Arising from acquisition of Y& & i B 2 &)

subsidiaries EENIR - - - 6.0 (22.8) - (16.8)
Charge (credit) to profit 1Bk (FF A)i8%

or loss (note 13) (M#EE13) 44.4 (2163  (113.4) (27.1) 1.1 3.5 (307.8)
Utilised during the year ~ FR{E A = (8.2) = = = = (8.2)
Currency realignment = ik 0.1 0.7 (0.8) - - - -
At 31 March 2015 M2015F3A31H 49.3 404.2 (817.3) (21.1) (21.7) 3.5 (403.1)
(Credit) charge to profit (5 A) f1BRIER

or loss (note 13) (Mi5E13) (92.5) BT 406.6 (8.7) 3.1 6.0 388.2
Utilised during theyear ~ FR{E A = (148.7) = = = - (148.7)
Currency realignment ErE (0.4) (20.6) 245 = = = 3.5
At 31 March 2016 M2016F3H31H (43.6) 308.6 (386.2) (29.8) (18.6) 9.5 (160.1)

* Under the EIT Law of PRC, a 10% withholding tax is imposed on dividends declared to foreign investors in respect of profits * RIEREERTEBE - B200851 81 B8 AR HEAYH

earned by PRC subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. ;ﬁaé?ﬁﬂiﬂ@%ﬁu EIRMREESIRIRE - 9B 10% 2

Pursuant to approvals from the relevant PRC government obtained by certain subsidiaries of the Group and reassessment of ZRAKEE THEQAREHEERBUTHMEREGRES

dividend distribution plan, certain of these subsidiaries should be entitled to a withholding tax at the rate of 5% for dividend kst B B T 2% M D F PR HE DAE SR 2R 50 BUARK A

payments. Therefore, the amount included reversal of excessive withholding tax of HK$24.7 million in 2016 (2015: HK$279.2 BB ZEMB - Bt - R20165 » BEBESAAEMB2BE

million). NEEBR247BBHBT(2015F 2792 HBET) ©

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial reporting LUT B B #5325 R AT 4 MR EEBL TR AR Bk

purposes: e
2016 2015
HKS$ million HK$ million
BEET BHEBT
Deferred tax assets EERIEE = (478.2) (860.1)
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEAE 318.1 457.0
(160.1) (403.1)
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25. Inventories 25. 7§

2016 2015
HKS$ million HK$ million
BHEHET BAEBT

Raw materials for: SEUTERBOEME :
Gem-set jewellery hEEREE 4,757.6 6,705.6
Gold products BEEEM 415.7 1,040.5
Platinum/karat gold products e KEEM 111.0 174.6
5,284.3 7,920.7

Finished goods: BIRm
Gem-set jewellery KEEREE 13,000.2 14,061.3
Gold products EEEM 7,773.8 10,723.1
Platinum/karat gold products HE KEER 2,496.4 3,492.8
Watches iR 2,689.7 3,447.2
25,960.1 31,7244
Packing materials BEYH 132.1 152.5
31,376.5 39,797.6
. =k
26. Trade and Other Receivables 26. ESRHEMEBWRIE

2016 2015
HK$ million HK$ million
BEET BEET
Trade receivables Z 5 EWEIE 2,287.6 3,536.5
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts B REREE (19.5) =
2,268.1 3,536.5
Prepayments to suppliers &) {4 FE R FE A FRIE 600.2 854.8
Deposits Be 546.9 532.1
Land use rights charged within one year — AR T 5 14.5 15.3
Other tax recoverables H b A 2 Y B 18 998.0 719.0
Others Hith 177.5 127.7
4,605.2 5,785.4
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26. Trade and Other Receivables (continued)

As at 31 March 2016, trade receivables of HK$84.7 million and HK$23.9 million (2015:
HK$103.1 million and HK$59.3 million) are due from entities in which certain directors
of the Company, who are also shareholders of the Company, have beneficial interests
in both the Company and those entities, and non-controlling shareholders of the
subsidiaries, respectively.

The Group's sales to retail customers are mainly on cash basis. Sales to certain customers

are on credit with credit period up to 6 months. For sales through concessionaire stores,
the Group usually allow 30 days credit period to these receivables.

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables presented based on the invoice

26. B REMEWIRIEA@®

M20165F3A31H ESEKANIBEATHE B
TR2ZIBAEBT(Q05F 131 BEBTR
503EBEBT)SRERERAARZEER
SRENAAAETES (FALDARR) 2
BREURHEBARAFEERER

FEEHTERETNHENR SR T MOHE
TREENHEEMURELX - FEMEZ A
A -BEENEEMNS  AEE-RAZERE
WERIESA T30 HNEEHE -

ATAREREAMLS  RESHRNES
8%

dates at the end of the reporting period, which approximates to the respective EWRIBNIRE 2 FEHHESEEzWGRE
revenue recognition dates: RAHEE

2016 2015
HK$ million HKS million
BHEBT HEBT
0 to 30 days 0£30H 1,738.2 3,149.7
31 to 90 days 31290H 375.5 285.0
91 to 180 days 91£ 180 H 118.6 62.3
Over 180 days 180 HEA £ 35.8 39.5
2,268.1 3,536.5

In determining the recoverability of the trade receivables, the Group monitors change
in the credit quality of the trade receivables since the credit was granted and up to the
reporting date. The directors of the Company considered that the trade receivables
that are neither past due nor impaired to be of a good credit quality.

As at 31 March 2016, included in the trade receivable balances are receivables of
HK$87.7 million (2015: HK$411.8 million) carrying a variable interest rate ranging from
6.4% 1o 7.4% (2015: 7.4% to 8.4%) per annum, and HK$241.0 million (2015: nil) carrying
a fixed interest rate of 6.4% to 7.4% per annum.

Also, as at 31 March 2016, included in the trade receivable balances are trade
receivables with aggregate carrying amount of HK$154.4 million (2015: HK$101.8
million) which are past due at the reporting date for which the Group has not provided
for impairment loss as there has not been a significant change in the credit quality and
amounts are still considered recoverable based on historical experience. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances.

REETEZRUGENTREREZEER  AEE
ERARHGEEREEREAEHES BRI
HEEEZENEH - ARRESR A BEF5E
WREBLRBET RRE - FEERRY -

M2016F3A310 T ABZERREBLA RS
Kt EEWFIES B B87.7BE BT (20155 ¢
4118BEBIT)R241.08BHB (20155 1 ) »
D RHRN F 6.4% Z 7.4% (2015 5F © 7.4% Z 8.4%)
HIZ B R RN F 6.4% 2 7.4% B E & & 7 =
FTE -

BEAh o A2016F3 8318 @ 5T AE S ERFE
HERRARBRE AN ABMNWARMEA 15448
BETNWE S EIWRIE(2015F : 101.8 B & &
) HREEBEZUELEEAEE HRER
ALBRARBZEREATWE  HAEEILE
FIRBEEBRE AEELRRZEERE
BEMIEHR o
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26. Trade and Other Receivables (continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2016, an allowance for doubtful debt of HK$19.5
million is recognised based on estimated irrecoverable amounts determined by
reference to past default experience of the counterparty and an analysis of the

counterparty’s current financial positions.

Ageing of trade receivables, based on the invoice date, which

26. E5 RHEMEWIIE@

HZE2016F3831BLFE - 195BEBTH
RREFEDNERSZH I BAENLCREHY
T5 E A EE AR R B 5 A T EE R AR s R AT U =

LR o

RFEZZAHEAYPERBRENESE

are past due but not impaired U TR IR B BR e

2016 2015
HK$ million HK$ million
BB BEET
91 to 180 days 91Z 180 B 118.6 62.3
Over 180 days 180 HA £ 35.8 39.5
154.4 101.8

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts REREHZEE
2016 2015
HK$ million HK$ million
BB BEET
At 1 April B4R H = =
Impairment losses recognised EERBEEE 19.5 -
At 31 March MA3A31H 19.5 -
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27. Convertible Bonds

During the year ended 31 March 2012, the Group invested in an unlisted convertible
bonds with principal amount of Australian Dollar (“AUS") $3,000,000, bearing interest
at 8.0% per annum and an original maturity date of 31 December 2014, issued by a
private entity (the “Issuer”) which is principally engaged in agriculture and wholesale
of pearls in Australia. The convertible bond was renewed during the year ended 31
March 2015 and the coupon interest was changed to 7.0% per annum with a maturity
date of 31 December 2016 (the “Maturity Date”). The Group is entitled at any time
after the date of issue up to the Maturity Date to redeem the convertible notes in cash
or pearls or combination of both to the value of the principal amount outstanding or
convert the convertible notes into ordinary shares of the Issuer. The convertible notes
comprised debt component and embedded derivatives being the conversion option
and the Group'’s early redemption option. Such convertible bonds are designated as at
fair value through profit or loss and in the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
fair value of the convertible notes is substantially the same as the carrying amount.

28. Pledged Bank Deposits/Bank Balances and Cash

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the bank deposits carry interest at the
prevailing market rate of about 0.01% to 7.1% (2015: 0.01% to 6.1%) per annum.

As at 31 March 2016, the Group'’s cash and cash equivalents denominated in RMB were
HK$7,891.3 million (2015: HK$6,031.9 million). The RMB is not freely convertible into
other currencies, however, under the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations in
Mainland China and the Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies
through authorised banks to conduct business in foreign currency.

Included in bank balances and cash are the following amounts denominated in
currencies other than the functional currency of the relevant group entities:

27. Al RiRESH

BZE2012F38318LFE  AEERE—E
LA HIRES 0 NEe$%553,000,000027T
FHRIZE8.0%  RHEIHAA2014F 128318 >
HEZERMNREDKRBZERBMBNAEEE
T#TADBT  ARBEFREZE 201553
B3 ALFEEY ZFEFANEEER7.0%
FHAE B20165F 12 31 H - REBAERENRET
HEZZHAEMRERURERDKRIMER
EHBEEHEERTARES REELASLHE
REHEBRASBTANSER I RREEES
FEBERORBAXNGTEIR  BEBRERK
SEZREEEE - ZUABREFEEARD
FEGAER MAQARAESRE TRBRE
HH A FEHEREEABER °

28. SIRMBITHENRITER
RBEE

HZE2016F383MALFE  ROERERER
HIEERENF0.01%ZE 7.1% (2015 F : M F
0.01% E6.1%) 5T & ©

R2016F3 8310 AEERAREIIENR
ERBELSEEYWH78913EE B T (20155F :
6031.9HEBBT) ARBAETRATEBLIEAR
thE® A RERPEARBWNFEIIEE
BREKEE SERTESERE  ~5H
BEZBEITRITETIEELE  BARKR
BEINE o

SRARTEBRAESNTERTIREHEEY
(EFFEREEERNINEEY) FIERNFE :

2016 2015

HK$ million HK$ million

HHEBT BEBT

RMB AR® 536.3 1,084.3
us$ Ep 334.9 477.1
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29. Trade and Other Payables

29. B 5 RHEMETIE

2016 2015

HK$ million HKS million

BHEET EF-5:: 54

Trade payables B S ENRIE 399.7 840.4
Deposits received from franchisees/customers BinEr EERWENRSE 2,503.7 1,652.5
Other tax payables Hith S FiE 268.5 306.4
Accruals EstEH 373.6 390.9
Accrued staff costs EstE TR 360.1 423.0
Interest payables BRI 31.6 59.5
Others Hith 398.9 325.2
4,336.1 3,997.9

Deposits received from franchisees/customers mainly represent prepayments made by

franchisees in Mainland China for jewellery products. The amounts are unsecured and

interest-free.

The Group normally receives credit terms of 7 to 180 days from its suppliers. The

following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented based on the invoice date at

the end of each reporting period:

BN, R WA ES T Z P E R
EEBEREERXNZANYRE - ZFRAS
BIEAREE

FEE-REEHEERENEERANF7A
Z180 AFE - LT ARBREABNEHRED
RE 5 BN RIBHRE DT

2016 2015

HKS$ million HK$ million

BEET HEBT

0 to 30 days 0£30H 305.8 631.3
31 to 90 days 31Z90H 12.0 36.7
91 to 180 days 91Z180H 4.5 130.7
Over 180 days 180 HEL E 77.4 41.7
399.7 840.4
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30. Amounts Due to Non-Controlling Shareholders 30. FEFT Bt/ 2~ B IE4E B BR 3R

of Subsidiaries MIE
The balances are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. HEHAERE  RERRERTFEE-
. = 4% Eh
31. Bank Borrowings 31. |RITEX
2016 2015
HK$ million HKS million
BEET BEAT
Unsecured bank loans EILIFRITER 7,920.0 6,750.6
The carrying amounts of the above borrowings LA EE & Z BREEE T HIHREE :
are repayable*:
Within one year —FR 7,320.0 6,750.6
More than two years, but not exceeding five years Fi&E LA £ - BFBBRHE 600.0 =
7,920.0 6,750.6
Less: Amounts due within one year shown under i : RBIEEET Fir— FRZHWFE
current liabilities (7,320.0) (6,750.6)
Amount shown under non-current liabilities FREBEBET FrRACE 600.0 =
i The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan agreements. * ZERIE I USSR EHT 2R A P AMKE o

The bank borrowings carry variable interest rates ranged from 0.7% to 0.8% over Hong RITERBRIHEFNRITE  ERERAEFEBE

Kong Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR”) per annum (2015: ranged from 0.7% to 0.8% TREFE(EERTEERE D MANF0.7%

over HIBOR per annum or 90% to 92% of The Peoples’ Bank of China Standard Loan Z0.8% (20155 : FRRAFBIRITEEFEM

Interest Rate). NF07%E08%HHPEARRITEREER =
90% & 92%) °

As at 31 March 2016, the range of interest rates on the bank borrowings were 0.9% to A2016E3831H BEBRTERNERNZEN
1.0% (2015: 0.9% to 5.2%) per annum. F0.9% Z 1.0% (2015 5 : 0.9% & 5.2%) °

All bank borrowings are denominated in functional currency of relevant group entities. AR ITESR R EEEEER NI S ETIE -
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32. Gold Loans

The amounts represent unsecured borrowings from banks and the amounts payable
are pegged with gold prices.

As at 31 March 2016, the gold loans carry fixed interest rates of 1.2% to 2.7% (2015: 1.2%
to 3.2%) per annum, with original maturity of 1 to 4 months (2015: 2 to 6 months) from
date of inception.

Gold loans were borrowed to reduce the impact of fluctuations in gold prices on gold
inventories. Gold loans were designated as financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss.

Included in gold loans are the following amounts denominated in currencies other
than functional currency of the relevant group entities:

32. EEfEE

ZREDEERRERTEN  MENTIERER
EERE -

M2016F3A31H  ESEEREFNR12%9E
2.7% (2015 5 © FERIZ1.2% F 3.2%) B9 E E FI =
fTE - REBAARE AR 1 E4EA (20155
2Z6fER) °

c

ERESHEEENERNBEESFE
REBNEE BESEEREEAR
BENERMEE -

ZELE

FEIA

S b

SARSEERTIRARER (LFEREE
BRNTEEER) JIENFIE

2016 2015
HKS$ million HK$ million
EEET HEBT
uss$ =TT 3,184.0 3,639.8
33. Share Capital 33. |BA&
2016 and 2015
2016 F K% 2015 F
HK$ million
HEBT
Authorised: EE
50,000,000,000 ordinary share of HK$1 each 50,000,000,000 R EREE 1 BT 2 EBR 50,000.0
Issued and fully paid: ERITRAR :
10,000,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$1 each 10,000,000,000 f& F AR FI1E 1 8 T 2 E B AR 10,000.0

There were no change in the Company’s authorised, issued and fully paid capital in
both years.
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34. Acquisition of Subsidiaries

During the year ended 31 March 2015, for the purpose of business expansion, the

Group had acquired controlling equity interests of the following entities, using

acquisition method:

(a)

In August 2014, a subsidiary of the Group acquired 100% equity interest in Hearts
On Fire, a company engaged in sales of premium diamond jewelleries, from
independent third parties. The cash consideration was finalised at an amount
of approximately HK$1,187.7 million. The primary reason for the acquisition is
to introduce an exclusive and unique premium luxury diamond jewellery line
to the Group's existing diversified product offering, particularly in the Group’s

retail network.

34. WEEMIB A E)

REBZ2015F3831BLLEE BRAER
REBE LN EE AT BB AR IRHE -

(@ 12014588  AEE—FRMEBLARMRE
M 55 = 5 UL B Hearts On Fire (1= 5 4 5E
HHEEN AR WEIRE - B2 REE
BHA11877EEBT - WEEXTERAR
SEREZENERES FRI—RAE
EEERANERAS)FTHEE—E=-N
SR EEER -

Details of consideration of the acquisition are as follows: W REFBWT :
HKS million
BHEBT
Consideration satisfied by cash DBREXHRE 1,187.7

Acquisition-related costs amounting to HK$22.5 million were excluded from the
consideration transferred and were recognised as an expense during the year
ended 31 March 2015, within the other expenses line item in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Assets acquired and liabilities assumed recognised at the date of acquisition
were as follows:

WA R AR 225 BB BT et AFTEEN
RE MREBZE205F3A3MBLFEERS
X IAGEEaREMMEEKERNEA
BXIER -

REBRBEIANCUWEEERIAEEENT ¢

HKS$ million

E-5:54

Property, plant and equipment ME - HEKR 82.2
Other intangible assets Hin\p & 421.2
Inventories FE 343.7
Trade and other receivables B 5 Rk HAERFRIE 273.9
Trade and other payables g5 REMENRIE (191.1)
929.9
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34. Acquisition of Subsidiaries (continued)

(a)

34, WEEHE ARl @

The goodwill arose in the acquisition of Hearts On Fire included amounts in
relation to the benefit of expected synergies, revenue growth, future market
development and the assembled workforce of Hearts On Fire. Both the goodwill
and other intangible assets are expected to be deductible for income tax
purpose.

Revenue and loss attributable to the acquisition during the year are HK$400.8
million and HK$32.3 million, respectively. Had the above acquisition completed
on 1 April 2014, total group revenue and profit for the year ended 31 March
2015 would have been HK$64,612.2 million and HK$5,536.4 million, respectively.
The pro-forma information is for illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily
an indication of revenue and results of operations of the Group that actually
would have been achieved had the above acquisition been completed on 1
April 2014, respectively, nor is it intended to be a projection of future results.

(b)  In July 2014, a subsidiary of the Group acquired 100% property interests in
World Peace Centre, an industrial building in Kwai Chung, Hong Kong through
the acquisition of 100% equity interest in Eagle Planet Limited and Fortune
Ruby Limited. The property acquired was classified as investment properties
by the acquiree companies and were at the time of acquisition, rented to
the Group’s companies and other lessees. The acquisition is accounted for as
purchase of assets at a cash consideration of HK$860.5 million from a related
party, being an entity in which certain directors of the Company have beneficial
interests. At date of acquisition, the Group recognised investment properties of
HK$549.1 million and property, plant and equipment of HK$300.9 million based
on the floor areas leased out to other lessees and floor areas occupied by the
Group, respectively.
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(continued) @ (&
Goodwill arising on acquisition WEELEESE
HKS million
HEBT
Consideration transferred EEAE 1,187.7
Less: Fair values of identifiable net assets acquired B FTUR BB Y T i B B E R E A A (929.9)
Goodwill arising on acquisition HNEBEENEE 257.8
Analysis of net outflow of cash and cash equivalentsin  WEHEBARELNRERREEEY
connection with the acquisition of subsidiaries: R
Cash and cash equivalent balances acquired IR S RESSEME =
Less: Cash considerations paid B EXfHBRESNE (1,187.7)
(1,187.7)

U7 B8 Hearts On Fire E 4 N 2B FFB IR E X
@ WRIE R« B &5 %R K Hearts On Fire
ETIWHEBELE BEREGEFEEEDRY
EREEHR

RER  WIBEENEXBRERS %4008
BEBITKR323BEE T - il LK ER 2014
FA4R 1 HER > BE2015F3831HIEFEWN
SEBREXER D RIER46122BEBT
KR55364E BB BEEREHRSE K&
REM EWEBEIER 2014F 4 A1 B EREEA
SETHSHNEREXBERECEXEE  BHEE
ZERI AL IFARREENTER o

(b) FE2014F78  AEE-XMBRREB
Uiz B Eagle Planet Limited % Fortune Ruby Limited
20 B% A 1 WL B tH R b (U R B BB
W—RIERE) NI ERER ° FTIR
BI ARSI EIIEREY X
WEEEREFASEN D B R E MR
A UIRENRE8605 A BB ILEEES
(AR RETESHEZRRENER)
BA RBEEENSIAR - RKEAR
B AREEENEAETEMABEANESE
HEEAGAEANEEEBERIARE
YIFES0 BEBLEYE  RERRE
3009 EHBHETT °



35. Operating Lease Commitments 35. REHERIE

The Group as lessee AEBEREEAN
At the end of each reporting period, the Group was committed to make the following REREHR > AEBEARBSHRE T HEH
future minimum lease payments which represent lease payments of its rented WEEHER T EBRREELERRERES
premises, under non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows: AR (RFBAEYENES) A -
2016 2015
HK$ million HKS million
BEET HEBLT
Within one year —FR 1,466.4 1,467.5
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_ZFRAF(BEERME) 1,435.5 1,830.3
Over five years HELUE 472.6 485.0
3,374.5 3,782.8

Included in above are commitments to entities in which certain directors* of the STALNFBOAARE TES EEIS 0 E

Company have beneficial interests: B ZAE

2016 2015
HK$ million HKS million
BEET BEBT
Within one year —F R 164.6 1324
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_ZFRF(BEERME) 163.4 194.5
Over five years HFELE 380.3 408.9
708.3 735.8

* The directors also have beneficial interests in the Company. a BEENRELAARNZRME

There are certain lease arrangements for rented premises, according to which the RIBETABEVENHEEZY  XEEREX
Group is committed to pay minimum guaranteed amounts and additional monthly NEREEREERRESAHEKTEENS
payments determined based on monthly sales levels. BEEIMIRR
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35. Operating Lease Commitments (continued)

The Group as lessee (Continued)

There are concessionaire arrangements for concessionaire stores according to which
the Group is committed to pay either minimum guaranteed amounts or concessionaire
fees that are based on prescribed rates of corresponding sales depending on product
categories, whichever is higher. The minimum guaranteed amounts are not material and
the concessionaire fees paid during the year were all determined based on sales level.

Majority of leases with fixed rentals and concessionaire arrangement are negotiated
for terms ranging from 1 year to 3 years.

The Group as lessor

Property rental income earned during the year was HK$18.0 million (2015: HK$14.5
million). All of the Group's investment properties are held for rental purposes. All of the
properties held have committed tenants for the next 1 to 3 years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted with tenants for the
following future minimum lease payments:

35, REHERE@®

AEBEARBAN @
AEEREEZEEEZH Bt KEEE
ERTERERRAEHEHEEEZEI RS
HHRERESRBEIR(UBESERE) - &
BERSBFIFRER  NEEIAFNWEIHEE
DRIVIRIBHEKTEE -

ABBRNRSERENERBEEE B
—FE=ERELTE -

AEBEAHBAAN
RERFRMZAEHASKRABIBOEEB T
(20155 1 145 BEER) - XREEREREME
BEFEEHE - IFEZ2HMERRKR—ZE=
FHYREEAEHREZERF -

SR B - A< g2 W BLA 5 ATT A 40 10 K R A
ERSHROT

2016 2015
HK$ million HK$ million
BHEHET BEET
Within one year —F R 8.6 12.8
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EZFRFE(BEEREME) 12.9 19.4
21.5 32.2
36. Capital Commitments 36. EAKIE
2016 2015
HKS$ million HKS million
BHEHET BEBT
Capital expenditure contracted but not provided FLUEEYIZE - ERFZECTHER
for in respect of the acquisition of property, BENERES
plant and equipment 412.7 403.0
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37. Retirement Benefits Obligations

Defined contribution scheme

The Group participates in defined contribution schemes which are registered under
the Hong Kong Occupational Retirement Scheme Ordinance (the “ORSO” Scheme)
and a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) established under the
Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Ordinance in December 2000. The assets of
the schemes are held separately from those of the Group, in funds under the control
of independent trustees. Employees who were members of the ORSO Scheme prior
to the establishment of the MPF Scheme were offered a choice of staying within the
ORSO Scheme or switching to the MPF Scheme, whereas all new employees joining
the Group on or after 1 December 2000 are required to join the MPF Scheme.

The retirement benefit cost charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income represents contributions payable to the funds by the
Group at rates specified in the rules of the schemes. Where there are employees who
leave the ORSO Scheme prior to vesting fully in the contributions, the contributions
payable by the Group are reduced by the amount of forfeited contributions.

For members of the MPF Scheme, the Group contributes 5% of relevant payroll costs
to the MPF Scheme, which contribution is matched by the employee. The maximum
monthly amount of contribution is limited to HK$1,000 per employee, which was
revised to HK$1,250 with effect from 1 June 2012 and further revised to HK$1,500 with
effect from 1 June 2014.

The eligible employees of the Company’s subsidiaries in Mainland China and Macau
are members of pension schemes operated by local government of Mainland China
and the Macau government, respectively. The subsidiaries in Mainland China are
required to contribute a certain percentage of the relevant cost of the payroll of these
employees to the pension schemes to fund the benefits. The subsidiary in Macau is
required to pay a monthly fixed contribution to the retirement benefits schemes to
fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement
benefit schemes is to make the required contribution under the schemes.

37. BRIREFIKIE

EREEEE

REBEE S HERE S BB ER NG SR G M
K E BB B (B R ET BURGIEH B )) R
2000 12 ARIEF BRI ABSFGI KL
RrasltE AR E((RBELTE D - ZE5
BEEHASENEEIHERE  ABELSTE
AEZHNESEE - ARRIBESTEHCE
SRR R EURGIGT BINE S R IBEE
B ABE RN ENRGI BIREARESHE
MATER2000F 1241 BRZEMAREER
FESRIZASMERSE -

BARAESERHE M2 KSR RERAET
BAEAREBRAERUEENLRESTE
THHA - HEER2HURBEBAIR BB
BT ERGIET S NEBEBNHKEIZER
W BERRHRL o

HMRBEETANKENS AREEMEES
sTEIRAERE TE R A S% R - ZEHEREE
ENHRE-—H BAMRNBSEEARABNL
81,0008 H2012F6 A1 AREETH
125058 7T ° B2014F6 A1 HRE—FEIA
1,500 & T ©

AAFFERBRAMKELTDNSERES
AHEAGE BT RAMBFEENRKS
SRR E - E R RORPI KB QB RS B
FREEHFSLERANETEDLRRER
REFTERREES A RRKENTENERE
TR ERBAER - AREEBERAKEFF
LI —HEDRIBEZ ST EMEL I AMK -
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37. Retirement Benefits Obligations (continued)

Defined benefit scheme

Certain subsidiaries of the Company provide defined pension benefits to the
employees, who joined to these subsidiaries before 1995. The amount payable is
dependent on the employees’ final salary and years of services. The Group does not set
aside any assets to fund such obligations.

Under the scheme, the employees are entitled to a pension between 25% and 40%
of final salary for each year of pensionable service at an age of 65. No other post-
retirement benefits are provided. The most recent actuarial valuations of the present
value of the defined benefit obligations were carried out in March 2016 by Roma
Appraisals Limited (“Roma”), an independent qualified professional valuer, using the
projected unit credit method. The principal place of business of Roma is Unit 3806, 38/F,
China Resources Building, 26 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. The assumptions
which have the most significant effect on the results of the valuation are discount rate,
retirement age, turnover rate, mortality rate and the rate of increase in salaries.

The main actuarial assumptions used were as follows:

37. BIARBEFIRE @

EFEEMETE

RN E)E THIE DB @R 1995 5 510 A Z 5 K
BAANESRMEFERAEEF - BARKIA
BAREBEEGRENFERBRBESR - AEBEL
BEFENEEAZNBRAE -

REZTE BEERFEREGSHREREEREMET
BRAESHBBENFREFL25%E40% =
BENRE - AEEWEIBHEMBRERER o
BN EREFAERBERBEMEBEIINA2016F
3HHBYEERMMEMBSEETEERAR
(EE)FRARTENET EAET BENE
BRI AT BB EBIE 26REBAES
3806 E c HIHEARRAESENBRERIIUR
R ENER BAEE - RTERFSHFIE -

FRERNEERERRMT ¢

2016 2015
Discount rate BEIE = 1.2% 1.6%
Expected rate of salary increase FEHRE gt = 2.5% 3.0%
Turnover rate BE=x 0% 0%

Amounts recognised in comprehensive income in respect of the defined benefit
scheme are as follows:

PEBBFFEREE W EEANRIBNOT ¢

2016 2015
HKS million HK$ million
BEBT BEAT
Current service cost 35 B AR A% AR AR 3.9 4.1
Interest on obligation AENFE 2.8 35
Components of defined benefits recognised in ~ FAE 252 1) E X818 FIZR 15
profit or loss 6.7 7.6
Remeasurement on defined benefit scheme REME2E NSRRI EEEAMETE
recognised in other comprehensive income: BHETE
Actuarial loss arising from changes in B RR VS FTEENBEER
financial assumptions 2.1 19.0
Total Fabc 8.8 26.6
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37. Retirement Benefits Obligations (continued)

Defined benefit scheme (continued)

The current services cost and interest on obligation for the year ended 31 March
2016 and 2015 are included in “selling and distribution costs” and “general and
administrative expenses” depending on the respective employee’s function.

The remeasurement of the defined benefit scheme for the year ended 31 March 2016
and 2015 is included in other comprehensive income.

Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligations are as follows:

37. BAREFIRE @

EEEAE @

HZE2016F K 2015F3 831 HIEFEEMWRER
BRARAENF SRS BNESREETTA [
ERDHEAARI R —RRTEHBAS1E -

HZE2016F K 2015F3 831 HIEFEMNEREE

MEFF BEHFEF AR b2 E NS -

ERBEANALREZBNOT

2016 2015
HKS$ million HK$ million

BEREET BEAT

At 1 April n4aB1H 2433 225.0
Service costs PR 7% A%, A< 3.9 4.1
Interest costs FE RS 2.8 3.5
Actuarial loss RBEEE 2.1 19.0

Benefits paid 2XIEA (8.7) (83)
At 31 March M3B31H 243.4 2433
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38. Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to a resolution which were passed on 17 November 2011, the Company
adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) for the purpose of
attracting skilled and experienced personnel, to incentivise them to remain with the
Group and to motivate them to strive for the future development and expansion
of the Group by providing them with the opportunity to acquire equity interests in
the Company. Under the Share Option Scheme, the directors of the Company may
grant options to directors (including executive directors, non-executive directors
and independent non-executive directors), the directors of the subsidiaries and the
employees of the Group and any other persons (including consultants or advisers) who
the directors of the Company consider, in its absolute discretion, have contributed or
will contribute to the Group (the “Participants”).

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years
commencing on 17 November 2011. An offer of the grant of an option shall be made
to a Participant by a notice of grant requiring the Participant to undertake to hold the
option on the terms on which it is to be granted (which may include a minimum period
for which the option must be held before it can be exercised and a performance target
that must be reached before the option can be exercised in whole or in part) and to be
bound by the terms of the Share Option Scheme. An offer of the grant of an option is
deemed to be accepted by the Participant (the “Grantee”) when the Company receives
from the Grantee the duplicate notice of grant duly signed by the Grantee. An offer
may be accepted or deemed to have been accepted in respect of less than the number
of shares in respect of which it is offered, provided that it is accepted in respect of a
board lot or an integral multiple thereof. No amount is payable by the Grantee upon
acceptance of an offer of an option. The offer shall remain open for acceptance for
such time to be determined by the directors of the Company, provided that no such
offer shall be open for acceptance after the expiry of the Share Option Scheme or after
the termination of the Share Option Scheme in accordance with its terms or after the
Participant to whom the offer is made has ceased to be a Participant. To the extent
that the offer is not accepted within the time period and in the manner specified in the
offer, the offer will be deemed to have been irrevocably declined.

The exercise price shall be determined by the directors of the Company, and shall not
be less than the higher of (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of
grant, (ii) the average closing price of the shares for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s share on the
date of grant.

During the year ended 31 March 2016 and 2015, no such share options were granted
nor exercised by the Company.
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38. BERESTE
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39. Related Party Transactions

(i)

Other than the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in the
consolidated financial statements, the Group had entered into the following

related party transactions during the year:

Relationship
BfR

Nature of transactions

39.
(i)

B TR 5

BREESMBRRAAMBTRENZTS R
EERN 0 REBERFRFT LT HIEEE S

25

2016
HK$ million
BEBT

2015
HK$ million
BHEET

Entities in which certain directors*
of the Company have beneficial interests

AARNETES"HEZRENER

Entities in which a director*
of the Company has significant influence

RRB-—EESAEAFENER
Non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries

BB A B SFERAR R

Entities in which a close family
member of certain directors*
of the Company has control
RABETESHNARIBRE
BEHEEHENER

Advertising expenses

EERX

Concessionaire fees in department

stores
BERAREED R
Rental expenses

HEMX

Purchase of goods and coupons
and commission expenses

BEERMRESURAEHASX

Sales of goods and coupons

HEEmRES

Purchases of land and buildings

BELTHRET

Rental income

HEWA

Acquisition of patents

W =R

Purchase of equipment

BERE

Licence fee

REER

Acquisition of subsidiaries
(note 34(b))

W B Bt e 2 = (Bt 34(b))

Concessionaire fees in

department stores
ERBEEDK

Concessionaire fees in

department stores
BERAREEDR
Franchise sales
INERsHE

Engineering services fee

TRER%E

Rental expenses

HEHX

10.7

74.0

198.4

0.7

41.0

10.9

51.7

10.5

293.7

28.6

21.6

11.2

90.6

194.6

37.1

53.6

66.0

7.2

860.5

19.1

607.5

9.5

216
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39. Related Party Transactions (continued)

* The directors also have beneficial interests in the Company.

o The directors lost significant influence over the related party during the year ended 31 March 2016.

Apart from the aforementioned transactions, no other significant transactions,
arrangements and contracts to which the Company was a party and in which

a director of the Company had, directly or indirectly, a material interest at any

time during the year.

(i)  Remuneration paid for key management personnel includes the directors and

the chief executives of the Company as disclosed in note 12.

The remuneration of the directors and the chief executives of the Company is
determined by the remuneration committee having regard to the performance

of individuals and market trends.

40. Principal Subsidiaries of the Company

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at the end of the reporting period are

set out below:

Place and date of
incorporation/

Issued and

fully paid

share capital/
registered capital/

39. BBt ARX S @

* ESTHAERRANZ 5 -

0 EBERBE2016F3 31 BLLFEAEHABAINE

R -

Br B S50 - ARD R RAFE R
B> WEFTHMANREREATEE
FEEEZREANBZZERRS » ZHR

R e

(i) XNFETEEBAENHMESBERE2

KENEAAREZERGESTHRALS -

KAREERBESTHRAENMESREH
FHEESRBERALHRERTSIB

BMEE °

40. FRAREEWBAA

THARBERRARDATEWB LR 2FHE

Proportion of
ownership interest

Name of subsidiaries establishment quota capital held by the Company Principal activities
BRITREERA
M A B &7 &M B SE, B L B R B A HMEA REAEA ARG AR ) TEER
2016 2015
Highrise Achiever Limited* BVI Share 100% 100% Investment holding
ERBERAT* 20 June 2011 US$1 REZER
KBERRES R
2011 6H208 1%
Bentley Trading Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100% 100% Trading of diamond
BHHESZEBRAT 10 January 2008 HK$10,000 BARES
=B RN
20081 A 10H 10,000 78 7T
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100% 100% Sales of jewellery
Company Limited 6 March 1961 HK$350,000,000 products
BAREHREESTHERAR =B EERA REEMFEE
196153 H6H 350,000,000 & 7T
CTF Diamond Trading Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100% 100%  Procurement of
Company Limited 19 September 2003 HK$100 diamond
AREEAEZERAR =E EERA AR
200359 A 19H 10038 7T
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40. Principal Subsidiaries of the Company (continued)

Place and date of
incorporation/

Issued and

fully paid

share capital/
registered capital/

40. KRR FEMB LA @

Proportion of
ownership interest

Name of subsidiaries establishment quota capital held by the Company Principal activities
ERITRYEBRE
) PN EE MRS BRI EE R A A HMERTEAER 74> B BT A4 9 7 HE A 25 b 451 TEEH
2016 2015
CTF Watch (HK) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary share 100% 100%  Sales of watches
BXREES (FB)EMRAE 7 February 2011 HKS$1 EERIHE
N EBRA
20115 2A7H 18T
Techni Development Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100% 100%  Procurement of
Investment Limited 26 May 2005 HK$5,000,000 gemstones, sales of
EFNERRERRAA BB EERA jewellery products
20055 H 26 H 5,000,000 7& 7T and investment
holding
RBER - -KBEEM
HEURREZER
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Macau Quota capital 100% 100%  Sales of jewellery
and Watch Company 17 March 2009 MOP5,000,000 products
(Macau) Limited ! [iREER- 2N HEEMEE
BRIETRE EER ORFT) 20093 H17H 5,000,000 P9 5T
BRAF
Hearts On Fire The United States Capital 100% 100%  Sales of jewellery
of America US$74,468,737 products
14 May 2001 =N KEERHEE
ESE 74,468,737 =TT
200158141
Beijing Chow Tai Fook PRC" Registered 100% 100%  Sales of jewellery
Jewellery Company Limited 13 November 2006 capital products and
tRZEARBHRESITERIT FE" US$30,000,000 provision of services
2006511 A 13 H AR to franchisees
30,000,000 % 7T KREEMEER
RARTE T INEER
Chongging Chow Tai Fook PRC* Registered 80% 80%  Sales of watches
Watch Marketing 25 December 2008 capital BRI E
Company Limited HRE RMB10,000,000
EERAXBERHEERRLRA 20085F 128 25H AfEAR
A B 10,000,000 7T
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40. Principal Subsidiaries of the Company (continued 40. ARAETEMB LR @

Place and date of
incorporation/

Issued and

fully paid

share capital/
registered capital/

Proportion of
ownership interest

Name of subsidiaries establishment quota capital held by the Company Principal activities
ERITRHYERES
B8 A B & 78 =AM B 3L, 5% 37 it B R B HME A EEE A 74> B B A4 9 7 HE 4 25 bt 451 TEEH
2016 2015
Chongging Flamingo Watches ~ PRC* Registered 80% 80%  Sales of watches
Company Limited 25 December 2008 capital EERIHE
EEEHSERERAR R RMB1,000,000
2008512 A 25H AfEA
AR 1,000,000 7T
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery PRC" Registered 100% 100%  Sales of jewellery
(Chongging) Company 23 December 2008 capital products and
Limited FRE] US$30,000,000 provision of services
BREHREST(EE) 2008% 12 A 23 H FEMER to franchisees
HRAT 30,000,000 % 7T KEEMEER
REREE T INERE
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery PRC~ Registered 100% 100%  Sales of jewellery
(Shenyang) Company Limited 2 January 2014 capital products and
BREHREST (BE) e~ RMB20,000,000 provision of services
BIRAT 20141 H2H FEMER to franchisees
A R ¥ 20,000,000 T KEEMBEER
RERE T INEE
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery PRC" Registered 100% 100% Manufacturing and
(Shenzhen) Company 2 April 2002 capital sales of jewellery
Limited FRE US$100,000,000 products
BREHREL1T ORI 20024 A28 HERER HEEREEREE
BRAHE 100,000,000 3 7T
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery PRC" Registered 100% 100%  Sales of jewellery
(Suzhou) Company Limited 11 January 2006 capital products and
BAREBHREST (BFM) FREg US$30,000,000 provision of services
BIRAF 200651 B 118 HEER to franchisees
30,000,000 % 7T KEEmBEER
RERE T NED
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery PRC" Registered 100% 100%  Sales of jewellery
(Wuhan) Company Limited 29 January 2008 capital products and
BREHREST(HE) FRE US$30,000,000 provision of services
BIRAF 200851 H29H HEEAR to franchisees
30,000,000 % 7T KREERBEER
R T INEER
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40. Principal Subsidiaries of the Company (continued)

Place and date of
incorporation/

Issued and

fully paid

share capital/
registered capital/

40. KRR FEMB LA @

Proportion of
ownership interest

Name of subsidiaries establishment quota capital held by the Company Principal activities
ERITRYEBRE
) PN EE MRS BRI EE R A A HMERTEAER 74> B BT A4 9 7 HE A 25 b 451 TEEH
2016 2015
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Culture PRC" Registered 100% 100% Manufacturing of
Industrial Park (Wuhan) 16 August 2012 capital jewellery products
Company Limited e US$80,000,000 HEEREE
BARBEREXCEXE 201258 H 16 B AfEAR
(RBE)BRAH 80,000,000 3 7T
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery PRC" Registered 100% 100%  Sales of jewellery
Zhangjiagang Baoshui 21 April 2010 capital products
Company Limited HE" US$10,000,000 KREEMIFEE
BREHRESITRRE 2010648218 SR E A
HRHEER A A 10,000,000 3 JT
Foshan Shunde Yuda Jewellery PRC" Registered 100% 100% Manufacturing of
Manufacturing Company 14 March 2007 capital jewellery products
Limited E" US$10,639,400 KREEREE
HILmIEERRERE 2007 %3 A 14H HERER
BHEUERR A 10,639,400 T
Foshan Yushunfu Jewellery PRC" Registered 100% 100%  Manufacturing of
and Diamond Company 9 November 1988 capital jewellery products
Limited HE] US$18,000,000 KEEMEE
BILRIEEEERERDE 1988F 11 H9H AMEAR
18,000,000 3 7T
Guangdong Chow Tai Fook PRC" Registered 100% 100% Sales of jewellery
Jewellery Company Limited 10 December 2007 capital products and
BREAXEHRELTERAT HE" US$30,000,000 provision of services
2007F 12810 B AfEA to franchisees
30,000,000 % 7T KEEMEER
RARH T B
Guangdong Shunde PRC~ Registered 100% 100% Manufacturing of
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery 30 July 2014 capital jewellery products
Manufacturing Company R - RMB60,000,000 KEEMEE
Limited 201457 H30H AfEA
ERIEEEABRERIE A KR # 60,000,000 7T

BRATE
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 2% 2016 3 A31 B IEFE

40. Principal Subsidiaries of the Company (continued)

Place and date of
incorporation/

Issued and

fully paid

share capital/
registered capital/

40. KRR FEMB LA @

Proportion of
ownership interest

Name of subsidiaries establishment quota capital held by the Company Principal activities
ERITRHYERES
BB B BB =AM B 3L, 5% 37 it B R B HME A EEE A 74> B B A4 9 7 HE 4 25 bt 451 TEEH
2016 2015
Lida Noble Metal Technology PRC" Registered 100% 100% Manufacturing of
and Development 31 March 2006 capital jewellery products
(Shenzhen) Company Limited R HK$10,000,000 KREEREE
MESSE T EILIH R 2006 3 A31H HEMER
CRIN BRAF 10,000,000 & 7T
Shanghai Fulong PRC* Registered 60% 60%  Sales of jewellery
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery 5 January 2000 capital products
Company Limited HREl RMB10,000,000 KREEMFEE
LBEEARBHRERRAT 200051850 R E A
A K% 10,000,000 7T
Shenzhen CTF Watch Company PRC* Registered 80% 80% Sales of watches
Limited 27 June 2011 capital EERINE
YN BRBERERQ A HED HK$300,000,000
2011 %F6H27H A E A
300,000,000 & 7T
Shenzhen Shenfu Jewellery PRC* Registered 50%* 50%*  Sales of jewellery
Company Limited 19 April 2007 capital products
YR EAREETHERLE FE RMB8,000,000 KEEmEE
200748 19H AMEAR
A E# 8,000,000 7T
Wuhan Hanfu Jewellery PRC* Registered 70% 70%  Sales of jewellery
Company Limited 26 November 2003 capital products
REERKESTARIE  FE RMB50,000,000 KEEmHEE
2003F 11 A 26 SR E A
A B#5 50,000,000 7T
Zhangjiagang Baoshui Dade PRC* Registered 50%* 50%* Sales of jewellery
Xinfu Jewellery Company 3 December 2010 capital products
Limited HEL RMB3,000,000 KEEmHE
EREBERVEXNEHE 2010F 12 A3A FEfE A
KESTARAT AR #3,000,000 7T
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40. Principal Subsidiaries of the Company (continued)

Place and date of
incorporation/

Issued and

fully paid

share capital/
registered capital/

40. KRR FEMB LA @

Proportion of
ownership interest

Name of subsidiaries establishment quota capital held by the Company Principal activities
CRITREERE
ol NCiE=t REM AL SL AR AL R B A HEMEAREEEAR ARABERIEBEA R L5 FEEK
2016 2015
Zhangjiagang Baoshui Dehui PRC" Registered 100% 100%  Sales of jewellery
Jewellery Company Limited 24 September 2012 capital products
RRBREEEEKEST HE" US$15,000,000 KREEMEE
BRAF 201259 A 24H ERER
15,000,000 3= 7T
Zhangjiagang Baoshui Qifu PRC* Registered 51% 51% Sales of jewellery
Jewellery Trading Company 11 June 2007 capital products
Limited HREl RMB150,000,000 HEEREE
EXERFEHBEREES 2007F6H11H ERER
BRAF AR 150,000,000 7T
Zhangjiagang Baoshui Zhaofu ~ PRC* Registered 51% 51% Sales of jewellery
Jewellery Company Limited 17 November 2011 capital products
ERERVEZER®RELT PEH RMB70,000,000 HKEEMEE
BIRAE 2011 E 11 B17H EERE=N
AR % 70,000,000 7T
o Directly held by the Company. = AABREERSA -
# Pursuant to the relevant agreements entered into among shareholders of these entities, the Group has power to direct the # RIEZSBRNBRR BT WA  AEEELSER

relevant activities of these entities since their respective date of establishment/acquisition, and hence these entities are

classified as subsidiaries of the Company.

+ Being a co-operative joint venture establishment in the PRC.

A Being a wholly foreign owned enterprise.

~ Being a wholly owned enterprise in the PRC.

Note: The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affect the results or
assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive

length.

BEBWBAMURERIEEZSRBNARED - Hit
HEERBEATARNHBEAR -

+ ATRERINEGERFERHE -
A AOEBERHE -
~ APERINBERE -

MiEE : ERIHEBRRIEYBAEMPNEEREENADIANE
DE - MIIAMMBWD B 215 EFUARRSFEAFEBRN
T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #& B #3R&K Mz
For the year ended 31 March 2016 2% 2016 3 A31 B IEFE

41. Statement of Financial Position and Reserve 4. KRB RARREEE

Movement of the Company 2E

2016 2015
HKS$ million HK$ million
BHEHET BAEBT

Non-current assets FREBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—EMRE AR ZRE 15,387.3 -
Amounts due from subsidiaries A NGIE O] 600.0 15,387.3
15,987.3 15,387.3

Current assets RBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUSFI B A BIFRIE 10,657.3 9,721.0
Bank balances IRITEERR 0.5 0.4
10,657.8 9,721.4
Current liabilities ViEI=NE

Other liabilities Hitt&E 1.8 2.1
Bank borrowings IRITER 7,320.0 5,930.0
Gold loans =EEE 3,184.0 3,639.8
10,505.8 9,571.9
Net current assets RENEEFEE 152.0 149.5
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBEE 16,139.3 15,536.8

Non-current liability FREEE
Bank borrowings IRITER 600.0 =
15,539.3 15,536.8

Capital and reserves ERR#E
Share capital B 10,000.0 10,000.0
Reserves #1E 5,539.3 5,536.8
15,539.3 15,536.8
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41. Statement of Financial Position and Reserve 4. KARHMBRARREER

Movement of the Company (continued) BE @
Share Share Retained

capital premium profits Total

HKS million HKS million HKS million HKS million

B A R (& R BB F st

BEBT AEET AEBT BEBT

At 1 April 2014 A2014F4H1H 10,000.0 5,498.7 36.5 15,535.2
Profit and total comprehensive FREARZHEALLE

income for the year - - 3,201.6 3,201.6

Dividends 3= - - (3,200.0) (3,200.0)

At 31 March 2015 M2015F3A31H 10,000.0 5,498.7 38.1 15,536.8
Profit and total comprehensive FRENR @B LR

income for the year - - 6,502.5 6,502.5

Dividends 8=\ = = (6,500.0) (6,500.0)

At 31 March 2016 M2016F3A31H 10,000.0 5,498.7 40.6 15,539.3
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Financial Summary
PMBHE

The following is a summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of the UTAREBBERENBFED FIBEEN
Group for the last five financial years. The financial information are extracted from the REEREGEHE  FEVBEREZAFR
consolidated financial statements in the annual reports. RS IR o

For the year ended 31 March
HBZE3A3TALEE

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

HK$ million HKS$ million HKS million HKS million HK$ million

BEET HEET HEET BEBT BEBT

Revenue =21 56,571.1 57,433.9 77,407.1 64,277.0 56,591.5
Gross profit EF 16,447.9 16,283.1 21,1523 19,072.4 15,641.4
Profit for the year FERA 6,570.9 5,678.4 7,449.2 5,535.8 2,978.9

As at 31 March

®3A31H
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
HKS$ million HKS million HKS million HKS million HK$ million
BEET BEBR BEBT HEBT HHEBT
Total assets BEEHBE 47,4143 43,2186 61,817.1 61,121.0 55,675.4
Total liabilities BEHLE 17,841.3 9,357.9 23,364.7 20,580.2 19,925.5
Net assets BEFE 29,573.0 33,860.7 38,452.4 40,540.8 35,749.9
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Glossary 5%

THFY AL 5 E ¥ 5
2HFY A B E B THF

ALROSA

Articles #0 Bl
BoardEE g

China UnionPay A Ef £R B
Company/Chow Tai Fook
ANR/BAKXE
concessionaire store E &

Directors =%

FYBA B B

gem-set jewellery I B 8 #x & &ff

gemstones E A
Group £ A &

Hearts On Fire

high-end luxury jewellery

BHRUE

karat gold K &

the first half of the financial year, six months ending 30 September

BEREL¥FE  HE9A30HILEAER

the second half of the financial year, six months ending 31 March

MREFETHF BE3A31ALNEAR
0JSC ALROSA

the articles of association of the Company (as amended from time to time)

RRBABERAA ETEHER)

the board of Directors of the Company

RARESE

a bankcard organisation based in Mainland China

HEl A Y — SRERTT RS

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited (stock code: 1929)
BREHREEBER DT (RO © 1929)

self-operated POS with concessionaire agreement

B EEBENEETER

directors of the Company

ARBES

financial year, 1 April of a year to 31 March of the following year

BHEE  EF481BEEFE3H31H

jewellery products made with diamonds and gemstones

BEEOREONEHMER

colour stones, jadeite and pearls

FeBfh HFRRDIK

the Company and its subsidiaries

AARREKME AR
Hearts On Fire Company, LLC.

jewellery products with a retail price of above HK$100,000 per piece
BHZEE10BEBTULNHKEER

jewellery products made from gold alloy

UESRENEMER
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=

Glossary A%

Listing Rules £ 7 #3 B
Mainland China # B [
mass luxury jewellery
FRBGE

POS E &8,

R&D fiff 3%

Retail Sales Value/RSV E & &

Same Store [ [

Same Store Sales/SSS &) J§ $5 &

Same Store Sales Growth/SSSG
FESHEER

SFO % & H & 15151

Stock Exchange Bf %% Bt

Tier |, II, lll and other cities

— R TR ZRREHEMET

Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

EBWEXZAERQAES LHRA

the mainland of the People’s Republic of China
REARANEAM

jewellery products with a retail price ranging from HK$2,000 to HK$100,000 per piece
BHZEEN T2 TERZE10BBINHKREER

points of sale
EmEEEH

research and development

W K B g

the sales at the ending price (VAT inclusive, if any) of products sold to customers in the POS
network and other channels. Sales made outside Hong Kong are translated to reporting currency
at current exchange rates of respective period
REEFRXMEMRBEOTFHEEMNERTEE (BEEES  0B)FE - REE
BOMETHHERTBPENERRERZREY

self-operated POS existing as at the end of the relevant financial period and which have been
operating since the beginning of the prior financial year

BA—ERBFEAC KLY RABYBBBRDABTNELESEN

the revenue, measures at constant exchange rates, from the Same Store for the relevant financial
period, excluding revenue from wholesale and other channels

RV HHBRENERE  DEREEERE TSR R EMRENEEE

a comparison between Same Store Sales of a particular period and sales from comparable POS
in the previous period, measured at constant exchange rates

EERE B E BN EEHEEN - RN T REHEE

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
EBERISE 571 B 5 R BB RA

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
EBBMERZMARD A

for the list of cities, please refer to the glossary of our FY2014/15 interim report

BREE M F1EE2 020142015 I F B HR &
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